7+q• of
YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT Y-AD-075 DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL/ACKNOWLEDGMENT RECORD 9/88
TO: <u>SEE DISTRIBUTION</u> Copyholder Name <u>SEE DISTRIBUTION</u> Organization FROM: Science Applications Int. Corp. Document Control Center 101 Convention Center Drive Suite 407, Mail Stop 517 Las Vegas, Nevada 89109
Address (if necessary) COPY NO.: SEE DISTRIBUTION
DOCUMENT TITLE: <u>Yucca Mountain Project Change Control Board Records, FY 1989</u> , Volume VIII DOCUMENT REVISION: DOCUMENT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:
Control and issuance of the Yucca Mountain Project Change Control Board Records, FY-89, Volume VIII. You have been added to the controlled distribution list for this document. Included in the document: o Transmittal letter o Yucca Mountain Project Change Control Log, dated 1/5/89 o Minutes, Yucca Mountain Project Change Control Board, dated 12/13/88 o Cost/Schedule Change Requests 89/001 through 89/021
<pre>[] Destroy or mark obsolete material "Superseded" [] Return obsolete material with this transmittal record [X] New issue - no obsolete material</pre>
SIGN/DATE BELOW TO CONFIRM THAT THE ABOVE DIRECTIONS HAVE BEEN FOLLOWED, AND RETURN THIS TRANSMITTAL RECORD, WITH THE OBSOLETE MATERIAL, AS APPROPRIATE, TO THE ABOVE ADDRESS BY: 1/24/89 Due Date
Copyholder Signature Date
COBSOLETE MATERIAL RECEIVED: 890/190026 DCC Personnel Initials Date

COPY #	RECIPIENT	ORGANZATION
(······
1	C. P. GERTZ	PROJECT OFFICE
2	E. L. WILMOT	PROJECT OFFICE
3	W. R. DIXON	PROJECT OFFICE
4	L. P. SKOUSEN	PROJECT OFFICE
5	M. B. BLANCHARD	PROJECT OFFICE
6	JAMES BLAYLOCK	PROJECT OFFICE
7	N. A. MORLEY	PROJECT OFFICE
8	W. A. WILSON	PROJECT OFFICE
9	L. B. BALLOU	LLNL
10	J. E. STIEGLER	SNL-6310
11	R. W. LIZUT	SNL
12	D. T. OAKLEY	LANL
13	ALLYN PRATT	LANL
14	J. S. TREADWELL	SAIC
15	M. E. SPAETH	SAIC
16	J. E. SHALER	SAIC
17	W. B. DEVLIN	SAIC
18	M. D. VOEGELE	SAIC
19	S. H. KLEIN	SAIC
20	D. H. SMITH	SAIC
21	L. L. ANDRIST	SAIC
22	M. R. ARENAZ	SAIC
23	R. L. WISE	SAIC/GOLDEN
24	L. R. HAYES	USGS/DENVER
25	R. L. BULLOCK	F&S/LV
26	J. C. CALOVINI	H&N/LV
27	R. F. PRITCHETT	REECO/LV
	A. M. SASTRY	MAC TEC
	N. K. STABLEIN	NRC
30	R. R. LOUX	NWPO/CARSON CITY
31	DOCUMENI' CONTROL*	SAIC
U	LRC/RECORD COPY	SAIC

DISTRIBUTION LIST FOR THE CHANGE CONTROL BOARD RECORDS VOLUME VIII, FY 1989

* SPARE



CHANGE CONTROL BOARD RECORDS

VOLUME VIII FY 1989

8901190026 890105 FIEL WASTE PDC WM-11

NEV

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT, OF ENERGY

IONS OFFICE/YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT OFFICE



7, 31

. :

٠.

•

Changes thru 12/20/88

.

YUSCA KOUNTAIN PROJECT CHANSE CONTROL LOG ADJUSTMENTS TO RASELINE OS January 89

CHANGE NUMUER	SUBMIT DATE	APPROVAL DATE	DESCRIFTION & REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT	PES ACCT.	LADOR/COC ADJUSTMENT ADJ. BUDGET	
89/001	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance With the Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 808	2		:
897002	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the E-ploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVD-309 in Accordance with the Approved ESF Engineering Change Requests 010.	:		
R9/883	12/13/88 SAIC	12/1 3/88	Revise the Evploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance With the Approved ESF Engineering Change Request Oll.			
89/004	12/13/88 SAIC	12/15/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDFD) NVD-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 012.			
89 / 005	12/13/RP SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design requiremens Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 013.			

PAGE 1

,



· · ·

Changes thru 12/20/88

YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT CHANGE CONTROL LOG ADJUSTMENTS TO RASELINE 05 January 89

.

CHANGE NUMBER	SUBMIT DATE	APPROVAL DATE	DESCRIPTION & REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT	PES ACCT. FRCM TO	LADOR/00 ADJUSTMENT ADJ.	C 800CET
89/006	5 12/13/88 5AIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements document (SCRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 014.	· ·		
89/007	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 015.			
89/89F	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Evploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 016.			
89/009	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Fucility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 017.			
R9/010	12/13/A8 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requiremnts Document (SDRD) NVO-389 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 018.			

PAGE 2

.



Changes thru 12/20/88

TUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT CHANGE CONTROL LUG ADJUSTMENTS TO BASELTHE OS January 89

CHANDE NAMUEP	SUBWIT DATE	AFFROVAL DATE	DESCRIPTION & REASON FOR ADJUSTVENT	FRIN	FAS ACCT. IO	LADOR/ODC ADJUSTMENT ADJ. BUCGE	- -
89/011	12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Perise the E-plorutory Shuft Fucility (ESF) Subsystem Design Pequirements Document (SDPD) 100-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Pequest 819				•. • .
B7/012 89/013 87/013	12/13/88 SAIC 12/13/88 SAIC 12/13/88 SAIC 12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88 12/13/88 12/13/88 12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Decument (SDRD) NVD-SMO in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 020. Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVD-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 021. Revise the Exploratory Shuft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVD-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 022. Revise the Exploratory Shuft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVD-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 022. Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVD-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 023.				
						÷	· · ·

PAGE 3

Changes thru 12/20/88

· .

TUICA MOUNTAIN PROJECT CHANGE CONTROL LOG ADJUSTWENTS TO BASELINE 05 January 89

() () () () () () () () () () () () () (E SUBMIT	APPROVAL DATE	DESCRIPTION & REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT	FF(4	PES ACCT. TO	LABOR/CCC ADJUSTMENT ADJ BUCHBET
89/0	15 12/13/¤¤ S^1C	12/13/88	Revise the E-ploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVQ 200 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 024.			
89/0	17 12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Pevise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Pequirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 025.			
89/9	18 12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shalt Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-J09 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 026			
89/0	9 12/13/88 SAIC	12/1*/88	Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved, ESF Engineering Change Request 027.			
R7/3	50 12/13/88 SAIC	12/13/88	Revise the Exploratory Shuft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with Approved ESF Engineering Change Request 028.			

PAGE 4



Changes thru 12/20/88

TUCCA MUNITAIN PROJECT CHANGE CONTROL LEG ADJUSIMENTS TO BASELINE OS January R9

CHADGE DRIMBER	SUBMIT DATE	APPROVAL DATE	DESCRIPTION & REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT	P±S FRCM	ACCI . TO	LABOR/ODC ADJUSTMENT ADJ BUDDET	
89/021	12/13/28 Үмро	12/13/88	Change Project WBS and WBS Dictionary from a Baseline to a Controlled Document. Approval of all Changes will Remain with the CCB				.,
				. [.] .			
PAGE							

December 13, 1988

<u>CCB Chairman and Board Member Attendees:</u> E. L. Wilmot, L. P. Skousen, W. F. Dixon, P. V. Earton (Alternate for M. B. Blanchard) and P. C. Merkley, CCB Secretary.

<u>CCB Meeting Observers:</u> A. Hardy, USGS, R. Knecht, SAIC, D. G. Hubbard, MACTEC, J. D. Waddell, SAIC, C. Newbury, DOE/YMP, J. E. Shaler, SAIC, J. V. Smith, SAIC, M. C. Brake, SAIC, W. A. Wilson, DOE/YMP and L. L. Andrist, SAIC.

- 1. The meeting was opened by W. A. Wilson at 9:20 A.M.
- 2. P. C. Merkley, CCB Secretary identified the previous CCB Minutes, held on August 12, 1987 had been approved.
- 3. P. C. Merkley presented a C/SCR Summary for the period of 9/1/87 through 12/13/88. (See Attachment A.)
- 4. P. C. Merkley, CCB Secretary presented the CCB members and observers copies of the Baseline Change Evaluation Summary for each of the change requests on the agenda.
- 5. Summary of discussions concerning the requested changes to the Project Baseline elements is as follows:
 - a. Changes to the exploratory shaft facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) in accordance with approved Engineering Change Requests (ECR):
 - C/SCR 89/001 WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T SAIC ECR 008 - Replace (add) Appendix B data for the Integrated Data System (IDS).

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Approved for use in the ESF Title I however anomalies as identified by the Project Office QA evaluation concerning the forms utilized within the document are required to be corrected for use in the ESF Title II Design. Issue change through Document Control.

C/SCR 89/002 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC
 ECR 010 - Change "Trailers" to "Temporary Facilities" in Section
 1.2.6.3 - Surface Facilities, Subpart 1.2.6.3.8 - Temporary
 Facilities, and the Table of Contents.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

- - O C/SCR 89/003 WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T SAIC ECR 011 - Remove Assumption 1 from Section 1.2.6.4.5 - Hoist System, page 4.5-2 which states: "the existing government furnished equipment (GFE) headframe shall be modified as required and erected for shaft sinking operation."

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution

C/SCR 89/004 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC
 ECR 012 - Add report titled "Exploratory Shaft Seismic Design
 Basis," prepared by the special working group chartered by the
 ESF ICWG, be adopted as design criteria for the ESF.

Disposition: Requested Change Deferred

Instruction: Originator of requested change to verify that the ESF Seismic Design Basis was utilized as the design criteria for the ESF Title I. If verified CCB Chairman to approve the change.

o C/SCR 89/005 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 013 - Delete all information under "A/E Building (Area 25)" as found in Section 1.2.6.3 - Surface Facility Functional Requirements.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/006 - WBS ₱ 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 014 - Delete the entire Section 1.2.6.3.9 - "A/E Building (Area 25)," pages 3.9-1 and 3.9-2.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for Controlled distribution.

- <u>- - - - -</u>

o C/SCR 89/007 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 015 - Change Section 1.2.6.0 - General Exploratory Shaft Facility, page 0-1.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/008 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 016 - Change Section 1.2.6.2 - Utilities, pages 2-1 and 2-2.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 99/009 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 017 - Change Section 1.2.6.7 - Underground Utilities Systems, pages 7-1 and 7-2.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCP 89/010 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 018 - Change Section 1.2.6.1 - Site, page 1-1.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/ Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/011 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 019 - Change Section 1.2.6.3 - Surface Facilities, page 3-1.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

O C/SCR 89/012 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 020 - Change Section 1.2.6.2.1 - Power Systems, page 2.1-2; Section 1.2.6.4 First Shaft page 4-3; and Section 1.2.6.5 Second Shaft, page 5-3.

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

Instruction: Related Cost and Schedule impact, if any, to be addressed in ESF Title II Design.

Disposition: Approved

Ô.

Implementation: Revised pages of ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

C/SCR 89/014 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 022 - Change Section 1.2.6.6 - Underground Excavations, pages 6-1 and 6-2.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/015 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 023 - Change Section 1.2.6.6.2 - Test Areas, page 6.2-1.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/016 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 024 - Change Section 1.2.6.8 - Underground Tests, page 8-3.

12.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/017 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 025 - Change Section 1.2.6.8.5 - Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena Test, page 8.5-2.

Disposition: Approved

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

o C/SCR 89/018 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 026 - Change Section 1.2.6.1.1 - Main Pad, page 1.1-1 and Section 1.2.6.1.2 - Auxiliary Pads, page 1.2-1....

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

Instruction: Related Cost and/or Schedule impacts, if any are to be addressed in the ESF Title II Design.

0

C/SCR 69/019 - WBS # 1.2.6:1.1.T - SAIC ECR 027 - Change Section 1.2.6.3.7 - Warehouse, page 3.7-1.

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

Instruction: (1) W. Dixon to assure that the two 1200 Sq. ft. warehouse buildings are included in the Resource Management Division's Project inventory. (2) Related Cost and/or Schedule impacts, if any, will be addressed in the ESF Title II Design.

o C/SCR 89/020 - WBS # 1.2.6.1.1.T - SAIC ECR 028 - Change Section 1.2.6.1.2 - Auxiliary Pads, page 1.2-1.

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Revised pages of the ESF SDRD and the Revision/Change Record to be supplied to Document Control for controlled distribution.

- b. Changes to the Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) and the WBS Dictionary Project Baseline.
 - C/SCR 89/021 Remove from the Project Baseline the following documents: (1) NNWSI/88-8, NNWSI Baseline Documents NNWSI Project Work Breakdown Structure and (2) NNWSI/88-7, NNWSI Project Work Breakdown Structure Dictionary.

Disposition: Approved with Conditions

Implementation: Provide copy of the existing Project Work Breakdown Structure Index as an attachment to the C/SCR and establish it as a non-baseline Controlled Document.

Instruction: Although the WBS and the WBS Dictionary will be controlled documents all future revisions will require review and ultimate approval by the CCB Chairman.

6. General Discussions Summary:

During the course of the meeting various topics relating to the presented changes and the change control process were discussed. They are:

a. E. L. Wilmot recommended a summary of each change be provided to expedite review by the CCB members.

- b. J. E. Shaler identified the change procedures, presently in development, will require the originator to provide a complete change package including detailed impact analysis and shall be presented to the CCB Chairman for disposition. The chairman at that time may approve the request or direct further evaluation and schedule it to be presented at a CCB meeting.
- c. E. L. Wilmot requested that in the future the sponsors of the proposed changes be present at the scheduled CCB meetings to answer questions and/or defend the requested change.
- d. D. G. Hubbard recommended future CCB meetings include a stenographer to record the meeting minutes.
- e. E. L. Wilmot requested:
 - o Project Office Division Directors or assigned members of their staff to review and evaluate all requested changes.
 - CCB Secretary to summarize the change request evaluations and distribute them to the CCB members prior to the CCB Meeting.
 - o Division Directors to review the change request evaluation summaries prior to the scheduled CCB meeting.
- f. E. L. Wilmot stated the Division Directors are required to attend each CCB meeting and that Director alternates to the meeting will not be acceptable.

g. E. L. Wilmot requested that the location of future CCB meetings be held in the offices of SAIC and that the meeting room be efficiently configured allowing the grouping of board members separated from observers.

- h. It was mutually agreed by board members that CCB meetings will be scheduled once per month on a Friday. The selection of which week within the month is yet to be determined.
- i. L. P. Skousen recommended Change Evaluation Summaries be made available to the CCB Members prior to CCB meeting thus expediting review of the proposed change.

7. Meeting was adjourned by the Chaiman at 11:00 A.M.

P. C. Merkley, CCB Secretary

Approved

E. L. Wilmot, CCB Chairman

	COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/SCR)
89/001	SAIC W. E. Spaeth 11/15/88
Title: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	oloratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Ements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance oved ESF Engineering Change Request 008
Explanation & Reason	1 for Change:
WBS: 1.2.6.	.1.1.T
CHANGE: Repla Data packa	ace (add) Appendix B data for the Integrated System (IDS) in the ESF SDRD with the attached age.
REASON: This Contr expan	change incorporates comments from Interface rol Working Group (ICWG) Participants and nds Appendix B to include IDS Title I design.
COST IMPACT:	None
SCHEDULE IMPAC	JT: None
ATTACHMENTS:	 Letter, L. P. Skousen to N. E. Spaeth, July 19, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Request (ECR) 008.
	2. ESF ECR OOB.
	3. IDS Title I Design, dated 5/2/88.
χ.	
Responsible Organizat	tion N. E. Spaeth Mault Date 1/22/55

YJCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY
Baseline Change: Revised ESF SDRD in accordance with Approved ESF-ECR 008. 89/001
 Summary of Recommended Actions: Project Office TEMSS
Concurrence
Concurrence with Conditions
No Recommendation
Comment Summary Evaluation: (1) "Note attached Schedule out dated". (Re: Page 28 of 28) (2) "The attached package to the ESF-SDRD is a series of form type pages (no form number) for which there are no approval procedures to indicate how the form should be completed. Block 6 on page 1 of 28 has no log number included in the block. Block 7, 8, and 9 on the same page indicate some sort of approval process but no signatures are present. Block 12 on the same page indicates revision 1 dated 5/13/88 but has no description nor any initials in what appears to be block for initials. The QALAS referenced in block 21 on page 7 of 28 should be listed. No plan date is indicated in the block 21 on page 9 of 28. Duplication of numbers 21 and 23 with different titles. Block 27 on page 10 of 28 not completed".
Impact Analyses: Data was not provided to update the schedule as referenced in Item (1) above.
CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley Date 12/12/38 1 of 1

:

	· - · · ·



Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 1 9 1988

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Philip C. Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST (ECR) 008

The Chairman of the Interface Control Vorking Group approved the subject ECR on June 30, 1988. This information needs to be added to the information now contained in Appendix B of the SDRD under the formal project baseline process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this revision. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

> Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Hanagement Project Office

WMPO:DHI-2954

Enclosure: ECR 008

cc v/encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RW-223) FORS M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV J. L. Rast, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV V. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV. James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV

Received in Sciencemen Managomon L.Mrich

nd1_080.19-0044

RECEIVED

Route

Copies

. 2 0 19880

M. E. SPAETH Mirkly

Par 1/23

1 21 1988

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 20 1988

CCF RECEIVED

'89

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

×.,

Sector Sector

CSCR .

				E	STP11.F	MB-12/	28/8
ECR NO. 008					PAGE 1	_ OF _	1
SECTION 1. T	O BE COMPLETED	BY PARTICIPA	NT REQUES	TING CHANC	GE		
QA LEVEL	_111		PA	RTICIPANT	Los A	lamos	
SOURCE	Los Alamos	<u>)</u>	DA	TE	5/2/88		
WBS DESIGNATI	UN <u>1261</u>		UH	IGINAIOH V NO	Mers DAT	<u>on</u>	
DESCRIPTION	ESF		RF	V. NO		F	
Replace (a	dd) Appendix B	data for the	Integrat	ed Data Sy	/stem (1	DS)	
in the Exp	oloratory Shaft	Facility Sut	osystems D	esign Requ	uirement	5	
Document v	ith the attache	d package.	kan ber sam ter	leyen,			
<u></u>	•	17173482-923		- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1			
	NGE 1 Paviau		OT LOWG P	articipant	. incor	norate	<u>d</u>
DASTS FUR UNA	2. Expand	led informat	on to inc	lude IDS 1	itle l	desion	<u> </u>
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
					<i>i</i>		
SCOPE CHANGE	YES N	10	CONSTRUC	TION IMPAC	ST Y	ES <u>×</u>	_ N
PARTICIPANT		F(PRESENTATI		APTICI	DAN
DA REP	Quelt DATE	<u> \$1/81</u> TF	20 <u>22</u>	J. Meran DI	TE _5/	<u>2/88</u>	
SECTION 2. A	CTION	11.00 A 10	an a second for		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
1. PROCEED	WITH ECR EVALU	JATION	YES	NO I			
2. PROCEED	WITH WORK		YES	_ NO		hh	\sim
	• .			٤٤	SF ICWG	CHAIRM	N
3. TOTAL C			ROM	BLID	FT	PROI	FOT
(increa	ise/decrease) EN	IGINEERING				11100	2011
	CC	WSTRUCTION	11.2.4				
	TOTAL	.S		-			_
4 SCHEDU	ING IMPACT	a second a s	3515 V 4781 3				
4. 0012002	EN	IGINEERING	and the second				WEE)
	CC	WSTRUCTION	* .				WEE
		、 ·····	······································	- 4			
5, PROCEED) WITH DETAIL EN	IGINEERING	YES	<u> </u>			
PHULEEL	WITH DETAIL ES	DIIMAIE		NU			CWC
						navan i	CWG
6. FUNDING	ì:		70.414		and the state		
	CHANGE C)RDER S	SPECIAL ST	UDIES			
	NOT FUND	DED, PROJECTE	D ONLY				
				505 (NULTOUR	1000	
				EOR	JUN LUMAN	ICWG	
7. APPROVE	D FOR BASELININ	NG					
				dun	- 11-	forten	/
				ESF	CHAIRMAN	ICWG	
			<u>.</u>				
					• • • •		•
					•	. •	
					Eiic	LOSURI	E

•		ESF T	EST DESCRIPTION	AND REQUIREMEN	NTS USCI	e	9 00;
1. TEST P INTEGR	LAN TITLE ATED DATA	(ESTP) SYSTEM	2. PREVIOU 2/18/8	IS ISSUE DATE	3.	DATE 5/2/88	PAG 10
4. KEY IS Level I S and Archi	SUE Provident Provident Provident Provident Provident Provident Provident Providence Pro	rovide QA Collecti Test Data	5. TEST PL ng 1.2.6.5	AN NUMBER (WB	5) 6.	LOG NUM S	ER
7. PRINCI (PI) APPF	PAL INVES	TIGATOR	8. TECHNICAL PRO (TPO) APPROYAL:	JECT OFFICER	9. WASTE OFFICE (W	MANAGEMEN MPO) STAF	T PROJEC F APPROV
Robert	J. Crowl	ey	Donald T. Oak	ley	Lester Tech.	P. Skous Dev. & En	en, Chier g. Brancl
7a ADDRE Los Alamo P.O. Box Los Alamo FTS 843-	.SS7PHONE)s Nat'1 L 1663, MS ps, NM 37 7459	ab. G797 545	8a ADDRESS/PHON Los Alamos Nat'1 P. O. Box 1663, Los Alamos, NM FTS 843-1310	IE Laboratory MS J521 87545	9a ADDRE Waste Mar U.S. Dept Box 14100 FTS 544-7	SS/PHONE lagement P . of Ener), LV., NV 929	roject O gy 89114
a. Equ	INICAL DES	uirements	/specification		Attached	Provided	Deliver Date * 10/88
b. Equ	lpment Dat	a Sheets	: *.			X	10/88
c. Equ	ipment Cat	alog Shee	ts			Se Se	<u>10/88</u> e Attachn
e. Oper	rational ?	equiremen	ts & Space Alloc	ation			10/82
f. Mair	itenance R	equiremen	ts & Space Alloc	ation			10/38
g. Sys	tem Interf	a ce s					10/88
h. Util	lity Inter	faces	، دوری بر می از م کوری			کا Se	10/88 Attachm
1. Util	ity Requi	rements				Se	8 Attachm
j. Deln * Éor	IDS Phase	T only:	For Phase II of	ee attachment	s 1 thru 7		9
TT. TEST	PACKAGE	COSTS			:	•	
TC	ITAL ESTIM	ATE TO DA	TE	UNCERTAIN	NTY ON EST	IMATE TO	COMPLETE
	ENCES					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Ne In EG	vada Nucle tegrated 1 &G Energy	ear Waste Data Syst Measurem	Storage Investi em Title I, Prel ents, Las Yegas	gations Projections in the second sec	ct, Explor 1, March 2	atory Sha , 1988.	ft Facili Prepared
REY. NO.	DATE		DESCRIPTION		PI	TPO	WMPO
1	5/3/88						· }
				الحج الأخلاء والمتحج والمحمد والمراجع المحا			

		and the second	
	ESF TEST D	ESCRIPTION AND REQUIREMENTS	001
EST IN	PLAN TITLE (ESTP) ITEGRATED DATA SYSTEM	DATE Page 2	Of _2
3.	GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF TEST PLAN		
•	Provide a Data Acquisition System	to collect ESF Site Characterization Data	
	throughout the ES-1 and drift spa	Ce.	
٠	Provide interfaces to the various	equipments used by the Experimenters to al	<u>10w</u>
	timely control and data gathering	functions.	
•	To periodically distribute QA Lev	el I data to the Experimenters and to	
	archive all data collected by the	IDS in a secure location.	
	·		
	······································		
		·	
			- <u></u>
1.	SYSTEM INTERFACES		
•	Data acquisition and calibration	to all test sensors.	
٠	Test controllers furnished by SNL	, LANL, LLNL, and USGS.	
•	Communications Systems between th	e IDS main computer facility, downhole test	
	locations and the testing organiz	ations at Los Alamos, Livermore, Albuquerqu	le
	and Denver.		
•	Utility systems in the ES-1 shaft	and drift spaces.	
	<u></u>	······	

<u>;</u>;,

.

.

TEST PLAN TITL INTEGRATED U	E (ESTP) DATA SYSTEM		DATE 5/2/88	Page	<u>3</u> Of
15. SUMMARY C	OF TEST PLAN ITEMS AND R	ESPONSIBILITI	ES		
Test Item	Primary Responsibility	Designed by	Procured by	Fabricated b	y Date
105	LANL	EG&G	EG&G	EG&G	* 4/8
UPS System	LANL	ALE	REECO	VENDOR	* 4/8
Power	LANL	A & E	REECO	REECO	* 4/8
105 Uata Communication	LANL	EG&G	EG&G	EG&G	+ 4/8
External IDS Communication	LANL	A & E	REECO	REECO	* 4/3
lelephones & Intercoms	LANL	A & E	REECO	CENTEL	* 4/8
IDS Space	LANL	A & E	REECO	REECO	* 4/8
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
					ļ
					ļ
ا ا			A. K. M.		
ł		······································		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•		
		· · · · ·			·

* IDS Phase I only; For Phase II, see attached schedule.



EST PLAN TITLE (ESTP) Integrated data system	DATE 5/2/88	Page _5_0f _2
7. TEST DIMENSIONAL OUTLIN	2	
See Attachments 1 thru	7	
	• *	
•		

۰.

TEST PLAN TITLE (ESTP) Integrated data system	DATE 5/2/88	Page 0f _2
18. PLANS, SECTIONS, AND ELEVATIONS	<u></u>	
. See Attachments 1 thru 7.		
• · • •		
	· ,	
	n a na	
	•	. ·

Esp	TEST	DESCRIPTION	AND	REQUIRENE
-----	------	-------------	-----	-----------

	6561	1 89 001
TEST PLAN TITLE (ESTP) INTEGRATED DATA SYSTEM	DATE 5/2/88	Page
19. UTILITY INTERFACES - LIST QUANTITIES A. AIR NONE	, CONSUMPTIONS, INPUTS,	OUTPUTS, ETC.
B. WATER Fire sprinkler system at I main test level. Domestic Fire protection requiremen	DS Surface Bldg. and at water at Main Surface B ts TBD.	IDS Data Alcove on ldg.
C. POWER See attached NNWSI IDS equ See Attachment 8.	ipment lists.	
D. VENTILATION <u>Sufficient to remove</u> <u>computer equipment.</u>	heat from all spaces co See Attachment 8.	ntaining
E. DATA LINK_TBD		
F. OTHER (SPECIFY) Phones, Intercom		
20. DESIGN CONSTRAINTS The minimum separation between power	cabling and signal cabl	ing (of) either twiste
shielded pair or coax type) should be 5 f	t. if the power wiring i	s in conduit (not open
recevers) and 10 ft. If the nover wiring	is not in conduit. All c	rogalong of power and
LOCHAJD, and to ter it the power withing		LOBBILISS OF DOWEL and
signal cabling should be at right angles	with the maximum practic	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance. 21. DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation. 1 with respect to
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance. 21. DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS See approved QALAS for the IDS.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance. 21. DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS See approved QALAS for the IDS.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation.
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance. 21. DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS See approved QALAS for the IDS.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation. 1 with respect to
signal cabling should be at right angles Separation of power wiring and fiber opti distance. 21. DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS See approved QALAS for the IDS.	with the maximum practic c cabling is not critica	al separation. 1 with respect to

···• ·::

• .

.

	ESF TEST DESCRIPTION	AND REQUIREMENTS CSCR	'89 001
IEST PLAN TITLE (ESTP) Integrated data system		DATE 5/2/88	Page 0f
22. DELIVERABLES DESCRIPTION		DELIVER TO	Estimated DATE
TBD			
&			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · ·
23. MILESTONES		(Estimated)	(Estimated)
DESCRIPTION	. ·	DATE	COMPLETION DATE
See Attachment 9	•		
		· · ·	
		·····	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
			•

TEST PLAN TITLE (ESTP)		1. 5	TATU	S DA	TE	PL	AN D	SCE	}	Ē	'89 'age	0()1	
INTEGRATED DATA SYSTEM		5	/2/8	8								01		
4. TEST PLAN NUMBER			23.	PRI R	NCIP ober	AL I	NVES Cro	TIGA	TOR	<u> </u>				
25. MILESTONE ACTIVITY DELIVERABLES	2:	5. CA	LEND	ER T	IME	(Est	imat	ed)		·		 ł	1	
See Attachment 9														
														╞
			- 					 -						
· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •														
														ł
														┢
														ļ.
		·												┞
						<u>.</u>	÷.							╞
														ļ
												 		ļ
					-					स्				ł
									71			<u> </u>		┟
														Ţ
						·						 		┞
										 		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	Ļ

: . .

EST	PLAN TITLE (ESTP)			DATE	T	Page	
INT	EGRATED DATA SYSTEM			5/2/88		10	0f_
6.	REPERENCE OPERATING	PROCEDURE			27. D	JRATION OF	TEST
	NUMBER AND TITLE					_ Calendar 1	Days
8.	DESCRIPTION OF MEN/C	RAFTS REQUIRE	D TO INSTAL	L, CHECKOUT,	OPERATE	AND DISMAN	TLE T
	PHASE	CRAFT		NUMBER		DURATION	~~
	INSTALL	<u></u>					-
	CHECKOUT						
	OPERATE						-
	DISMANTLE						-
	Information	TBD					
29.	TOTAL MANPOWER AND S	CHEDULE REQUI	REMENTS				
	PHASE	MAN-DAYS	•	CALENDAR TIN	<u>12</u>	DATES	
	INSTALLATION						
	CHECKOUT						
	OPERATE						
	DISHANTLE						
			.*				•
30.	TOTALS				<u> </u>	<u></u>	
31.	DESCRIPTION OF MATER AND PERFORM THE TEST	AILS (CONSUMA	BLES, OPERA	TING, ETC.)	REQUIRED	TO CHECK O	UT
	DESCRIPTION					COST(S)	
				•			
						۲. ۲.	
					•	•	
							

ESP TEST OPERATIONAL DESCR		AND	REQ	UIRE	אצאד דא	's 50 [юия 309	T	:	89	00	1
INTEGRATED DATA SYSTEM				5/	2/88	I		ſ	_1	<u>1_</u> 0	f2	8
33. OPERATIONAL MILESTONE ACTIVITY/ DELIVERABLES	25.	CAL	ENDEI	R TI	ME (Esti	mate	d) 1	(!
See Attached Schedule.												
												·
×												
			}		. <u> </u>							
	-											
												<u> </u>
<u>ح</u>												<u> </u>
								,	•			
					 					·		
			•									
	_							· .				

.







NNWSI MTL IDS ALCOVE

0, Hor 4,23/8e

: 2 h



ADMINISTRATION AND ENGINEERING BUILDING -





SITE IDS SURFACE FACILITY POWER UTILITY 105 IDS DATA ACQUISITION STATION ETHERNET Communications Data Acquisition Processor Ascolvers 1 & Control Unit 10.5 Transmitters Computer Center Memory Hardware ETHERNET TAPE ETHERNET Receiver/ Transmitter Analog-Digital Convertors Multiplexers Signal Conditioning 23-1 . Underground . Electrical Substation MAIN TEST LEVEL DRIFTS 001 ETHERHET A UPS Power Utility Power UPS Power ETHERNET A Using Power 68 - Telephone ÷ - Intercom . - + Max possible 8.511 Allock separation CSCR _ between Inst. Sensor cables & all others Sensor SPECIFICATIONS Sensor , »I** ·Instrumons Metel (Bally) Type 2 Includes Ale Losk Entry MPEX LDT. PI Sensor UPS Pewer: Junction Bos Plezometers 2014A 120/2404 Strain Gages Utility Power: 155VA Stresemeters Temp Losd Cells AH SON NC Temperature Sensors etc. 2011 NOTE: Both UP3 & Utility power must be able to be supplied from an emergency generator IDS Data Acquisition Station



28

15 of

Page

57.3788

É



5/3/88 Page 16

IDS

of 18

CSCR _____89 __ C





17 of 28
AITACHHENI 7

189

001

CSCR _

MTL IDS EQUIPHENT LOCATIONS

The sketch for the IDS Data Alcove and the IDS Data Acquisition Stations at the main test level will be revised and coodinated incough the ICWG.

IDS 5/3/88 Page 19 of 28

ATTACHMENT 8

MUNICI IOS EQUIPMENT

189

001

65-43-95

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION :: SUPPORTED TESTS: DIFFUSION, INFILTRATION

CSCR _

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL, ACROSS DRIFT FROM INFILTRATION TEST SIZE: 9x20x9.5 feat, 1 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (PALLY) TYPE, AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER RED. UPS:20 KVA, 120/240, 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (POTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: COMPUTER GRADE, 12 KW COMPUTER MEAT LOAD FIRE RED.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CAPLING: IDS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACOUISITION STATION 72 SUPPORTED TESTS: BULL PERMEABILITY

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL, ADJACENT TO BULF PERMEABILITY TEST SIZE: 9x20x8.5 feet, 4 ft. CLEMPANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE, AIP LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER REQ. UPS:20 KVA, 120/240, 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: COMPUTER GPADE, 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE REQ.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

5/3/88 Page 20 of 28

IDS

\$2-63-99

NNWS1 105 EQUIPMENT

'89

001

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION #3 SUPPORTED TESTS: LOWER DEMONSTRATION BREAKOUT ROOM TESTS

CSCR

lengel ter en lineri NUMBER: SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL, ADJACENT TO LOBR SIZE: 9x20x8.5 feet, 4 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE, AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER RED. UPS:20 KVA. 120/240. 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: COMPUTER GRADE, 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD SAFETY: COMPUTER SHUTDOWN FIRE REO.: HALON . COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM SENSOR: CAGLING: 105: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACOUISITION STATION #4 SUPPORTED TESTS: SEDUENTIAL DRIFT MINING

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL. ADJACENT TO SEQUENTIAL DRIFT MINING TEST SIZE: 9x20x9.5 feet. 4 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE, AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER REQ. UPS:20 KVA. 120/240, 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: COMPUTER GRADE. 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE REQ.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE. INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT NNWSI IDS EQUIPMENT

<u>'89 001 </u>

62-63-99

Page 21 of 28

5/3/88

IDS

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION IS SUPPORTED TESTS: WASTE PACKAGE HORIZONTAL TEST

CSCR -

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL. ACROSS ORIFT FROM WP HORIZONTAL TEST SIZE: 9x20x8.5 feet, 4 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE, AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER REQ. UPS:20 KVA, 120/240, 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KWA 20TH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: COMPUTER GRADE, 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE REQ.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CAGLING: ICS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION #5 SUPPORTED TESTS: WASTE PACKAGE VERTICAL TEST

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: MAIN TEST LEVEL, ACROSS DRIFT FROM WP VERTICAL TEST SIZE: 9x20x9.5 feet. 4 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE. AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER RED. UPS:20 KVA. 120/240. 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIPONMENTAL RED.: COMPUTER GRADE. 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE RED.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU. TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

2/3/30 Page 22 OL 20

NNWSI 105 EQUIPHENT

001

· :

62-93-98

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION 1? SUPPORTED TESTS: UPPER DEMONSTRATION BREAKOUT ROOM TESTS

CSCR

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: UDER SIZE: 9x20x8.5 feet. 4 ft. CLEARANCE CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE, AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTINS: CONCRETE PAD POWER RED. UPS:20 KVA, 120/240. 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: COMPUTER GRADE, 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE REQ.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CABLING: 105: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON REDUNDANT

COMPONENT NAME: DATA ACQUISITION STATION I SUPPORTED TESTS: CALICO HILLS TESTS

SENSOP TYPES: LOCHTION: CHLICO HILLS SIZE: 9-20/9.5 feet. 4 ft. clearance CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BALLY) TYPE. AIR LOCK ENTRY MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER REQ. UPS:20 KVA. 120/240. 3 WI. UTILITY: 15 KVA (BOTH ON ENERG) ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: COMPUTER SRADE, 12 KW COMPUTER HEAT LOAD FIRE REQ.: HALON COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRU, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CAPLING: IDS: NOTES: 1000 CHANNEL CAPACITY, NON-REDUNDANT

1DS 2/3/00

NNWSI 105 EQUIPMENT

05-03-99

COMPONENT NAME: IDS ALCOVE COMPUTER SYSTEM SUPPORTED TESTS: HEATED BLOCK, CANISTER SCALE HEATER

CSCB

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: 105 ALCOVE. MAIN TEST LEVEL SIZE: 025 SO. FT. 20×40×0 CONSTRUCTION: METAL. AIR LOCK ENTRY. RAISED FLOOR MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWEP REQ. UPS:35 KVA. 3 PH. 209/120 UTILITY: 30 KVA (BOTH ON EMERG) ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: COMPUTER GRADE. INCOMING AIR HIGHLY FILTERED FIRE REQ.: HALON. SPRINKLER BACKUP COMMUNICATIONS: 2 ETHERNET LOOP-THRY. TELEPHONE. INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: VARIOUS ETHERNET NOTES:

COMPONENT NAME: IDS MAIN COMPUTER SYSTEM SUPPORTED TESTS: HLL

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: IDS MAIN SUPFACE FACILITY SIZE: 2600 SO. FT. CONSTRUCTION: METAL (BUTLER) TYPE MOUNTING: CONCRETE PAD POWER RED. UPS:SO KVA. 2-200A.30CKT P UTILITY: SO KVA. 3 PH. 200/120 ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: RAISED FLOOP. 74 +/-3 DEG. RH SOXNC. 40 KW HEAT FIRE RED.: HALON, SPRINKLER BACKUP COMMUNICATIONS: 3 ETHERNET, TELEPHONE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: 3 ETHERNETS NOTES: NNWS1 105 EOUIPHENT

CSCR _____'89 001

95-93-98

Page 24 of 28

IDS

5/3/88 👘

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #1

. . . NUMBER : SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #1 SIZE: 3x3x6 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) HOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER RED. UPS: 120 VAC. 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: FILTERED AIR, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL . **.** SAFETY: NONE FIRE REQ.: NONE COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND/OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM SENSOR: CABLING: IDS: NOTES:

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #2 SUPPORTED TESTS: RADIAL BOREHOLE #2

NUMBER : SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #2 SIZE: 3x3x6 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) HOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REQ. UPS:120 VAC. 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: FILTERED AIR, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL SAFETY: NONE FIRE REQ.: NONE Ξ. COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE ... INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: SENSOR: NOTES:

5/3/88 Page 25 of 28

IDS

NNWSI 105 EQUIPMENT

89 001

62-63-98

CSCR

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1. 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #3 SIZE: 3x3x6 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NE'A-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REO. UPS:120 VAC. 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRO ENVIRO ENVIRO TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE. INTERCOM CABLINU :DS: NOTES:

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #4 SUPPORTED TESTS: RADIAL BOREHOLE #4

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #4 S12E: 3x3x5 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT VALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REQ. UPS:120 VAC, 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL RED.: FILTERED AIR, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL FIRE REQ.: NONE COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES: NNWSI IDS EQUIPMENT

_'89 001

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #5 SUPPORTED TESTS: RADIAL BOREHOLE #5

CSCR

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABC # JOREHOLE #S SIZE: 3x3x6 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REO. UPS:120 VAC, 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL REO.: FILTERED AIR, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL FIRE REO.: NONE COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES:

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION TE SUPPORTED TESTS: RADIAL EDREHOLE TE

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1. 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #5 SIZE: 3x3x5 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REO. UPS:120 VAC. 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL REO.: FILTERED AIR. POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL FIRE REO.: NONE COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES: 62-63-98

Page 26 of 28

IDS

5/3/88

NNWSI 105 EQUIPMENT

______89 ___001

5/3/88

Page 27 of 28

05-03-99

IDS

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #7 SUPPORTED TESTS: RADIAL BOREHOLE #7

CSCR

NUMBER SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABOVE BOREHOLE #7 SIZE: 3x3x6 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, HUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REQ. UPS: 120 VAC. 1.5 KVA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: FILTERED AIR, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL SAFETY: NONE FIRE RED.: NONE . COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM SENSOR: USA SEASON CAELING: IDS: NOTES:

COMPONENT NAME: IN-SHAFT DATA ACQUISITION STATION #9

SENSOR TYPES: LOCATION: ES-1, 10 FEET ABOVE BORE-OLE 19 SIZE: 3/3%5 FEET CONSTRUCTION: HEAVY DUTY NEMA-12 (SEE ATTACHED SKETCH) MOUNTING: RECESSED IN SHAFT WALL, MUST BE ABLE TO RACK OUT POWER REQ. UPS:120 VAC, 1.5 KWA UTILITY: NONE ENVIRONMENTAL REQ.: FILTERED AIP, POSSIBLE TEMPERATURE CONTROL FIRE REQ.: NONE COMMUNICATIONS: DATA TO SURFACE AND OR DATA ALCOVE, INTERCOM CABLING: IDS: NOTES:

ATTACHMENT 9

CSCR _____'89 001 IDS PHASE 1 PROJECT SCHEDULE, Revision 1, 12/21/87, File 894PAS01.DAT IDS PHASE 1 PROJEC Prepared by R.J.CROHLEY Revision 1, 12/21/ Oct 87 Jan 88 Febliar Nov Feb Dec Job Description 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 13 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 3 10 17 24 31 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 2 3 4 5 6 7 I TITLE I, PH. 182 DESIGN 0== 2 REVISED TITLE I DESIGN DOC. 3 IDS COMMITTEE MEETING 4 TITLE II, PHRSE 1 DESIGN 5 PHASE I INSTALLATION 6 PH. 1 DEV. SYSTEH TEST REPORT 7 PH. 1 S/H INTERIM DES. REPORT 8 PH. 182 FACIL. RONTS. DOCUMENT 9 PH. 1 H/H INTERIH DES. REPORT 10 PH. 1 S/H INTERIM DES. REPORT 11 PH. 1. TITLE II DESIGN DOC. 12 PH. 1 S/H VER. & VAL. REPORT 13 PH. 1 H/H ACCEPT. TEST REPORT 14 INSTALL IN-SHAFT STATIONS 15 PH. 1. TITLE III ENGRG. REPORT -16 END OF IDS PHASE 1 Sorting order is Current order From the first job to the last job Jobs using all skills Symbol-Explanation >--> Duration of a normal job Slack time for a normal job >..> ² >==> @Duration of a critical path job >::> Duration of a completed job Job with zero duration Job deadline "Job with no prerequisites n--> Job with no successors >--X Time break due to holiday or week-off

0

20 10

		CSCR'89	001	· ·	
LE 894PASO1.DAT			IDS * Rev	; PHASE 1 PROJECT SCHEDULE vision 1, 12/21/87, File 894PRS01	1.001
Hay Jun 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	Jul 16 23 30 7 14 21 37 38-39 40 41 42	Rug Sep 28 4 11 18 25 1 43 44 45 46 47 48	0 0ctOct 8 15 22 29 6 13 49 50 51 52 53 54	Nov Dec 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 25 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65	Jan 87 F 3 5 12 19 26 2 5 66 67 68 63 7
· · · · · · · ·	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · ·	· · · · · · ·		· · · · ·
••••••••••	***************************************	*======================================	· · · >================================	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	. .	
	· · · · · · ·	· · · · · · ·	· · · × · ·		
	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	÷			

CSCH ______ NA NAT

..

. •

IDS PHRSE 1 PROJECT SCHEDULE Revision 1, 12/21/07, File 094PAS01.DAT

Har in Form Hay Jun Jul Rug Sep Oct 12 19 26 2 9 16 2 9 16 23 20 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 23 1 8 13 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10		Revision 1	1, 12/21/07, File	B9HPRSO1.DAT		
	D Har Ppr Hay 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85	Jun 25 1 8 15 2 86 87 88 89 9	Jul 22 29 6 13 20 27 90 91 92 93 94 95	Rug Sep 2 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 2 3 96 97 98 99 100 102	Oct Nov 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 104 106 108 110	52-
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		• • • • • • •	· · · · · · · ·		•
X	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	• • • • •	••••			•
	······································			• • • • • •	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	-
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			• • • • • • • •	,	• .
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				, 	•
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		• • • • • •	• • • • • • •		•
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					•
		0======================================			 ===============	===
	××:		:======================================			===
		·•••••••				
		and a straight				
						2.2.4
				ч ч		
					· · .	-

• .

:

. .

CSCR _____'89 0

IDS PHASE 1 PROJECT SCHEDULE Revision 1, 12/21/87, File 89HPAS01.DAT

...'

	Dec 7	:	· ~	• •		Jar	.90	Ja	n ~=	Fe	Ъ		~~	Нан	r				ĥρ	r		_	Ha	y				ไม	n			Jul				Aug 9	<i>'0</i>
; [`] .	114		1	16	2 0 4	, 116) }	15	0	1	в 2	15	22 4	1	8 6	15 12	22 8	29 13	5 0	12 13	19 2	26 13	3 4	10 13(17 6	24	31 3	7	14	21	29 ?	5 144	12	19 146	26	2 148	
	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	· •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	•	•	٠	•		•	•	•	•	•		•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	•	•	•	•	· ·	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
•.		_				_						•		•	-	•		-	•	•	•	-		•	•		•	•	•	-	•	•	•	•	•		
.•	•:	•	•	•	•••	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
, ,	==:	:==	:==:	==:		• ===	.==;		===	===	===	====		-==	-==:	===	===	-===	===	====	===	===	===	===	===	====	===	=X	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
	==:	. = =	==		:==:		:==:	:==	223	323	===	===:	:==:	232	===:	===	222	===	=== -::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	222	=== 	=== `\.''	522	===	322:	===:	===	= = = :	===:	236:		==== ();;;	:=== {}	:===	==:	=X	
		•	•	•		•	• • ,	•	•	•	•.	•	•	•	•	.•	•		្នុ ស៊ុំ ស្ត្		•	•	•	•	•			•	••	•	•				•	Х	
				÷			•					.'						الاس		م اربی معرف معرف	•				,			••••									1
				۰.		,						· •					-				· ·.				•	1.7.8. 									••••		
		· .	•								:							5	, ,		, . , .			•	, ,										•.		Š.
		•		: •		د . م فر					•			<u>}.</u>				·. ·							•		· ·								•		
							•				,	ţ.	С					·.	•	•					•												
		•	· · ·				¥.	•			÷ . بر							· · ·	, r	÷(**	• •			•				•		·							
· .		•		۰,			:				÷.			· · ·				•			•				•	•		·			•			. ·			
÷			•						;		- - - - - - - - 			•																							
					•	•					. ?																	·									
																									. •	•											

۱۰۰۰

••

•

	· •				••
Not Not	(NNWSI P	PROJECT Fage NGE REQUEST (C/SO	1 of I CR)	N-AD-036 9/87
Thurse No.	Cr	ฐมาสมเอก:	Originator:	Origination Dat	:e:
s9;∙002	S	AIC	¥. E. Spaeth	11/15/88	
Title: Revis Desig with	e the Explor n Requiremer the Approved	atory Shaft Facility (ts Document (SDRD) NYO ESF Engincering Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) 010		
Explanation	& Reason fo	r Change:			
WBS:	1.2.6.1.1.	Т			
CHANG	E: See the	attached ESF ECR 010.			
REASC	N: See the	"Basis for Change" on	ESF ECR 010.		
COST	IMPACT: Nor	ne			
SCHED	ULE IMPACT:	None			
λττλο	HMENTS: 1.	Letter, L. P. Skousen July 20, 1988, Propos Exploratory Shaft Fac Design Requirements D Engineering Change Re through 027.	to M. E. Spaeth, ed Changes to the ility Subsystem ocument (SDRD) quests (ECRs) 010		
	2.	ESF ECR 010.			
Responsible CCB Secret Approval:	Organization ary <u>P. C. M</u> Project Manag	M. E. Spaeth erkley Allos Ele ger, WMPOSTC. P. Gertz	Ligutt	Date $\frac{1}{27}$ Date $\frac{2}{13}$ Date $\frac{2}{13}$	177 188 69

 Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF ECR 010.	SDRD	in acc	cordanc	e with	1	C/SC7 89/0	No: 102	
Summary of Recommended Actio	ns:	<u> </u>						
	Pr	<u>cject</u>	Office	<u>}</u>	. <u> </u>		SWSS	
	RESE	ELD	2049	QA	MIES	S&EI	SE&C	ADMIN
Soncurrence			X	X	ک			
Concurrence with Conditions								
Non Concurrence								
No Recommendation	X							
 Comment Summary Evaluation:								<u></u>
Impact Analyses:								
+ Ulipenh	ilin					Page		



CSCR _____'89 002 Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

for 11. JUL 21 1988 Route Copies _

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> Received In Contiguration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

CCF RECEIVED

Multiple Addressees

-2-

JUL 20 1998

Se. 1

cc w/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrows, SAIC. Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WMPU, NV E. L. Wilmot, WMPO, NV

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

	-11 FM8-12/28/E
ECR NO. 010 PAGE	
1	OF
SECTION 1. TO BE COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTING CHANGE	
OA LEVEL III SOURCE Holmes & Narver, Inc. WBS DESIGNATION 1,2,6,3,1.6 TITLE Buildings DESCRIPTION Trailers (Main Pad) PARTICIPANT Holmes & No. DATE REV. NO. DATE REV. NO. DATE	arver, Inc. 88 1ams gu
Holmes & Narver, Inc. (H&N) recommends the Subsystem Design Requirements Doc	ument (SDRI
1.2.6.3 Surface Facilities be changed in Subpart 1.2.6.3.8 from "Trailers" t	o Tempor-
ary Facilities"; in the paragraph functional Requirements I.n. thange frail	
Temporary Facilities; and in 1.n.o, 9 and 10 change trailers to facilit	e trailers
" to "The Temporary facilities". In the paragraph Functional Req	uirements
change sentences 1,2,3 and 4 from "shall" to "may". (Cont'd) SFE CONTIN	UATION PAGE
BASIS FOR CHANGE Title 8. California Administrative Code, Part I, Chapter	4,
Subchapter 17, Article 7, Section 6977, Paragraph g reads as follows: "It i	.s
recommended that working clothes be either elevated by suitable means, such	as chains,
to the upper air of the change house or that separate rooms be used for work	cing and
street clothes." The recommendation of separate rooms for street SEE CONTIN	UATION PAGE
SCOPE CHANGE <u>× YES</u> NO CONSTRUCTION IMPACT <u>× YE</u>	ESNO
DATE 3/14/54 ESF ICWG REPRESENTATIVE OR PAR DATE 3/14/54 TPO DATE 3/14/54	RTICIPANT
SECTION 2. ACTION	
1. PROCEED WITH ECR EVALUATION YES NO 2. PROCEED WITH WORK YES NO SEF ICWG CHAIR	D. M.
3. TOTAL COSTS ROM BUDGET · PRO (increase/decrease) ENGINEERING	
4. SCHEDULING IMPACT	
	WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERINGYESNO	······
ESF CHAIRMAN ICW	G
6. FUNDING:	
CHANGE ORDER SPECIAL STUDIES	
NOT FUNDED, PROJECTED ONLY	by_
7. APPROVED FOR BASELINING	
ESF CHAIRMAN ICW	by G

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

ESTP12 FMB-11/24 PAGE ECR NO. 010 2 OF Continuation Page Buildings Trailers (Main Pad) TITLE CONTINUATION DATA In the paragraph Performance Criteria change "first aid trailer" to "first aid facility". In the two paragraphs Constraints and Assumptions change "change room trailers" to "change room facility". (See attached SDRD) These changes are to also be made in the H&N Scope and Planning Basis Document (SPBD) 1.2.6.3.1.6 and the Design Basis Document (DBD) 1.2.6.3.1.6. (See attached SPBD and DBD). BASIS FOR CHANGE (Cont.) and work clothes almost doubles the trailer requirements necessary for the change house To meet this recommendation and to provide adequate space for first aid, lamp charging/ repair, office space, and storage it is recommended that a pre-engineered building be substituted for change house trailers. Trailers do not provide adequate overhead clearance for hanging baskets and a facility with concrete floors is much more appropriate for change house/shower facilities. The constraint of trailers only for main pad buildings that is placed upon the A&E does not allow the A&E to design the best possible and most cost efficient facility. Pre-engineered metal buildings are temporary structures and they provide considerable cost savings over modular trailers. A facility of sufficient size to accommodate miners, supervisors, inspectors, etc. and to also allow the incorporation of some office space, safety room, first aid, etc. in lieu of using trailers as specified is recommended by H&N. For comparison, the Area 3 modular office complex consisted of 12 each 14'x60' modular trailers. Based on actual work orders received for the office-type trailers and site preparation only, the cost was \$82 per square foot. The Area 6 physical fitness facility consisted of a 6,000 square foot pre-engineered metal building including the concrete slab and utilities at a completed cost of \$52 per square foot. These comparisons indicate that a pre-engineered metal building should cost less per square foot than trailers and provide a more usable facility.

OTHER INFORMATION



Rev. 1

EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY

SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.2.6 INTRODUCTION

1.2.6.0 GENERAL (EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY)

- 1.2.6.1 SITE
 - 1.2.6.1.1 Main Pad > 1.2.6.1.2 Auxiliary Pads
 - 1.2.6.1.3 Access Roads
 - 1.2.6.1.4 Site Drainage

1.2.6.2 UTILITIES

- 1.2.6.2.1 Power Systems
- 1.2.6.2.2 Water Systems
- 1.2.6.2.3 Sewage Systems
- 1.2.6.2.4 Communication System
- 1.2.6.2.5 Mine Wastewater System
- 1.2.6.2.6 Compressed Air System

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

- 1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System
- 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces
- 1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas
- 1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.6 Shop
- 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse
- 1.2.6.3.8 Trailers
- 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25)
- 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

:

1.2.6.4 FIRST SHAFT

- 1.2.6.4.1 Collar
- 1.2.6.4.2 Lining
- 1.2.6.4.3 Stations
- 1.2.6.4.4 Furnishings
- 1.2.6.4.5 Hoist System
- 1.2.6.4.6 Sump
- 1.2.6.5 SECOND SHAFT

1.2.6.5.1	Collar
1.2.6.5.2	Lining



EXISTING

Rev. 5

1	.2.	6,	5	1	Station
-	-		-		

1.2.6.5.4 Furnishings

1.2.6.5.5 Heist System

1.2.6.5.6 Sump

1.2.6.6 UNDERGROUND EXCAVATIONS

1.2.6.6.1 Operations Support Areas

1.2.6.6.2 Test Areas

1.2.6.7 UNDERGROUND UTILITY SYSTEMS

1.2.6.7.1 Power Distribution System

1.2.6.7.2 Communications System

1.2.6.7.3 Lighting System

1.2.6.7.4 Ventilation System

1.2.6.7.5 Water Distribution System

1.2.6.7.6 Mine Wastewater Collectical System

1.2.6.7.7 Compressed Air Distribution Systems

1.2.6.7.8 Fire Protection System

1.2.6.7.9 Muck Handling Systems

1.2.6.7.10 Sanitary Facilities

1.2.6.7.11 Monitoring and Warning Systems

1.2.6.8 UNDERGROUND TESTS

1.2.6.8.1 Integrated Data Acquisition System (IDS)

1.2.6.8.2 Geological Tests

1.2.6.8.3 Geomechanics Tests

1.2.6.8.4 Near-Field and Thermally Perturbed Tests

1.2.6.8.5 Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena Tests

1.2.6.8.6 Prototype Tests

1.2.6.9 ESF DECOMMISSIONING STRATEGY

1.2.6.9.1 Surface Facilities

1.2.6.9.2 Skelts and Underground Facilities

1.2.6 APPENDICES

Appendia: A ESF Sketches

Appendix B - Test and IDS requirements and test data sheets

Appendix C ESF Drilling Requirements

Appendix D Reference Project documentation

Appendix E Applicable regulations, codes, and specifications (including OGR/GRD Appondix E-Crosswalk)

Appendix F Work order system / Werk Breakdown Structure

EXISTING

Rev. 1

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

Subparts are:

Ventilation System 1.2.6.3.1 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces Parking Areas 1.2.6.3.4 Materials Storage Facilities 1.2.6.3.5 1.2.6.3.6 Shop 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse Trailers 1.2.6.3.8 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25) 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

1. Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:

- a. Ventilation system
- b. Test support facilities
 - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
- c. Trailer spaces
- d. Parking areas
 - 1) Surface mobile equipment
 - 2) Personnel parking
 - 3) Visitor parking
- e. Materials storage facilities

f. Shop

- g. Warehouse
- h. Trailers

EXISTING

Rev. 1

- 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (PIs)
- 2) Offices for site security
- 3) Offices for site operations staff
- 4) Offices for site administration and training
- 5) Offices for Quality Assurance
- 6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction
- 7) Laboratories, etc.
- 8) Change trailers
- 9) First aid trailer
- 10) Test support trailer
- 11) NRC and State offices
- i. A&E building (Area 25)
 - 1) Administration
 - 2) Visitors
 - 3) Training
 - 4) Engineering staff
 - 5) Security
 - 6) Labs (as required)
 - 7) Sleeping quarters (as required)
 - 8) Offices for Pls
 - 9) NRC and State offices
- j. Communications and data building
 - 1) Computer/control system
 - 2) Data acquisition (IDS)
 - 3) Communications equipment
- 2. Provide air quality monitoring.
- 3. Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4. Provide dust control and/or collection facilities.
- 5. Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions.
- 6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life, unless otherwise noted.
- 3. The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security, including controlled access and emergency response.
- 4. The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC), compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.

CSCR _______.

EXILINU

Rev. 1

5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.

VUL

6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4. Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

Assumptions

None.

EXISTING

CSC? _____'89 002

Rev. 1

1.2.6.3.8 TRAILERS

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The trailer(s) are defined by the facilities, systems, and services that will be utilized for the offices, change rooms, first aid, and test support required to support ESF construction, operations, and maintenance personnel for the site characterization program.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Trailers shall be provided for office spaces.
- 2. Trailers shall be provided for change rooms of sufficient size to provide all necessary personnel a place to change clothes.
- 3. A trailer shall be provided for the first aid center.
- 4. Trailers shall be provided for test support functions.

Performance Criteria

1. The first aid trailer shall provide at least 200 square feet for the first aid facility, plus 50 square feet for storage.

Constraints

- 1. Office spaces shall be based on a minimum of 100 square feet per office.
- Overhead baskets and locker facilities in the change room trailers shall be sized to accommodate the ESF underground personnel for both operations and underground testing.

Assumptions

1. The government owned change trailers may satisfy the requirements for the change room trailers.

CSCR _____'89 002 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev 6

EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY

SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.2.6 INTRODUCTION

1.2.6.0 GENERAL (EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY)

- 1.2.6.1 SITE
 - 1.2.6.1.1 Main Pad
 - 1.2.6.1.2 Auxiliary Pads
 - 1.2.6.1.3 Access Roads
 - 1:2:6.1.4 Site Drainage

1.2.6.2 UTILITIES

- 1.2.6.2.1 Power Systems
- 1.2.6.2.2 Water Systems
- 1.2.6.2.3 Sewage Systems
- 1.2.6.2.4 Communication System
- 1.2.6.2.5 Mine Wastewater System
- 1.2.6.2.6 Compressed Air System

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

- 1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System
- 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces
- 1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas
- 1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.6 Shop
- 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse
- 1.2.6.3.8 Temporary Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25)
- 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

1.2.6.4 FIRST SHAFT

- 1.2.6.4.1 Collar
- 1.2.6.4.2 Lining
- 1.2.6.4.3 Stations
- 1.2.6.4.4 Furnishings
- 1.2.6.4.5 Hoist System
- 1.2.6.4.6 Sump
- 1.2.6.5 SECOND SHAFT

1.2.6.5.1	Collar
1.2.6.5.2	Lining

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

.2.6.5.3	Station Costa
.2.6.5.4	Furnishings

1.2.6.5.5 Hoist System

1.2.6.5.6 Sump

1.2.6.6 UNDERGROUND EXCAVATIONS

- 1.2.6.6.1 Operations Support Areas
- 1.2.6.6.2 Test Areas
- 1.2.6.7 UNDERGROUND UTILITY SYSTEMS
 - 1.2.6.7.1 Power Distribution System
 - 1.2.6.7.2 Communications System
 - 1.2.6.7.3 Lighting System
 - 1.2.6.7.4 Ventilation System
 - 1.2.6.7.5 Water Distribution System
 - 1.2.6.7.6 Mine Wastewater Collection System
 - 1.2.6.7.7 Compressed Air Distribution Systems
 - 1.2.6.7.8 Fire Protection System
 - 1.2.6.7.9 Muck Handling Systems
 - 1.2.6.7.10 Sanitary Facilities
 - L.2.0.7.10 Senicary racincies
 - 1.2.6.7.11 Monitoring and Warning Systems

1 2.6.8 UNDERGROUND TESTS

- 1.2.6.8.1 Integrated Data Acquisition System (IDS)
- 1.2.6.8.2 Geological Tests
- 1.2.6.8.3 Geomechanics Tests
- 1.2.6.8.4 Near-Field and Thermally Perturbed Tests
- 1.2.6.8.5 Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena Tests
- 1.2.6.8.6 Prototype Tests

1.2.6.9 ESF DECOMMISSIONING STRATEGY

- 1.2.6.9.1 Surface Facilities
- 1.2.6.9.2 Shafts and Underground Facilities

1.2.6 APPENDICES

- Appendix A ESF Sketches
- Appendix B Test and IDS requirements and test data sheets
- Appendix C ESF Drilling requirements
- Appendix D Reference Project documentation
- Appendix E Applicable regulations, codes, and specifications (including OGR/GRD Appendix E Crosswalk)
- Appendix F Work order system / Work Breakdown Structure

Rev. 6

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

189 002

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Subparts are:

- 1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System
- 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces
- 1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas
- 1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.6 Shop
- 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse
- 1.2.6.3.8 Temporary Facilities
- 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25)
- 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

Definition of Subsystem Elements

CSCR ____

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:
 - a. Ventilation system
 - b. Test support facilities
 - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
 - c. Trailer spaces
 - d. Parking areas
 - 1) Surface mobile equipment
 - 2) Personnel parking

. 3-1

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

- 3) Visitor parking
- e. Materials storage facilities
- f. Shop
- g. Warehouse
- h. Temporary Facilities
 - 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (PIs)
 - 2) Offices for site security
 - 3) Offices for site operations staff
 - 4) Offices for site administration and training
 - 5) Offices for Quality Assurance
 - 6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction
 - 7) Laboratories, etc.
 - 8) Change facilities
 - 9) First aid facilities
 - 10) Test support facilities
 - 11) NRC and State offices
- i. A&L building (Area 25)
 - 1) Administration
 - 2) Visitors
 - 3) Training
 - 4) Engineering staff
 - 5) Security
 - 6) Labs (as required)
 - 7) Sleeping quarters (as required)
 - 8) Offices for Pls
 - 9) NRC and State offices
- j. Communications and data building
 - 1) Computer/control system
 - 2) Data acquisition (IDS)
 - 3) Communications equipment
- 2. Provide air quality monitoring.
- 3. Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4. Provide dust control and/or collection facilities.
- 5. Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions.
- 6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life, unless otherwise noted.



PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

- 3. The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security, including controlled access and emergency response.
- 4. The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC). compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.
- 5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.
- 6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4. Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

.

Assumptions

None.

PROPOSED MODIFICATION CSCR ____'89 002

Rev. o

ł

1.2.6.3.8 TEMPORARY FACILITIES

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The temporary facilities are defined by the facilities. systems. and services that will be utilized for the offices, change rooms, first aid, and test support required to support ESF construction, operations, and maintenance personnel for the site characterization program.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Temporary facilities may be provided for office spaces.
- 2. Temporary facilities may be provided for change rooms of sufficient size to provide all necessary personnel a place to change clothes.
- 3. A temporary facility may be provided for the first aid center.
- 4. Temporary facilities may be provided for test support functions.

Performance Criteria

1. The first aid facility shall provide at least 200 square feet for the first aid facility, plus 50 square feet for storage.

Constraints

- 1. Office spaces shall be based on a minimum of 100 square feet per office.
- 2. Overhead baskets and locker facilities in the change room facility shall be sized to accommodate the ESF underground personnel for both operations and underground testing.

Assumptions

1. The government owned change facility may satisfy the requirements for the change room trailers.



		NNWSI P COST/SCHEDULE CHAI	PROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87
5	Change No.:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
	89/003	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
	Title: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	loratory Shaft Facility (ments Document (SDRD) NVO ved ESF Engineering Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) 011	
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:		
	WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T		
	CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR.		
	REASON: See t	he "Basis for Change" on .	ESF ECR 011.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None		
Ċ	ATTACHMENTS:	 Letter, L. P. Skousen July 20, 1988, Propose Exploratory Shaft Fac Design Requirements De Engineering Change Ree 	to M. E. Spaeth, ed Changes to the ility Subsystem ocument (SDRD) quests (ECRs) 010.	
		2. ESF ECR 011.		
			:	
	-	,		
				,
	Responsible Organizat	ion N. E. Spagth	Udouth-	Date 11/27/84
	CCB Secretary P. C.	Merkley Meyerbel	14	Date 12/13/88
1	Approval: Project Ma	anager. WMPOCC. P. Gert:		Date 12/13/00

5	YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 011. 89/003
	Summary of Recommended Actions:
	Project OfficeTSMSS
	RESE EED PLOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN
	Concurrence IXXX IXX
	Concurrence with Conditions
	No Recommendation Image: Commendation Image: Commendation
Ċ	Comment Summary Evaluation: (1) "This change will have a cost & schedule impact".
-	Impact Analyses: Data was not provided to indicate impact relating to Cost and Schedule.
9	CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u> Date <u>12/12/88</u> 1 of <u>1</u>



Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 2 0 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

HUL SE ...

mull? JUL 21 1988 Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Inby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Management Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

1111 2 2 1988

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

CCF RECEIVED

-2-

Hultiple Addressees

cc w/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VHPO, NV

JUL 20 1998 1 . .
ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

			OIDAIGE I		ESTP11	FMB-12/2
ECR NO. 011			· · · ·		PAGE	
					1	OF 1
	<u> </u>					
SECTION 1. TO B	E COMPLETE	D BY PARTICIPAN	TREQUESTIN	G CHANGE		
DA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION	NNWSI- 1.2.6. SDBD ES-1 G	DOF. 4.5 FE Headframe		PARTICIPANT DATE ORIGINATOR REV. NO. <u>1</u> REV. NO	<u>Fenix & Sci</u> <u>4/21/88</u> <u>8. Stanley</u> DATE <u>12/18/</u> DATE	87
Remove fr	om the SDRD	, Section 1.2.6	.4.5, Assump	tion 1 which	states;	
"the ex	isting gove	rnment furnishe	d equipment	(GFE) headfrai	Dê	
shall	be modified	as required an	d erected fo	r shaft sinki	ng operation.	11
		•				
······································		<u> </u>		·····		
					SEE CONTINUAT	TON PAGE
BASIS FOR CHAN	IGE	<u></u>				
The confi	guration of	the GFE headfr	ame will not	allow suitab	le fulfillmen	
of SDRD,	1.2.6.4.5.	PC 1. 7. 10 and	11. Modifi	cation of the	existing	
structure	vill not s	olve problems w	ith safety.	flexibility.	and accommoda	tion
of the ho	isting syst	em relative to	construction			
	characteriz	atton needs.		, operación,	SEE CONTINUA	TION PAGE
SCOPE CHANGE	YES	_NQ	CON	STRUCTION IMP.	ACTYES	
SECTION 2. ACTI 1. PROCEED W 2. PROCEED W	ON TTH ECR EV TTH WORK				- I Juby	
3. TOTAL COST	[S		ROM	BUDG	ET PROJE	CTED
lincrease	/0 0C18836)	CONSTRUCTIO TOTALS	N			
4. SCHEDULING	MPACT					
		ENGINEERING				WEEK
		CONSTRUCTIO	N			WEEK
5. PROCEED PROCEED	WITH DETAL WITH DETAL	ENGINEERING ESTIMATE	YES	NO NO		
				ESF CHA	IRMAN ICWG	
8 FUNDING						
	СНА	NGE ORDER	SPECIAL	STUDIES		
	NOT	FUNDED. PROJEC	TED ONLY			
				Luni	- I. leby	<u>(</u>
				ESF CHAI	RMAN ICWG/	
					0	
7. APPROVED F	OR BASELIN	ING				
				١.		
				<i>L</i> .	· 1 0. L	1
				FSFCH	URMAN ICWO	¥
						,

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

1.2.6.4.5 HOIST SYSTEM

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The Hoist system is defined as those systems and components for the transportation of personnel and equipment between the surface and subsurface to meet the needs of ESF shaft sinking, construction, and underground site characterization testing. The hoist system includes the structural steel members used to support the hoisting conveyance, the headframes, and the hoist house.

The hoist house is defined as those facilities to accommodate one hoist operator and the necessary equipment and instrumentation for the hoist, air compressor system, control room, electrical and motor control centers, and an area for repairs and lay down.

Functional Requirements

The hoist system shall provide for the transport and support of personnel, materials, and construction equipment, and serve as the emergency egress from the underground during shaft sinking, ESF construction (mining operations), and underground testing.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The ESF hoisting system capacities shall be consistent with the requirements of ESF construction, operation, and underground site characterization needs.
- The hoisting conveyance shall be designed to permit the inspection of shaft performance monitoring instrumentation, as well as other shaft inspection and maintenance activities.
- 3. The conveyance system shall consist of a cage and sinking bucket in an out-of-balance arrangement operated by a ground-mounted hoist.
- 4. The cage shall be designed to act as a crosshead for the sinking bucket.
- 5. The hoist shall be designed with a separate and independent power distribution system.
- 6. The hoisting systems shall have a rated capacity sufficient for emergency egress.

4.5-1



PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev 6

- 8. A hoist foundation shall be provided to accommodate the hoist dimensions and mounting details, independent of the hoist house foundation.
- 9. The hoist house control and operator's room shall be complete with a heating and air conditioning system.
- 10. The headframe shall provide sufficient facilities for dumping buckets during shaft construction.
- 11. The headframe shall be designed and constructed to serve subsurface construction and underground test operations.
- 12. Clearances in the headframe directly above the collar shall be designed to accommodate the rigging of all anticipated underground equipment.
- 13. The hoisting systems shall be designed and constructed for the evacuation of all underground personnel to safety within one hour.
- 14. Area flood lighting and lightning protection shall be provided atop the shaft headframe.

Constraints

- 1. The hoisting system shall be designed to have all necessary safety features.
- 2. The hoist shall be designed to accommodate the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.)

Assumptions

- 1. DELETED
- 2. The existing GFE 900 HP hoist shall be used for shaft sinking and ESF construction and operation activities.

EXISTING

CSCR _____'89 003

Rev. 1

1.2.6.4.5 HOIST SYSTEM

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The Hoist system is defined as those systems and components for the transportation of personnel and equipment between the surface and subsurface to meet the needs of ESF shaft sinking, construction, and underground site characterization testing. The hoist system includes the structural steel members used to support the hoisting conveyance, the headframes, and the hoist house.

The hoist house is defined as those facilities to accommodate one hoist operator and the necessary equipment and instrumentation for the hoist, air compressor system, control room, electrical and motor control centers, and an area for repairs and lay down.

Functional Requirements

The hoist system shall provide for the transport and support of personnel, materials, and construction equipment, and serve as the emergency egress from the underground during shaft sinking, ESF construction (mining operations), and underground testing.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The ESF hoisting system capacities shall be consistent with the requirements of ESF construction, operation, and underground site characterization needs.
- 2. The hoisting conveyance shall be designed to permit the inspection of shaft performance monitoring instrumentation, as well as other shaft inspection and maintenance activities.
- 3. The conveyance system shall consist of a cage and sinking bucket in an out-of-balance arrangement operated by a ground-mounted hoist.
- 4. The cage shall be designed to act as a crosshead for the sinking bucket.
- 5. The hoist shall be designed with a separate and independent power distribution system.
- 6. The hoisting systems shall have a rated capacity sufficient for emergency egress.
- 7. Headframe shall elevate the hoist sheaves sufficiently above the collar level to provide room for normal conveyance unloading and over-travel allowances.
- 8. A hoist foundation shall be provided to accommodate the hoist dimensions and mounting details, independent of the hoist house foundation.

EXISTING

CSCR _____'89 003 Rev. 1

- 9. The hoist house control and operator's room shall be complete with a heating and air conditioning system.
- 10. The headframe shall provide sufficient facilities for dumping buckets during shaft construction.
- 11. The headframe shall be designed and constructed to serve subsurface construction and underground test operations.
- 12. Clearances in the headframe directly above the collar shall be designed to accommodate the rigging of all anticipated underground equipment.
- 13. The hoisting systems shall be designed and constructed for the evacuation of all underground personnel to safety within one hour.
- 14. Area flood lighting and lightning protection shall be provided atop the shaft headframe.

Constraints

- 1. The hoisting system shall be designed to have all necessary safety features.
- 2. The hoist shall be designed to accommodate the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.)

Assumptions

- 1. The existing government furnished equipment (GFE) headframe shall be modified as required and erected for shaft sinking operation.
- 2. The existing GFE 900 HP hoist shall be used for shaft sinking and ESF construction and operation activities.

ange No:	Organization:	and the second						
		Originator:	Origination Date:					
97004	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88					
e: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	loratory Shaft Facility (ments Document (SDRD) NVO ved ESF Engineering Chang	ESF) Subsystem 309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) 012						
planation & Reason	for Change:							
WBS: 1.2.6.	1.1.T							
CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR 012.							
REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 012.								
COST IMPACT: None								
SCHEDULE IMPACT: None								
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.								
	2. ESF ECR 012.							
sponsible Organizat B Secretary <u>P. C.</u> proval: Project Ma	Merkley Markley C. P. Gerte	LAUR-	Date $1/22/55$ Date $12/13/88$ Date $12/15/88$					
	Dianation & Reason WBS: 1.2.6. CHANGE: See t REASON: See t COST IMPACT: SCHEDULE IMPAC ATTACHMENTS: Sponsible Organizat B Secretary <u>P. C.</u> proval: Project Ma	Danation & Reason for Change: WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANGE: See the attached ESF ECR 012. REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on 1 COST IMPACT: None SCHEDULE IMPACT: None ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen July 20, 1988, Propos Exploratory Shaft Fac Design Requirements D Engineering Change Re through 027. 2. ESF ECR 012. Sponsible Organization <u>V. E. Spaeth</u> B Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u> proval: Project Manager, WMPO <u>C. P. Gerta</u>	<pre>blanation & Reason for Change: WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANGE: See the attached ESF ECR 012. REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 012. COST IMPACT: None SCHEDULE IMPACT: None ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to W. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Pacility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027. 2. ESF ECR 012. sponsible Organization <u>W. E. Spaeth</u> B Secretary <u>P. C. Werkley</u> proval: Project Manager, WMPO <u>C. P. Gerte</u> Content Content Content</pre>					

	T BASELIN	ticca m Te chan	ountai Ge eva	n Proj Luatio	éct N Summa	ry				
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 012.							C/SCR No: 89/004		
	Summary of Recommended Actic	ns:								
		<u> </u>	ciect	Office		<u> </u>	Ť	SMSS		
		R4SE	ESD	P&OC	QA	MIES	SÆEI	SE&C	ADMIN	
	Concurrence Concurrence with Conditions									
	Non Concurrence				〇 〇 〇 (2)					
	No Recommendation	X								
	Comment Summary Evaluation: is wanted as a reference to (2) "The report titled "Ex- undergoing review. It has can not be given for use as	(1) "(the SI plorato not bee a refe	Questic ORD or Ory Sha en appr erence	on - I a docu aft Se oved f	t is no ument by ismic De for use	t clean y itsej esign H . Unti	from Lt". Basis" Ll appr	the C/ is pre coved c	SCR this esently concurrenc	
			•							
	Impact Analyses:	· · · ·								
						·				
							÷.			
1										



Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

JUL 21 1988

Route

Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth ⋖ Technical Project Officer

fechnical Project Ufficer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Hanagement Project Office

VHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

iteroived In Configuration
 idanagement Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

CCF RECEIVED

e.

-2-



Multiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WMPO, NV

	ESF	ENGINEERING	CHANGE	REQUEST
--	-----	-------------	--------	---------

I	E	SF ENGINEERING	CHANGE	REQU	EST		ESF11	FMB.	12:25
ECR NO.	012				x	PAGE .	1	_ CF_	1
SECTION	1. TO BE COMPL	ETED BY PARTICIPAN	T REQUEST	ING CH	ANGE	SNL			
SOURCE WBS DES TITLE DESCRIP	IGNATION TION OF CHANGE	SNL 1261 ESF	······	DAT ORI REV	E GINATOR 7. NO	<u></u>	augh		
SEE ATT	ACHED DESIGN CH	NGE REQUEST (SNL D	CR 014)						
NOTE:	The report title added as ESF des which will be To for the data and	ed "Exploratory Sha sign criteria by DC eferenceable (trace d conclusions conta	ft Seismic R Ol4 will able) and ined there	Design be sup contain in.	n Basis" berseded n disclai	requeste by a SAM mers whe	ed to D rep ere ne	be ort cess	arv
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			SEE CO	INTINUA	TICN	PAGE
BASIS F Incorpo ESF fur	OR CHANGE	lc design criteria	that is sp	pecific	to site	and appr	opria	te f	or
PARTICIP QA REP	ANT Rutard	2 DATE 7/1/88		G REPR	ESENTATI	SEE CO IVE OR P DATE			PAGE
1. PR 2. PR	OCEED WITH ECR OCEED WITH WOF		SNO	SCOPE CONST	CHANGE RUCTION	YE IMPACT	SY	_NO ES	
3. TC	TAL COSTS (increase/decrease NOT APPLICABLE) ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION TOTALS	RC	M 	BUDO	SET	PROJE	ECTE	D
4. SC	HEDULING IMPACT	NOT APPLICA	BLE		ENGINEEF CONSTRU			v	VEEI VEEI
5. P P	ROCEED WITH DE ROCEED WITH DE	TAIL ENGINEERING	YESYES						
6. FU	NDING: NOT APPLICABLE CHANGE ORDER	NOT FUNDED, F	PROJECTED	ONLY		- A.	ht.	79/9 TE	T
7. AP	PROVED				ICWG		AN/DA		

.

65

6

ENCLOSURE 2

Date Originator_R. E.	. Stinebaug	besign ch	INCE REQUEST	- Seismic	DERI 014 2 Design	Class Basis	
Description of	Change						
This change required by the special to the ESF.	uests the r working gro	eport titled oup chartered	l "Explorator by the ESF	ry Shaft S ICWG be a	eismic Desig dopted as de	gn Basis." p esign criter	repare ia for
1-1	f						
ESF/Repository				·		•	_
Impact if not a	pfroved		Nr	T BE SITE	E SPECIPIC	•	
Seismic design	criteria u	sed for the l	ESF will 👆	overly_rac d. 1	RH 6/20/8	8	
Evaluation					WBS/	Cost	
	•		,		•		
					•		
	. (6		• • •
	Don	r ex, res					· ···
	Don	PH 48					• • •
O O Tradinal	Now internet	LUT NON CON	בער		concur		
2 Stinelaugh	WK BB date		eur Tal	.	concur		
2 Stinelaugh	Con UKUBB date date		stic JG	Jenne by RRH	Concur		=
2 Stinelaugh	Now con UKUBB date date date		see. Re	by RRH er R Hil	concur		
E Stinelaugh	con UKUBB date date date date		sur SIICJG Sec. Ro	by RRH se R Hil	Concur		
Sturelaugh	Con UKUB data data data data data		sec. Re Chairman	by RRH er R Hil men Signature	Concur	non ci Non ci Approv Disapp Submit	ed roved
Engineering Dir	date date date date date date date date		sur SIICJG Sec. Re Old Chairman	by RRH er R Hil men Signature	concur		ed to fix
Stuelaugh Engineering Dir	Con UKUBB date date date date date date date		sec. Re Official Chairman	by RRH ge R Hil signature	Concur	non ci	ed roved

•

.

ENCLOSURE 3



Nevada Nuclear Waste Storage Investigations Project

Working Group Report

Exploratory Shaft Seismic Design Basis

April 1988



TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	Executive Summary	iv
1.0	Introduction	1
2.0	Ground Motion Due To Earthquakes	4
	 2.1 Introduction	4 5 6 8 9 11
3.0	Control Motions From Underground Nuclear Explosions	14
4.0	Combination of Individual Component Wave Effects	20
5.0	Development of Strain Tensors	22
	 5.1 Strain Tensors for Earthquakes 5.2 Strain Tensors for UNEs 5.3 Controlling Strain Combinations Due to Earthquakes 	22 25
	and UNEs	26
6.0	Dynamic Rock Properties	31
7.0	Faulting Considerations	37
	 7.1 Objectives	37 38 39
8.0	References	40
Арре Арре Арре	ndix A-1: Incidence Angle of Seismic Body Waves ndix A-2: Discussion of the Prediction of UNE Ground Motions endix A-3: Determination of Controlling Strain Combination	Al-1 A2-1
Anne	for Design endix A-4: Depth Attenuation Behavior of UNE Ground Motions at	A3-1
	Yucca Mountain	A4-1

List of Tables

.

1.1.1

.

CSCR _____'89 004

,

2-1	Predicted Peak Ground Hotion Values at the ES Site for an Earthquake on the Bare Mountain Fault and Recommended Peak. Ground Motion Values for Consideration in ES Design	13
3•1	Recommended Motions for the Design Basis UNE	18
5-1	Free Field and Bending for Body Waves With Angle of	
	Incidence θ	27
5-2	Free Field and Bending Strains in Terms of Ground Motion	
	Control Parameters for Earthquakes and UNEs	28
5-3	Free Field and Bending Strains in Terms of Ground Motion	
	Control Parameters for Body Waves With Shallow Angles of	
	Incidence	29
6-1	Recommended Rock Properties for the Different Rock Layers	35

List of Figures

• ••• •

3-1	Locations of Current and Proposed Testing Areas at NTS and the Yucca Mountain Site	19
5-1	Orientation of Incident Waves with Respect to the Coordinate	
	System	30
5-2	Relationship Between Peak Ground Notion Control Parameters	
	and Particle Motions Due to Each Wave Type	30
6-1	Interpretation of Seismic Velocities from USW-G4 Data	36

.

• •

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report prepared by a special working group (WG) authorized by the Exploratory Shaft (ES) Interface Control Working Group (ICWG), provides recommendations for the seismic design parameters for the design of the shafts associated with the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) of the proposed nuclear waste repository at Yucca Mountain, Nevada, Although directly intended for design of ESF shaft liners, much of this design basis is also appropriate for seismic design of other shafts and underground structures which do not affect public safety. The recommendations include parameters for both natural earthquakes that may possibly occur at or near the repository site and for underground nuclear explosions (UNEs) which are regularly detonated at the Nevada Test Site (NTS). An evaluation was conducted very recently to determine the functions which the shafts must perform during the pre-closure period of the repository facilities. Based on this evaluation together with the results of studies conducted to support the conceptual design for the site characterization, it was concluded that the shafts need only be designed adequately to provide for worker safety. A failure of the ES will not affect the public radiological safety.

Specifically, the recommended control motion values which are to be applied at the surface are:

Earthquake:

Maximum Horizontal component of acceleration - 0.3 gMaximum Vertical component of acceleration- 0.3 gMaximum Horizontal component of velocity- 30 cm/sec.Maximum Vertical component of velocity- 20 cm/sec.

USUN _____'89 004

<u>LTYE</u> :

	•		•
Maximum	Vertical component of acceleration	•	0.2 g
Maximum	Radial component of acceleration	٠	0.1 g
Maximum	Transverse component of acceleration	•	0.1 g
Maximum	Vertical component of velocity	•	9 cm/sec.
Maximum	Radial component of velocity	•	12 cm/sec.
Maximum	Transverse component of velocity	٠	12 cm/sec.

An evaluation of faulting potential at the ES site and its vicinity indicates that the annual probability of faulting in excess of a few centimeters (5 cm) is less than 10^{-4} per year. On the basis of this, the report recommends that faulting effects need not be considered in the design of the ES. Further, the report also provides specific guidance for determining or provides (i) the control motions at depth, (ii) the material properties for the different rock layers relevant to seismic design, (iii) the strain tensor for each of the wave forms and the maximum strain components along the shaft liner, and (iv) the method for combining the different strain components along the shaft liner. Finally, to provide further assurance that the design has adequate conservatism or margin to accommodate any uncertainties such as site effects, the WG recommends that the performance of the exploratory shaft be confirmed using best estimate conditions when subjected to ground motions that are a factor of 1.67 times the proposed design basis motions. This evaluation for the larger motions should provide assurance that the major damage of the ES is not expected at these levels.

The report also lists the assumptions and other conditions used to develop the recommendations. In developing the basis for the recommendations, the WG utilized currently available site-specific seismic and geologic data. In recognition of the uncertainties in these data, the seismic design parameters recommended include a reasonable degree of conservatism and are consistent with the seismic design requirements used for similar types of facilities.

í٧

ACKNOWLEDGHENT

•

In addition to the organizations called out in the front page of this report, there were others who helped in putting together this report. This includes J. Kimball of DOE/HQ, J. S. Phillips of division 7111 of Sandia National Laboratories (SNL), G. N. Owen of URS/John A. Blume, Associates & Engineers, Richard Lee (working as a consultant to URS/Blume), and R. P. Kennedy of Structural Mechanics Consulting (working as a consultant to Holmes & Narver). Their contributions included participation in the working group (WG) meetings, providing technical consultation and input to the WG, providing written input to the preparation of the report, reviewing the report contents, and help resolve review comments on the report. Their contributions are gratefully acknowledged herewith.

. . .

1

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report was prepared by a special Working Group (WG) authorized by the Exploratory Shaft (ES) Interface Control Working Group (ICWG). It provides recommendations for the seismic design parameters to be used for the design of the shafts associated with the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) of the proposed nuclear waste repository at Yucca Mountain, Nevada. In developing the basis for these recommendations, the WG utilized currently available site specific seismic and geologic data. In recognition of the uncertainties in these data, the seismic design parameters recommended include a reasonable degree of conservatism.

There are two shafts in the ES facilities configuration. These shafts have a two-stage service life. First, they will support site characterization by providing access, ventilation, utility support, and emergency egress from the underground test areas; secondly, pending results of site characterization, the shafts will be converted to support repository operations as intake ventilation shafts, a function they will perform until repository closure. As discussed in the baselined Generic Requirements for a Mined Geologic Disposal System (OGR/B-2), four permanent items have been identified that shall be designed, procured, and constructed to be incorporated into the repository. The permanent items include underground openings, operational seals, ground support, and shaft liners. The seismic design recommendations included in this report relate to the above permanent items as appropriate. Other items and structures in the ESF will be designed using other requirements like those of the Uniform Building Code (UBC) (Reference 24).

During the operations phase, the ESF shafts will supply approximately 60 percent of the total air flow needed to support waste emplacement. The remaining air needed is supplied through the waste ramp. Exhausting fans on the emplacement exhaust shaft maintain pressures in the emplacement area lower than the pressures in the development (mining) area.

Concrete liners will be installed in the exploratory shafts concurrent with their sinking. Their functions are:

-1-

. to provide effective structural support to the ground

- to eliminate minor rockfall hazards
- to provide a dimensionally consistent cross-section and stable anchorage for installation and alignment of shaft equipment

CSCR _____'89

004

• to provide a low-friction surface for efficient ventilation throughout the life of the repository.

Neither of the exploratory shafts will at any time, be used to handle radioactive waste. Additionally, the liners are not intended to serve as barriers to radionuclide migration or to entry of water into the repository either during operations or after closure.

The shafts are located in unsaturated geologic formations and are not expected to penetrate any aquifers at the site. Further, any perched water zones encountered during shaft sinking are expected to drain fairly quickly. Thus, the shaft liners will not be required to prevent or control ground water inflows into the shaft. The construction joints between each concrete pour are not planned to be water tight.

If one or both of the exploratory shafts were to be completely blocked due to a failure of a shaft liner (which is highly unlikely), the emplacement area would still be under negative pressure with respect to the development area, and the ventilation leakage path would be maintained in a direction towards the emplacement area. If a waste canister were to be ruptured simultaneously with the failure of the ES shaft, any potentially contaminated air would still be exhausted via the emplacement exhaust shaft through HEPA filters (Reference 25). At this time, no credible accident scenarios have been identified whereby failure of the shaft liner could result in a release of radiation. Therefore, public safety does not appear to be an issue in shaft liner design.

In addition, a preliminary analysis has been completed to determine which structures, systems, and components are important to public radiological safety. This analysis is described in Reference 26. Results

-2-

of this analysis indicate that there are no shaft structures, systems, and components identified as important to safety.

CSCR ____'89 004

These discussions indicate that the ES (especially the liner), is not an "essential" or even a "low hazard" facility (i.e., a facility which does not handle or process plutonium) as defined in Reference 1. Based on these reasons, it is justified to design the exploratory shaft liner as a structure which is only required to provide worker safety; i.e., the permanent items such as the liner associated with the exploratory shafts need not be designed as items important to provide public radiological safety, but need to be designed only for a level of seismic input that is sufficient to ensure worker safety and reasonably uninterrupted functions, a level that is consistent with those used for other similar types of facilities. However, the seismic design basis recommendations in this report for the ES are consistent with those required for a low hazard or essential facility, and hence, judged to be more conservative than what may be required. Other non-permanent items and structures in the ES facilities will be designed using other requirements like those of the Uniform Building Code (UBC) (Reference 24).

The recommendations for the seismic design basis parameters given in Section 2 and 3 of this report are based on the discussions in the preceding paragraphs. The recommendations will include ground motion parameters for both natural earthquakes that may possibly occur at or near the site and for underground nuclear explosions (UNEs) which might occur at the Nevada Test Site (NTS).

Section 2.0 of this report provides the recommendations for characterizing the wave motions along with conditions and assumptions used for the development of control motions for natural earthquakes. Section 3.0 provides the same for UNES. Section 4.0 describes the rule to be used for combining the maximum strains (responses) due to the different wave components. Section 5.0 describes the strain tensors including bending strains for each of the propagating waves due to earthquakes and UNEs which should be considered in the design of the ES. It also describes the determination of the worst strain combination case for use in the design.

-3-

Section 6.0 identifies the recommendations for the rock properties for the stratigraphy at the ES site. Section 7.0 presents the WG recommendations regarding consideration of potential fault offsets at the site for the ES design. Finally, the report contains appendices supporting the WG recommendations.

It is noted here that the seismic design basis control motions being proposed for the ES are consistent with the values of effective peak acceleration in ATC-3 (Reference 30) map from which UBC (Reference 24) Zones 2 and 3 are derived for the design of an essential facility. In addition, the proposed recommendations in this report are also consistent with the requirements for important low hazard facilities as called out in References 1 and 2. In Reference 1, the use of UBC requirements for seismic loads for such facilities is recommended. Further, the seismic design basis motions being proposed for the ES are similar to those for nuclear power plant structures, systems and components that may be required for operation of the facility, but which are not important to public safety. They need not be designed to seismic Category I requirements, as per Reference 3. The Standard Review Plan recommends the use of other industrial codes like those ... American Petroleum Institute (API) and American Water Works Association (AWWA) both of which utilize UBC type requirements for these structures.

2.0 GROUND MOTION DUE TO EARTHQUAKES

2.1 Introduction

In Section 1.0 it is concluded that the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) need not be designed as a facility important to public radiological safety. Based on this, the Working Group believes that the ESF design should consider earthquake ground motions (vibratory ground motion and faulting) that are reasonably likely to occur during the operating lifetime (less than 100 yr) of the ESF. Specifically, the Working Group recommends consideration of ground motion conditions that recur at average intervals of about one thousand years, i.e., with about one chance in ten of occurring during the maximum operating life. This would result in more

-4-

conservative values of vibratory ground motions than those given in Reference 30 upon which the UBC (Reference 24) is based.

CSCR _____'89 004

In June of 1987, design and evaluation guidelines for DOE facilities subjected to natural phenomena hazards were prepared (Reference 2). These guidelines recommend that for mission dependent facilities (where confinement of contents is not essential) that a hazard exceedence probability of 1E-3 be used (recurrence of 1,000 years). These guidelines have been incorporated into a draft revision of Reference 1 which was published in January of 1988. The ESF seismic design recommendation is also consistent with this draft revision.

Deterministic methods are appropriate for establishing conservative levels of ground motion for consideration in the ESF design. Probabilistic methods are appropriate for confirming that the resulting motions are unlikely to be exceeded during the operating lifetime of the ESF.

2.2 <u>Relevant Earthquake Sources</u>

As discussed in Section 7-2, faults in the irrediate area of ESF including the Ghost Dance fault appear to slip at intervals measured in tens of thousands of years or longer and, therefore, are an unlikely source of significant earthquake ground motion during the operating life of the ESF. The average slip rate on local faults during the late Quarternary period appears to be less than about 0.02 mm/yr (Carr, 1984-Reference 5). The average recurrence time for magnitude 5 1/2 (potentially damaging) earthquakes on a fault with a slip rate of 0.02 mm/yr exceeds 10,000 yr according to a relationship developed by Slemmons (1982) in Reference 9. Larger magnitude earthquakes (M greater than 5 1/2) would thus have recurrence intervals of longer than 10,000 years, possibly as long as 100,000 years. Geologic evidence suggests that slip on one of the more significant local faults, the Windy Wash fault, results from earthquakes that produce ten centimeters or more displacement per event at recurrence intervals of several tens of thousands of years (Whitney et al., 1986. Reference 10). Although an earthquake of magnitude 5 or smaller might occur on a local fault during the operating life of the ESF, such events

-5-

are not known to significantly damage well-engineered structures. In addition, experience with underground facilities indicates that earthquakes of magnitude less than about 6.0 are not expected to cause significant damage to underground facilities (Pratt, et al., 1978, Reference 8).

The north-trending Bare Mountain fault, located about 16 km west of the exploratory shaft, appears to be the most likely source of potentially severe ground shaking during the lifetime of the ESF. This fault may have an average Quarternary slip rate of up to 0.15 mm/yr (Reference 12), which indicates that this fault is much more active than faults local to Yucca Mountain. Applying the relationship of (Slemmons, 1982, Reference 9) to a fault with a slip rate of 0.15 mm/yr indicates a minimum recurrence interval of about 6,000 yr for a magnitude 6 1/2 earthquake. Based on this and other considerations including the fact that site ground motions derived from this earthquake are roughly comparable with those from suitably conservative probabilistic hazard analyses (References 11, 13), a magnitude 6 1/2 earthquake on the Bare Mountain fault is used herein as the deterministic basis for establishing ground motion conditions to be considered in the design of the exploratory shaft facilities.

2.3 Control Values for Peak Ground Hotions

Among the many parameters that influence earthquake ground motion, earthquake magnitude and source distance appear to be the most important. Many strong-motion recordings have been obtained within 20 km of several earthquakes in the magnitude range 6 to 7. Even though none of these earthquakes are perfect analogs for conditions at Yucca Mountain, the range of observational data is adequate for direct extrapolation.

Regression relationships between peak ground-motion parameters and earthquake magnitude, source distance, local site conditions (e.g., rock or soil), and other parameters have been developed by a number of workers (see the references found in Campbell, 1985, Reference 28). Two recent and representative sets of regression relations for peak horizontal acceleration and peak horizontal velocity are those in Joyner and Fumal (1985) and Campbell (1987), (References 4,6). Results obtained using these

-6-

relationships are presented in Table 2.1. The results assume reverse and thrust mechanisms for conservatism and that the surface trace of the Bare Mountain fault is 16 km from the ESF location and that the fault is planar and dips eastward at an angle of 70° from the horizontal, the midrange of current estimates (Reference 12). More discussions on this conservative assumption may be found in page 9. For the Campbell (1987) relationships given in Reference 4, the closest distance to the zone of seismic energy release, R, was conservatively taken to be the closest distance to the fault plane, 15.0 km. For the Joyner and Fumal (1985) relationships given in Reference 6, the distance, d, to the surface projection of the rupture zone was estimated at 10.9 km by assuming a maximum rupture depth of 15 km; a shallower rupture depth would increase the distance and reduce the estimated motions.

CSCR ____

Based on the results in Table 2.1 and other considerations such as probabilistic hazards, the Working Group recommends that 0.3 g and 30 cm/s be used as control values for peak horizontal acceleration (larger of two randomly oriented horizontal components) and velocity, respectively. The use of the larger of two randomly oriented horizontal components is more conservative than the use of the average of the two components by about 13 percent (Reference 4). Standard practice for defining the design vibratory ground motion for nuclear power plants is to use both of the horizontal components.

Standard engineering practice is to set vertical ground-motion values at two-thirds those of the horizontal values. This approach would probably be adequate for peak accelerations from a magnitude 6'1/2 earthquake at a distance of about 15 km. However, a number of recently obtained close-in recordings of strong motion from large earthquakes have evidenced vertical peak accelerations equal to or even exceeding the peak horizontal accelerations (Shakal, et al., 1986, Huang, et al., 1987-Reference 19, 20). In light of the marginal probability of large vertical accelerations from an earthquake on the Bare Hountain fault and the marginal probability of an earthquake on one of the closer faults (which could be expected to generate vertical accelerations), the

•7•

Working Group deems it prudent to assume equal peak values for horizontal and vertical acceleration, namely 0.3 g.

Empirical observations indicate that ground velocities do not exhibit such near-field increases in the relative amplitude of the vertical components due in part to the relatively lower frequency content associated with ground velocity as compared with ground accelerations. Consequently, the standard practice of setting the vertical component at 2/3 the value of the horizontal component is used to establish a control value of 20 cm/s for the vertical component of ground velocity.

Whereas earthquake ground shaking results from a myriad of seismic waves, the peak motions are expected to be dominated by waves that follow the most direct and efficient route from the earthquake source. As discussed in Appendix A-1, the largest amplitude waves are expected to emerge at a steep angle, within 30° of vertical, at the ES location. These body waves include longitudinal P waves and two types of transverse S waves: horizontally polarized SH waves and orthogonally polarized SV waves with a vertical component of motion. Because the ratio of P-wave to S-wave velocities in the earth's crust is nearly constant (ranging from about 1.6 to 1.7), the three types of body waves (P, SH and SV) are expected to emerge at about the same angle. Futhermore, because of the characteristics of earthquakes waves, the vertical component of peak motion can be associated with P waves or SV waves, and the horizontal components can be associated with SH and SV waves. It should be noted however, that the amplitude of steeply emerging SV waves is constrained by the peak horizontal motions and is therefore limited in its contribution to the vertical motion.

2.4 Checks on Design Basis Motions

Two reconnaissance probabilistic seismic hazard analyses for Yucca Mountain support the adequacy of 0.3 g as a control value for peak horizontal acceleration. Probabilistic seismic hazard analysis integrates the contribution of all known faults and seismic source zones to the probability of exceeding a particular ground motion level and, thus, is a

-8-

useful means of confirming the adequacy of deterministically derived estimates. A reconnaissance assessment of probabilistic earthquake accelerations at Yucca Hountain by Perkins, et al. (1987) in Reference 12 indicates that a peak horizontal acceleration of 0.3 g has a return period of about 1,500 to 3,000 yrs. A sensitivity study by URS/Blume (1987) in Reference 11 suggests a return period on the order of 1,000 yr for 0.3 g. Both analyses are subject to very large uncertainties but tend to confirm that 0.3 g is a conservative estimate of the peak horizontal ground acceleration that is reasonably likely to occur during the operating lifetime of the ESF.

CSCR

004

2.5 Factors That May Influence Ground Motion

In addition to earthquake magnitude and distance, the factors that most influence ground motion include: source type (normal, reverse or strike-slip), rupture dynamics (directivity and variability of stress release on the fault surface), transmission-path effects (wave scattering, attenuation, multi-pathing and dispersion), and site geology (topography and vertical and lateral variations in soil/rock densities seismic velocities and Q values). Considerations of each class of influences are discussed next.

The Bare Mountain fault is a Basin and Range, range-front fault (Carr, 1984, Reference 5), with a normal or oblique-normal sense of slip. McGarr (1984) (Reference 7) has suggested that normal faulting occurs at lower stresses than strike-slip or thrust faulting and that normal-fault events are less energetic at high frequencies than earthquakes with strike-slip or thrust mechanisms. Since the large majority of data that constrain the empirical relationships used in Table 2.1 are from strike-slip and thrust earthquakes, the use of these relationships would result in the direction of added conservatism in the predicted design-basis motions. The Campbell (1987) (Reference 4) peak ground motion regressions used in Table 2-1 take into account fault type (strike-slip or reverse and thrust). In order to provide margin for possible re-evaluation of the tectonic environment by on-going geologic and geophysical studies, the WG has used Campbell's regressions for reverse and thrust earthquake mechanisms. Joyner and

•**9**•

Fumal's regressions do not provide for a distinction in ground motion due to source mechanism.

_____'89

Effects of rupture dynamics are most influential at distances closer than those being considered here. Close-in strong-motion records sometimes evidence (J. P. Singh, Reference 31) anomalous or at least identifiable motions that can be attributed to irregularities in the rupture process or to focusing (or defocusing) that results from the approaching (or receding) rupture front. J. P. Singh (Reference 31) has written about this and his general conclusions seem to be that the near-field behavior produces great variability in individual parameters, no one of which is sufficient to account for the variability in near-field damage, nor is it possible to estimate near-field spectra by using these parameters to set the levels of spectral shapes based on local site conditions. Individual near-field spectra have to be estimated in a site-specific, rupture specific way. Major effects in the near field are due to "enhancement of the long duration pulse called the 'fling,' which is related to the elastic rebound on the fault, and . . . compression of the duration of the strong shaking in the direction of rupture propagation." The long duration pulse is probably most important for damage to longer period structures. As for the effect of direction of rupture propagation, Singh does not discuss whether the near-field ground motion parameters have greater means or medians than predicted by current attenuation functions if the rupture propagation direction is not known, even though higher ground motions for an approaching rupture and lower ground motions for a receding rupture should be expected. As for the expected effects at the ES site, since large normal-faulting earthquakes typically initiate at depth and propagate upward (Smith and Richins, 1984, Reference 21) away from the site in this case, any bias due to rupture dynamics is expected to reduce ground motions at the site.

Data are not yet available to evaluate the possibility of local biases in the regional seismic-wave transmission characteristics. There are some indications that waves may transmit more efficiently in the southern Great Basin than in California, where most of the relevant strong motion data have been recorded (Rogers, 1987. Reference 22). However, the effects of regional differences in attenuation scale with distance and are probably not significant at source-receiver distances around 15 km. Also, the soil conditions that are generally associated with increased earthquake motions are not present at the rock site.

0000

Perhaps the biggest single source of dispersion in the observations of earthquake motions results from the effects of the local geology. Based on Campbell's (1981) estimates in Reference 23 for dispersion from all sources, a site that amplifies motions more than 84 percent of all sites of the same classification (i.e., a mean-plus-one-standard-deviation site) could result in peak motions about one and one half times as large as the hypothetical average site. Conversely, a site that amplifies motions less than 84 percent of the sites (i.e., a mean-minus-one-standard-deviation site) could attenuate motions by a factor of about two-thirds.

Additional considerations are identified below to accommodate possible uncertainties in the determination of ESF design motions.

2.6 Further Recommendations

Until determinations of local site factors are available, added conservatism is varranted to compensate for this source of uncertainty. Specifically, the Working Group recommends that no credit be taken for attenuation of ground motion with depth below the ground surface nor for the reduction in seismic strains due to the stress-free boundary condition at the ground surface. Available surface and downhole recordings of motions in the area of Yucca Hountain from underground nuclear explosions have been compiled in Appendix A-4 and indicate a reduction in ground motions with depth.

Finally, to provide further assurance that the design has adequate conservation or margin to accommodate any uncertainties such as site effects, the Working Group recommends that the performance of the exploratory shaft facility be evaluated using best estimate conditions when

-11-

····· '89 004

subjected to ground motions that are a factor of 1.67 larger than the design-basis motions, i.e., for a peak horizontal acceleration of 0.5 g and a peak horizontal velocity of 50 cm/sec. This evaluation for the larger motions should provide assurance that major damage of the ES is not expected at these 'g' levels.

•



• :

Table 2-1

Predicted Peak Ground Motion Values at the ES Site for an Earthquake on the Bare Mountain Fault and Recommended Peak Ground Motion Values for Consideration in ES Design

Peak Horizontal Acceleration(1)				Peak Horizontal Velocity(1)			
н	J&F-85(3)	<u>c-87(2)</u>	ESF Design Basis	J&F-85(3)	C-87(2)	ESF Design Basis	
6.0	0.21g	0.19g		11.9 cm/s	10.8 cm/s		
6.5	0.27	0.26	0.30g	20.9	16.8	30.0 cm/s	
6.75	0.31	0.30		27.8	20.7		

- (1) Predicted median (most probable) peak ground motion values (larger of two randomly oriented components) at the ES site from an earthquake on the Bare Mountain Fault.
- (2) Campbell (1987) "unconstrained" model; acceleration values have been increased by 13 percent and velocity values by 17 percent to convert from mean of two components to larger of two components. The closest distance to zone of seismogenic rupture, R, is taken as the closest distance to the fault plane, 15.0 km, assuming a 70° eastward dip. For conservatism, higher values corresponding to the assumption of a reverse or thrust mechanism are calculated.
- (3) Joyner and Fumal (1985); distance to surface projection of fault rupture, d = 10.9 km, assuming a 70° eastward dip and 15 km maximum rupture depth. Joyner and Fumal do not attempt to obtain distinct regressions for different source mechanisms.



3.0 CONTROL MOTIONS FROM UNDERGROUND NUCLEAR EXPLOSIONS

The control motions from the design basis underground nuclear explosion (UNE) are specified in this section. In addition, background on the design basis UNE and the various assumptions made in the specification of ground motions are also included. Backup material and additional references are provided in Appendices A-2 and A-4.

The nuclear waste repository to be located in the Yucca Mountain is adjacent to the Nevada Test Site (NTS). The repository must not limit the ability of the United States government to test nuclear weapons. The definition of the design basis UNE must reflect this position. Therefore, the event chosen has to produce the maximum ground motions at Yucca Nountain for the maximum credible yield for any given area (regardless of current or future treaties). Figure 3-1 shows the current and proposed testing areas at NTS and their relationship to the Yucca Mountain Area. Vortman (Reference 14) used the results of a 1977 USGS real estate availability study of several areas of NTS and the upper yield limits established for these areas by the Ground Motion and Seismic Evaluation Subcommittee to define the design basis UNE for the repository site. The yield limits were based on offsite damage criteria with special emphasis on damage in Las Vegas. Given the areas selected and the yield limits established, the design basis UNE was chosen as a 700 kt event at a distance of 22.8 km. This event is the largest yield at the closest practical point (from a UNE fielding point of view) in the Buckboard Mesa Area of NTS. This event results in the worst-case situation for ground motions at Yucca Mountain.

The prediction of peak ground motions for this UNE is done with empirical equations developed for the NTS. The major assumptions made in the development of these equations are: (i) source geology is considered to be : a same, and (ii) differences in the travel paths are ignored. These equations are based on measured ground motion from many UNEs conducted in the Pahute Mesa Area of NTS. The recording stations used were from several areas of NTS including a few at Yucca Mountain. Equations

-14-

· · · · · · · · · · · ·

fitting this data were developed using standard linear regression analysis. An evaluation of the ground motion data recorded at Yucca Hountain indicated that observed ground motions at Yucca Hountain were larger than predicted using the prediction equations; however, the underestimation of the ground motions was within the expected accuracy of the prediction equations (i.e., within the expected accuracy of the mean of all observations at the site). Future work to be completed as part of site characterization will investigate if ground motions in the Yucca Mountain region are larger than other regions in the Nevada Test Site. This work will include an accurate confirmation of accelerograph recording site conditions and an assessment of the representativeness of UNE attenuation equations. In order to provide a conservative estimate of UNE design basis motions, the design basis UNE ground motion parameters specified are given for a nonexceedance probability level of 95 percent (this corresponds to 1.65 times the standard deviation for a normal or lognormal distribution which increases the most probable values by a factor ranging from 2 to 4). The mean values of the predicted ground motions and the recommended design basis values are summarized in Table 3-1. Further discussions of the prediction equations and the various references are given in Appendix A-2.

Assumptions made and conditions used in the development of the design basis UNE are listed below.

- Potential site effects at Yucca Mountain are not included in the specification of the UNE design basis motions because they are not quantified at this time.
- No attenuation of ground motion with depth will be used in the specification of design motions. This assumption is conservative. UNE ground motions are known to attenuate with depth at Yucca Hountain (see Appendix A-4). This assumption along with the use of design basis motions based on the 95 percent nonexceedance probability, makes the recommended values conservative and should compensate for the potential site effects.

 The angle of incidence for ground motions from the UNE to the ES is taken as ranging between 0° (vertical propogation) and 90° (horizontal propagation).

'89

CSCR

004

 For nearly horizontal propagation (60° to 90°) peak radial response is primarily from P waves, peak vertical response is primarily from the Sy waves, and peak transverse response is primarily from the Sh waves.

The incidence angle of the ground motions from UNEs are a function of material wave speed through which the waves are travelling. At first, it may appear that each ground motion component (i.e., P, S_V, S_h, and surface waves) could have its own incidence angle. In practice, however, the incidence angles (θ) for all the components are essentially the same. This stems from the way in which the incidence angle is calculated. This calculation uses the change in the arrival times (Δ t) of a component of a ground motion from two nearby stations, the distance (Δ x) between the two stations and the material wave speed (v); i.e., $\theta = \sin^{-1} (\Delta t V/\Delta x)$ (Reference 15). For the same two stations (i.e., Δx is constant), the wave speed and Δt will change for each ground motion component. These changes will be in opposite directions (as wave speed decreases, Δt will increase). These differences will have a tendency to offset one another, such that the incidence angle calculated will be about the same for all components.

This incidence angle can vary from zero to 90 degrees. A preliminary survey of the UNE ground motion data recorded at Yucca Mountain from Pahute Mesa events indicates that the range of the incidence angle is generally between 10 to 50 degrees. However, because the incidence angle is also a function of distance from the source and because the Yucca Mountain recordings are at distances which are a factor of two more distant from the source than the design-basis UNE, there is a reasonably large amount of uncertainty in the definition of this angle for ES design. To provide adequate conservatism, incidence angles recommended for use in this report are between zero and 90 degrees.
The equations used for the prediction of UNE motions were determined from the absolute peak values recorded on the waveform. No effort was made to determine a fit for each component (P, S_V , S_h , and surface waves). In general, peak accelerations observed in UNE recordings are associated with the P-wave. Peak vertical and transverse velocity may be the result of P-waves or shear waves. All displacements are due to the surface wave components. The design parameter of interest to the ES is the peak particle velocity. It is assumed that the velocity corresponding to the P-waves is the same as the radial component of velocity and the velocities corresponding to the S_V and S_h waves are the same as the vertical and transverse components of velocities, respectively.

CSCR _____'89 004

CSCR _____ '89 004

•

.

Table 3-1

.

Çomponent	Hedian Predicted	Design Basis UNE Values (95 percent nonexceedance level or 1.650)
Vert. Accel. (g)	0.05	0.2
Rad. Accel. (g)	0.03	0.1
Trans. Accel. (g)	0.03	0.1
Vert. Vel. (cm/s)	4	9
Rad. Vel. (cm/s)	4	12
Trans Vel. (cm/s)	3	12
Vert. Disp. (cm)	1	2
Rad. Disp. (cm)	1	3
Trans. Disp. (cm)	1	4

Recommended Motions for the Design Basis UNE





Figure 3-1. Locations of Current and Proposed Testing Areas at NTS and the Yucca Mountain Site

、

4.0 COMBINATION OF INDIVIDUAL COMPONENT WAVE EFFECTS

Newmark and Hall (Reference 16) have suggested that peak effects from the three orthogonal components of earthquake input motion be considered to be randomly phased relative to each other and thus be combined probabilistically. They then go on to suggest that a conservative and simpler approach to this probabilistic combination can be obtained by absolute vector addition of 100 percent of the largest peak effect from any of the three orthogonal components plus 40 percent of the peak effects from each of the other two components. This approach has come to be known as the 100-40-40 Combination Rule.

This same 100-40-40 Combination Rule can be used for the combination of peak effects from the individual P, S_V , and S_H component waves, so long as these peak component effects can be conservatively or realistically treated as randomly phased relative to each other. Such an assumption is reasonable and slightly conservative for both earthquake and UNE control motions. This point is illustrated by the following examples.

The earthquake control motion peak particle velocities for the three orthogonal components are 30 cm/sec, 30 cm/sec, and 20 cm/sec. Using the 100-40-40 Combination Rule, the absolute addition of these three orthogonal components is given by:

$$v_{c} = \int (v_{1})^{2} + (0.4)^{2} [(v_{2})^{2} + (v_{3})^{2}]$$
 (4-1)

where V_c is the combined vector sum, V_1 is the largest orthogonal component effect, and V_2 and V_3 are the other two orthogonal component effects. Using Equation (4-1) together with the three orthogonal component peak particle velocities leads to a vector sum peak particle velocity of 33.3 cm/sec which is 11 percent greater than the largest individual component peak particle velocity. Similarly, peak particle accelerations for the three orthogonal components of the earthquake control motion are each 0.3 g. Using Equation (4-1), the vector sum peak particle acceleration is 0.345 g or 15 percent greater than the largest individual

-20-

component peak value. A review of actual earthquake records indicates that the peak vector velocities and accelerations tend to be only 4 percent to 12 percent greater than the largest orthogonal component velocities and accelerations (Reference 29), so that the recommended probabilistic combination of the control motions tends to be on the conservative side for earthquakes.

CSCR

Actually, this conservatism is increased somewhat by the way peak horizontal and vertical control motions are converted into peak P and S_v wave particle motions for inclined waves. For waves that are inclined 30° from the vertical, the P, S_v, and S_H peak particle velocities for the earthquake control motions become 23.1 cm/sec, 34.6 cm/sec, and 30 cm/sec, respectively, which leads to a vector sum peak particle velocity for Equation 4-1 of 37.8 cm/sec or 26 percent greater than the peak control motion particle velocity of 30 cm/sec. Similarly, for the 30° inclined wave case, the vector sum peak particle acceleration becomes 0.392 g which is 31 percent greater than the peak control motion particle acceleration of 0.30 g. Thus, the combined effect of converting control motions to P, S_v and S_H components and then combining these peak component effects by the 100-40-40 rule introduces significant conservatism for 30° inclined waves.

Conservatism also exists when the effects of the three defined orthogonal components of the UNE control motions are combined by the 100-40-40 Combination Rule. For example, the three orthogonal peak particle velocities defined in Table A2-1 of Appendix A-2 are 9 cm/sec, 12 cm/sec, and 12 cm/sec; when combined by Equation 4-1, these values lead to a combined vector sum peak particle velocity of 13.4 cm/sec, which significantly exceeds the peak vector velocity of 10 cm/sec listed in Table A2-1. Similarly, using the three orthogonal peak particle accelerations of 0.2 g, 0.1 g and 0.1 g results in a vector sum peak particle acceleration of 0.21 g using Equation (4-1) versus the vector sum of 0.2 g shown in Table A2-1.

-21-

5.0 DEVELOPMENT OF STRAIN TENSORS

5.1 Strain Tensors for Earthquakes

It is concluded in Appendix A-1 that body waves due to earthquakes impinge on the shaft with steep angles of incidence, namely, steeper (less than) than 30°. Further, as discussed in Section 2.3, it can be assumed that the three wave types--P. SV, and SH emerge along the same ray path, that is, with the same angle of incidence and along the same azimuth.

CSCR

004

'89

The coordinate system consists of the z axis oriented downward along the axis of the shaft and the x-y plane corresponding to the ground surface. Without loss of generalization, the wave front of each incident wave is normal to the x-z plane, as illustrated in Figure 5-1, so that particle motion is either in the x-z plane (for P- and SV-waves) or normal to the x-z plane (for SH-waves). The following notation is used in the subsequent expressions for strain:

 θ - Angle of incidence for P-, SV-, and SH-waves C_p - Propagation velocity of the P-wave C_s - Propagation velocity of the SV- and SH-waves v_p - Peak particle velocity of the P-wave v_{sv} - Peak particle velocity of the SV-wave v_{sh} - Peak particle velocity of the SH-wave a_p - Peak acceleration of the P-wave a_{sv} - Peak acceleration of the SV-wave a_{sh} - Peak acceleration of the SW-wave v_v - Peak particle velocity at the ground in the vertical direction v_h - Peak particle velocity at the ground in the horizontal direction a_v - Peak acceleration at the ground in the horizontal direction a_h - Peak acceleration at the ground in the horizontal direction

OSCR _____'89 004

The symmetric strain tensor, \overline{c} , consists of three axial strain components and three shear strain components defined as follows:

.-

$$\hat{\epsilon} = \begin{bmatrix} \epsilon_{xx} & \epsilon_{xy} & \epsilon_{xz} \\ \epsilon_{xy} & \epsilon_{yy} & \epsilon_{yz} \\ \epsilon_{xz} & \epsilon_{yz} & \epsilon_{zz} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \epsilon_{xx} & \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{xy} & \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{xz} \\ \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{xy} & \epsilon_{yy} & \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{yz} \\ \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{xz} & \frac{1}{2} & \gamma_{yz} & \epsilon_{zz} \end{bmatrix}$$

where

$$\epsilon_{xx} = \frac{\partial u_x}{\partial x}$$

$$\epsilon_{yy} = \frac{\partial u_y}{\partial y}$$

$$\epsilon_{zz} = \frac{\partial u_z}{\partial z}$$

$$\epsilon_{xy} = \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{\partial u_x}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial u_y}{\partial x} \right]$$

$$\epsilon_{xz} = \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{\partial u_x}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial u_z}{\partial x} \right]$$

$$\epsilon_{yz} = \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{\partial u_y}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial u_z}{\partial y} \right]$$

$$u_x, u_y, u_z, = \text{particle displacement in x-, y-, z-direction,}$$

respectively

;

.•

The "engineering shear strain," denoted by γ , is defined as two times the tensor shear strain, i.e., $\gamma_{XY} = 2\epsilon_{XY}$.

.

CSCR _____'89 004

The extreme fiber bending strain, ϵ_b , induced in the liner by the passage of waves is defined by:

cb - R K

where R

R - Radius of the liner

 κ - Curvature of the shaft axis

Along the ray paths, a P-wave generates axial strain given by

 $c = \frac{v}{c}$

while a shear wave generates pure shear strain given by

 $\gamma = \frac{v_s}{c_s}$

Transforming these strains to the xyz-coordinate system yields the expressions for free-field strains shown on Table 5-1.

Curvature along an axis is given by the acceleration normal to the axis divided by the square of the apparent wave speed along that axis. This relationship is used to derive the expressions for bending strain, also shown on Table 5-1.

For the case of earthquakes, the particle motions in the P-, SV- and SH-waves will be controlled by the ground motion control parameters in the z-, x-, and y-directions, respectively. Comparing the components shown in Figure 5-2a with those in Figure 5-2b, the particle velocities are given as follows:



 $v_{sv} - v_h/\cos \theta$

vsh = vh

The same relations hold for acceleration, where a is substituted for v. The substitution of these relations into the expressions on Table 5-1 yields the expressions on Table 5-2.

5.2 Strain Tensors for UNEs

It is not known at this time how much of the incident wave energy impinging on the shaft from a UNE will be associated with shallow incidence angles versus energy associated steeper angles. However, it is not necessary to know the distribution of the incident wave energy with incidence angle, because the strains due to earthquakes will be an upper bound on the strains due to UNEs, as demonstrated in Section 5-3 below.

The maximum strains generated by earthquake waves emerging with θ between 0° and 30° are compared to the maximum strains due to UNE waves emerging with θ between 0° and 90°. The strains due to steeply emerging waves (i.e., between $\theta = 0^\circ$ and 30°), be they generated by earthquakes or UNEs, are computed from the expressions on Table 5-2. New expressions are derived for shallow emerging waves (i.e., between $\theta = 60^\circ$ and 90°).

For UNE waves emerging at shallow angles (say, $\theta = 60^{\circ}$ to 90°) P-, SV-, and SH-waves will be controlled by the ground motion control parameters in the x-, z-, and y-directions, respectively. Comparing Figures 6-1a and 6-2c, the particle velocities are given as follows (for shallow emerging waves):

$$v_p = v_h / \sin t$$

vsh - vh

The same relations hold for acceleration, where a is substituted for v. Substitution of these relations into the expressions on Table 5-1 yields the expressions on Table 5-3.

004

5.3 Controlling Strain Combinations Due to Earthquakes and UNEs

For the design basis parameters recommended in Sections 2.0 and 3.0 for earthquakes and UNEs, it can be shown (see Appendix A-3) that of all the various incidence angles (0° to 30° for earthquakes and 0° to 90° for UNEs) that need to be evaluated with three possible combinations of P, $S_{\rm V}$ and $S_{\rm h}$ waves for design, only one case controls all aspects of the shaft design:

- Earthquake control motion
- 30° incidence angle .
- 100 percent S_V peak effects plus 40 percent P and S_h peak effects (using the probabilistic combination rule specified in Section 4.0).

Both hoop stress or strain and total axial strain are controlled by earthquake waves emerging at an angle of 30° from the vertical. For the specified design basis motions, UNEs will never control the design. Hence, it is recommended that the designer use only the above combination for design evaluation of the ES.

CSUR _____'89 004

Table 5-1

Free Field and Bending Strains for Body Waves With Angle of Incidence θ

Vava	Free Field Strains					Bending Strains	
Туре	с ^{хх}	ۍ <u>د</u>	¢	, ⁷ xy	۲ _{yz}	۲ _{xz}	۴۵
P	$\frac{v}{c_p} \sin^2 \theta$	o	$\frac{v}{c_p} \cos^2 \theta$	0	0	$\frac{v}{C_p} \sin 2 \theta$	$\frac{\frac{R}{c_p^2}}{\frac{R}{c_p^2}} \sin \theta \cos^2 \theta \text{ (in x-z plane)}$
sv	$\frac{v_{av}}{C_{a}} \sin \theta \cos \theta$	0	$\frac{\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{s}\mathbf{v}}}{\mathbf{C}_{\mathbf{p}}}\sin\theta\cos\theta$	0	O	$\frac{v_{sv}}{C}\cos 2\theta$	$\frac{R}{C_{g}^{2}} \frac{a_{gv}}{\cos^{3} \theta} \text{ (in x-z plane)}$
SH	o	D	0	Vah Cs sin 0	v _{ah} C _s cos θ	0	$\frac{R a_{sh}}{c_s^2} \cos^2 \theta \text{ (in y-z plane)}$
			•				

٠

•

ç

.

CSCR ____'89 004

Table 5-2

Free Field and Bending Strains in Terms of Ground Motion Control Parameters for Earthquakes

Иаче Туре	Free Field Strains						Bending Strains
	¢ xx	יע גע	¢ z z	⁷ xy	7 _{yz}	γ _{xz}	۴۵
P	$\frac{\frac{v_v}{C_p}}{\frac{\sin^2\theta}{\cos\theta}}$	0	$\frac{v}{C_p}\cos\theta$	0	0	$\frac{v_v}{C_p}$ 2 sin Θ	$\frac{R}{C_p^2} ain \theta \cos \theta (in x-z plane)$
sv	ν _h C _g sin θ	0	ν _h C _s sin θ	0	o	$\frac{v_h}{C_g} \frac{\cos 2\theta}{\cos \theta}$	$\frac{R}{c_{\rm B}^2} \frac{e_{\rm h}}{\cos^2 \theta} (\ln x \cdot z \text{plane})$
SH	0	0	С _{ена} , О	ν _h C _g sinθ	$\frac{v_h}{C_s} \cos \theta$	0	$\frac{R}{c_{\mu}^{2}} \frac{A}{\cos^{2}} \theta \text{ (in y-z plane)}$

Note: These expressions are valid only for steeply emerging body waves, i.e., $\theta = 30^{\circ}$ or less.

.

.

•.•



Table 5-3

. •

Free Field and Bending Strains in Terms of Ground Notion Control Parameters for Body Waves With Shallow Angles of Incidence

Wave Type	Free Field Strains						Bending Strains	
	^د xx	ร์ง	٤ ۲۲	7 _{xy}	7 _{yz}	7 _{xz}	۴۶	
7	$\frac{v_h}{c_p} \sin \theta$	0	$\frac{v_h}{c_p} \frac{\cos^2 \theta}{\sin \theta}$	0	0	$\frac{v_h}{c_p} 2 \cos \theta$	$\frac{\frac{R}{n}}{\frac{C_{P}}{c_{P}}}\cos\theta^{2}\cos\theta (\ln x - z \text{ plane})$	
sv	$\frac{v_v}{c_g} \cos \theta$	0		0	0	$\frac{v_v}{C} \frac{\cos 2\theta}{\sin \theta}$	$\frac{\frac{R}{v} \frac{e}{\cos^2 \theta}}{\frac{c^2}{\sin^2 \theta}} (in \text{ x-z plane})$	
รห	ο.	0	0	ν _h C _s sinθ	v _h c _s cos ●	0	$\frac{R e_h}{C_a^2} \cos^2 \theta \text{ (in y-z plane)}$	



. .



Figure 5-1. Orientation of Incident Waves with Respect to the Coordinate System



Figure 5-2. Relationship Between Peak Ground Motion Control Parameters and Particle Motions Due to Each Wave Type

6.0 DYNAMIC ROCK PROPERTIES

This section describes the procedure used to determine dynamic rock properties for use in analyses of underground openings at the ESF when subjected to transient free field strains caused by either earthquakes or underground nuclear explosions. The properties important to such analyses are as follows:

004

Velocity of compression waves, C_p Velocity of shear waves, C_s Dynamic deformation modulus, E_d Dynamic Poisson's ratio, v_d

These properties should be determined for each rock unit in which underground openings are located. Analyses of the openings for transient free field strains, based on the relative ground support to rock mass stiffness, must utilize the corresponding dynamic material properties. Static loadings may be analyzed independently, using static material properties, and the result superimposed over the results of the dynamic analyses.

Figure 6-1 illustrates the stratigraphy of the borehole nearest the ESF site (USW G-4), and includes plots of the measured in situ P-wave velocities, as presented in Reference 17, and of the measured laboratory P-wave velocities, as presented in Reference 18. The plot of in situ values also shows a smooth curve which represents the average of the measured values over each identified rock unit. The remaining plots on this figure represent the recommended P-wave and S-wave velocities as determined by the evaluation described herein.

The most recent Reference Information Base (RIB) for the NNWSI project (Reference 27) recommends the following rock mass bulk densities, rock mass Poisson's ratios, and intact Poisson's ratios.

		· ·	
Rock Unit	Bulk Density (g/cm ³)	Rock Hass Poisson's Ratio	Intact Rock Poisson's Ratio
TCv	2.31	0.10	0.24
PTn	1.58	0.19	0.16
TSwlb	1.840	0.16	0.16
TSv1ª	2.25	0.22	0.25
TSv2	2.32	0.22	0.24
TSv3	2.32	0.22 ^c	0.240
CHnlv	1.82	0.15	0.15
CHnlz	1.92	0.16	0.16

a. Lithophysal rich, devitrified.

b. Lithophysal rich, vapor phase.

c. Value shown is assumed, RIB indicates that value is not available.

The S-wave velocity (C_s) and the dynamic deformation modulus (E_d) can be determined from the bulk density (D), dynamic Poisson's ratio (v_d), and P-wave velocity (C_p) by the following elastic relationships:

$$C_s = C_p((1 - 2v_d)/(2 - 2v_d))0.5$$

 $E_d = DC_p^2(1 + v_d)(1 - 2v_d)/(1 - v_d)$

Based on the current, relatively limited, data on the rock properties, it is recommended that the rock mass Poisson's ratio, as given in the RIB, be used as the dynamic Poisson's ratio, and that the bulk density at insitu saturation, as given in the RIB, be used.

The recommended P-wave velocities were determined as follows:

TCw: The in situ measurements differ significantly from the laboratory values. It is not possible to resolve this conflict with the data presently available. Therefore, the only recommendation provided for this unit is that the P-wave velocity of the underlying PTn unit represents a

reasonable lower bound to the P-wave velocity of the TCw unit (i.e., PTn values are conservative for TCw unit).

189 004

PTn: The average of the in situ measurements over this unit is approximately 85 percent of the single laboratory measurement. This is considered to be a very reasonable correlation and the recommended P-wave velocity is specified as the average of the in situ measurements and equal to 1680 m/s.

TSw1b, TSw1ª and TSw2:

The average of the in situ measurements over each of these units varies between 75 and 90 percent of the corresponding laboratory measurements. As with the PT unit, the relative magnitude of the average in situ measurements as compared to the laboratory measurements is reasonable. Both sets of measurements indicate a slight increase in P-wave velocity with depth. Therefore, the recommended P-wave velocity is specified as a linear variation between the average in situ measurement for the TSwl^b unit (2860 m/s) at the top of the TSwl unit to the average in situ measurement for the TSw2 unit (3400 m/s) at the bottom of the TSw2 unit. This linear variation is further extended through the unnamed transition layer between the TSw2 and TSw3 units.

TSw3: There are no laboratory P-wave velocity measurements in the TSw3 material to use as confirmation of the in situ measurements. In addition, the thickness of the unit is less than the interval tested in situ, so the in situ measurement may be biased. Since the measured in situ value of P-wave velocity is the fastest recorded in the rock units of interest, it seems reasonable to assume that the actual unit velocity is greater than the recorded value. Therefore, the average in situ P-wave velocity measurement (5100 m/s) for the TSw3 unit is recommended as a conservative value.

-33-

CHnlv: The in situ measurement for this unit differs significantly from the single laboratory value. The in situ measurements of P-wave velocity for this thin unit appear to be biased by the underlying Chnlz unit. In lieu of better data, a value equal to the laboratory measurement (3850 m/s) is recommended.

CSCR

CHnlz: The average in situ measurement for this unit is greater than the laboratory measurements. It seems reasonable that this nonwelded material is very sensitive to disturbance and/or confining pressure. Therefore, the average of in situ P-wave velocity (3010 m/s) is recommended.

Applying the aforementioned equations for S-wave velocity and dynamic deformation modulus to the recommended P-wave velocities, and summarizing the dynamic properties at the <u>base</u> of each unit yields the results given in Table 6-1.

As indicated earlier, these recommended properties are based on the currently available, but limited, site data, which have significant uncertainties. Hence, the WG recommends that additional data be obtained from the site at the earliest opportunity to supplement and confirm the available data and recommended properties.



Table & 1

Recommended Rock Properties for the Different Rock Layers

Rock Unit	Dynamic Peleson's Rotio	Piusue Velecity (=/=)	S.usue Velocity (#/s)	Dynamic Defermation Hedulus CPs
TCw	0 10	••	••	
PTn	0.19	1680	1040	4.1
TSulb	0 16	* 2940	1870	14.9
TSulA	0 22	3078	1840	18.6
T5+2	0.22	3400	204.0	21.5
T5v]	0 22	\$100	3060	51.0
(Hu) v	0.15	1850	2620	23.3
CHolg .	0 16	3010	1910	16.5

• 15 -

CSCR ____'89 004

e . . .

Table & L

Recommended Rack Properties for the Different Rock Layers

Rock Unit	Dynamic Polason's Ratio	P.usua Velocity (=/s)	S-uave Velecity (#/e)	Dynamic Deferantion Hedulus Cfa
TCw	D 10	••	••	
PTn	0.19	1680	1040	4 1
T1v1b	0 16	2940	1870	14.9
75-14	0 22	3078	1840	18.6
75-2	0 22	3400	2040	23.5
75v)	0 22	\$100	3060	53.0
r Hut v	0 15	3850	24.70	23.5
CHolz .	0 14	3010	1910	14.5

7.0 FAULTING CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 Objectives

Several faults have been identified in the area of Yucca Hountain with evidence of movement during the Quaternary period. Hence, the possibility of faulting at the ES location and vicinity must be considered. None of the known faults with evidence of Quaternary movement intersect the exploratory shaft facilities. The potential hazard of a fault that may have thus far gone undetected can be assessed and bounded within reasonable limits. This assessment requires consideration of what is currently known about the characteristics of faulting in the surrounding area, including uncertainties. Considerations of the potential impact of faulting on the ESF provides a basis for assessing the relevance of possible undetected faults.

As discussed in Section 1.0, the exploratory shafts will not at any time be used to transport any high level waste materials. During the repository operations, the ESF shafts will be converted to serve as ventilation supply shafts. Exhausting fans on the emplacement exhaust shaft will at all times maintain negative pressure in the emplacement area relative to the development area, which is ventilated with forced ventilation. Hence, there is no potential for exploratory shafts to become an exhaust shaft rather than an intake shaft. Based on these discussions, any fault displacement through the ESF does not appear to impact public safety. It does not also seem to be a serious threat to operations or worker safety unless the fault offsets are significant. Fault displacements in excess of about 5 cm could possibly pose a threat to workers' safety during ESF operations.

The faulting hazard does not merit special design, provided there is reasonable assurance that fault displacement in excess of 5 cm is not likely to occur during the preclosure period. Limiting the possibility to less than one chance in 10 during the preclosure period is judged to be adequate to provide such an assurance. However, because of uncertainties in our present understanding of how the ESF would perform if subjected to significant fault displacement and because of uncertainties in our present understanding of the local tectonic conditions, the measure for adequate assurance is made more stringent by an additional factor of 10. Accordingly, faulting hazards need not be considered in the design of the ESF (which has a 100 year maintainable design life) if the annual probability for exceeding 5 cm of displacement is no greater than 10^{-4} /year. The characteristics of a fault what might pose a hazard can then be expressed as one that has moved during the Quaternary or late Quaternary at an average rate greater than 5 cm per 10,000 years or 0.005 mm per year.

CCC3 ._____ '89 004

7.2 Faulting Potential

Evidence of Quaternary displacement has not been identified on any fault that intersects the ESF or the underground area of waste storage. Except for the Ghost Dance fault, recognized offsets of faults within the repository block do not exceed 5 m (Reference 12, pp. 1-127). The Ghost Dance fault, which intersects the repository block but not the ESF, displaces Tertiary tuff units by 38 m and has a mapped length of 6 km (Reference 12). While evidence for movement on this fault during the Quaternary period has not been identified, the possibility cannot be ruled out from available data. However, it appears unlikely that repeated movements during the late Quaternary could have gone undetected.

The Ghost Dance fault is an obvious geologic feature, yet its potential for movement appears to be insignificant as compared with the faulting characteristics identified above in Section 7.1 to be of primary concern to the ESF. While the more significant faults that bound Yucca Mountain to the east and west do not intersect the ESF, their rates of movement are closer to the threshold of concern for the ESF. The Paintbrush Canyon fault appears to have the highest average rate of displacement during the late Quaternary, about 0.006 mm per year (Reference 12, Table 1-8). The average rate of late Quaternary displacement for the Windy Wash fault is estimated to be about 0.0015 mm per year. Similar faults in the proximity of the ESF would have been easily detected as they displace Tertiary tuff units by 200 m or more (Reference 12, Table 1-8).

-38-

7.3 Design Basis Faulting

No faults with evidence of Quaternary movement have been found in the immediate area of the ESF or in the larger area of the repository block. More distant faults that bound Yucca Mountain along the east and west flanks have moved repeatedly during the Quaternary period. Significant movement on these faults appears unlikely during a typical 100-year time period, and sympathetic displacement in excess of a few centimeters through the shaft is an unlikely response to a local earthquake. The annual probability that faulting in excess of a few centimeters will occur in the ESF shafts is judged to be well below 10⁻⁴ per year. Therefore, faulting need not be considered in the design of the ESF.

004

'89

8.0 REFERENCES

- 1. <u>DOE Order 6430.1</u>, "United States Department of Energy's General Criteria Manual," dated 12/12/83.
- Kennedy, R. P., et al., (1987), "Design and Evaluation Guidelines for Department of Energy Facilities Subjected to Natural Phenomena Hazards," prepared for Office of Nuclear Safety, DOE, <u>Report UCRL</u>-<u>15910</u>.

CSCR ____'89 004

- United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission <u>Standard Review Plan</u>, Rev. 4, July 1981.
- 4. Campbell, K. W. (1987), "Predicting Strong Ground Hotion," <u>Hays, W. W.</u> and Gori, P. L., eds., Evaluation of Regional and Urban Earthquake <u>Hazards and Risk in Utah</u>, <u>USGS Professional Paper</u>, in press.
- 5. Carr, W. J. (1984), "Regional Structural Setting of Yucca Hountain, Southwestern Nevada, and late Cenozoic Rates of Tectonic Activity in Part of the Southwestern Great Basin, Nevada and California," <u>USGS</u> <u>Open-File Report No. 84-854</u>.
- Joyner, W. B. and Fumal, T. E. (1985), "Predictive Happing of Earthquake Ground Motion," in Ziony. J. I., ed., Evaluating Earthquake Hazards in the Los Angeles Region--An Earth-Science Perspective, USGS Professional Paper, 1360, 151-202.
- 7. HcGarr, A. (1984), "Scaling of Ground Hotion Parameters, State of Stress, and Focal Depth," Jour. Geophys. Res. 89, 6969-6979.
- Pratt, H. R., Hustrulid, W. A., and Stephenson, D. E. (1978). "Earthquake Damage to Underground Facilities," E. I., du Pont de Nemours & Co., Aiken, South Carolina, <u>DP-1513</u>.
- Slemmons, D. B. (1982), "Determination of Design Earthquake Magnitudes for Microzonation," <u>3rd International Earthquake Microzonation</u> <u>Conference Proceedings</u>, 119-130.
- Whitney, J. W., Shroba, R. R., Simonds, F. W., and Harding, S. T. (1986), "Recurrent Quaternary Hovement on the Windy Wash Fault," Nye County, Nevada, [abs.] <u>Geol. Soc. Am., Abstracts with Programs</u>, 787 p.
- URS/John A. Blume & Associates (1987), "Technical Basis and Parametric Study of Ground Hotion and Surface Rupture Hazard Evaluations at Yucca Mountain, Nevada," <u>SAND86-7013</u>, Sandia National Laboratories, September, 1987.
- Site Characterization Plan. Consultation Draft, Yucca Mountain Site, Nevada Research and Development Area, Nevada, (Section 1.3.2.2), January 1988.

13. Perkins, David H., Thenhaus, P. C., Hanson, S. L., and Algermissen, S. T., "A Reconnaissance Assessment of Probabilistic Earthquake Accelerations at the Nevada Test Site," <u>USGS-OFR-87-199</u>, 1986.

CSCR .____ '89 004

- 14. Vortman, L. J., "Prediction of Ground Hotion From Underground Nuclear Weapons Tests as It Relates to Siting a Nuclear Waste Storage Facility at NTS and Compatibility With the Weapons Test Program," <u>SAND80-</u> <u>1020/1</u>, Sandia National Laboratories, April 1980.
- 15. Dobrin, H. B., "Introduction to Geophysical Prospecting," Third Edition, McGraw Hill, 1976.
- Newmark, N. M., and Hall, W. J., "Development of Criteria for Seismic Review of Selected Nuclear Power Plants," <u>NUREG/CR-0098</u>, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Hay 1978.
- Spengler, R. W., Chornack, H. P., Huller, D. C., and Kibler, J. E., "Stratigraphic and Structural Characteristics of Volcanic Rocks in Core Hole USW G-4, Yucca Mountain, Nye County, Nevada, <u>USGS-OFR-</u> <u>84-789</u>, 1984.
- Anderson, L. A., "Rock, Property Measurements on Large-Volume Core Samples from Yucca Hountain USW GU-3/G-3 and USW G-4 Boreholes, Nevada Test Site, Nevada," <u>USGS-OFR-84-552</u>, 1984.
- Shakal, A. F., Huang, H. J., Parke, D. L., and Sherburne, R. W. (1986), Processed data from the strong-motion records of the Morgan Hill earthquake of 24 April 1984, <u>Calif. Div. Mines and Geology Report</u> No. OSMS 85-04.
- Huang, H. J., Parke, D. L., Sherburne, R. W., and Shakeal, A. F. (1987), Processed strong motion data from the Palm Springs earthquake of 8 July 1986, <u>Calif. Div. Mines and Geology Report No. OSMS 87-01</u>.
- 21. Smith, R. B. and Richins, W. D. (1984), Seismicity and earthquake hazards of Utah and the Wasatch Front: paradigm and paradox, in <u>Proc.</u> of Conf. XXVI. A Workshop on "Evaluation of the Regional and Urban <u>Earthquake Hazards in Utah</u>," W. W. Hays and P. L. Gori, eds., <u>USGS</u> <u>Open-File Report No. 84-762</u>.
- Rogers, A. H., Harmsen, S. C., Herrmann, R. B., and Hermonte, H. E. (1987), A study of ground motion attenuation in the southern Great Basin, Nevada-California, using several techniques for estimates of Q_S, log A_O, and coda Q, Journ. Geophys. Res. 92, 3527-3540.
- 23. Campbell, K. W. (1981), Near-source attenuation of peak horizontal acceleration, <u>Bull. Seism. Soc. Am. 71</u>, 2039-2070.
- 24. "Uniform Building Code," 1988 edition, under publication by International Conference of Building Officials, Whittier, California.
- 25. Letter PB/S 487, Harig, R. F., (PBQD) to Stinebaugh, R. E., "Effect of Exploratory Shaft Lining Failure on Public Safety," December 30, 1987.



- 26. "Site Characterization Plan Conceptual Design Report," <u>SAND84-2641</u>, Sandia National Laboratories, September 1987.
- 27. "<u>NNVSI Project Reference Information Base</u>," Version 03.001, December 1987.
- Campbell, K. W., (1985), "Strong Hotion Attenuation Relations: A 10-year Perspective," <u>Earthquake Spectra</u>, Vol. I, (page 759-804).
- 29. Kennedy, R. P., Personal Communication to C. V. Subramanian, Sandia National Laboratories, March, 1988.
- Applied Technology Council (ATC), <u>ATC-3-06</u>, "Tentative Provisions for the Development of Seismic Regulations for Buildings," Palo Alto, California, 1978.
- 31. Singh, J. P. (1985), "Earthquake Ground Motions: Implications for Designing Structures and Reconciling Structural Damage," <u>Earthquake</u> <u>Spectra</u>, Vol. 1, n. 2, pp. 239-270.



CSC2 ____ '89 004

APPENDIX A-1: INCIDENCE ANGLE OF SEISHIC BODY WAVES

INTRODUCTION

Strong ground shaking is primarily the result of seismic body waves that propagate through the earth along ray paths. The ray paths curve or refract in response to gradual or abrupt changes in material velocity. As illustrated in Figure Al-1, the inherent velocity of materials in the earth generally increases with depth. This causes the ray paths for emerging seismic waves to steepen as they approach the earth's surface. The curvature of ray paths is explained by Snell's Law which requires a constant phase velocity in directions that are parallel to the interface of two different materials as waves pass from one material to the other. Snell's Law is used to examine the range of incidence angles to be expected at the ESF from local earthquakes.

EARTH PROPERTIES

The velocity structure in the Great Basin increases rather dramatically with depth (Figure Al-1). The average P and S wave velocities for the Tertiary tuff units at Yucca Hountain are about 3 km/s and 1.8 km/s, respectively (see Section 6.0). At a depth of about 3 km below mean sea level, the respective values have increased to about 6.15 km/s and 3.6 km/s (Rogers, et al., 1983-References Al-1).

This increase of a factor of two or more in the velocity of rock with depth is indicative of significant increases in the stiffness and strength properties of rock with depth. The capacity of rock to support large tectonic stresses also increases with depth, at least to a depth of several kilometers. Consequently, earthquake rupture of most importance to ground motion hazards originates at a depth of a few kilometers or more. Also, the relatively large stiffness and strength properties of rock at these depths are required to efficiently transmit the largest amplitude waves away from the immediate source area. INCIDENCE ANGLE

A local earthquake of unspecified location is postulated for estimating the range of incidence angles that would be expected for the largest amplitude body waves. As illustrated in Figure A1-2, the analysis uses the following notation:

> Vs - Velocity of rock at the source depth responsible for the largest amplitude waves.

 V_{ESF} = Velocity of rock at the ESF (approximately = 1/2 V_s).

OS - Take off angle at the source, measured from vertical, for body waves enroute to the ESF.

 θ_{ESF} - Incidence angle at the ESF, measured from vertical.

The largest variations in velocity occur with depth. For simplicity, the earth is assumed to be comprised of horizontal layers of homogeneous material, i.e., vertically stratified. Repetitious application of Snell's Law to ray paths passing from one layer to the next indicates that the horizontal phase velocity would be constant along the entire ray path (Richter, 1958, Reference Al-2). Equating the horizontal phase velocity for waves transmitted at the source with those emerging at the ESF location gives:

$$\frac{v_{S}}{\sin \theta_{S}} = \frac{v_{ESF}}{\sin \theta_{FSF}}$$

The incidence angle at the ESF is then obtained from:

$$\frac{\sin \theta_{\rm ESF}}{\sqrt{2}} = \frac{\frac{v_{\rm ESF}}{v_{\rm S}}}{\frac{1}{2}} \sin \theta_{\rm S}$$

assuming $V_S = 2 V_{ESF}$ for both P and S waves at the source depth responsible for the predominant earthquake waves was noticed previously.

A1-2



Figure Al-1: Approximate Velocity Structure for the Southern Great Basin, after Rogers et al. (1981).



Figure A1-2: Depiction of the Ray Path for the Largest Amplitude Waves to Emerge at the ESF From a Potential Earthquake Source.

Thus, the largest amplitude body waves are expected to emerge at the ESF steeper than about 30° from vertical. Intervening heterogeneities and alternate wave paths are not expected to significantly alter this conclusion.

CSCR ____'89

004

References

- Al-1. Rogers, A. H., S. C. Harmson, W. J. Carr, W. Spence, 1983, Southern Great Basin Seismological Data Report of 1981 and Preliminary Data Analysis, U.S. Geologic Survey Open-File Report 83-669.
- Al-2. Richter, C. F., 1958, Elementary Seismology, W. H. Freeman and Company.

APPENDIX A-2: DISCUSSION OF THE PREDICTION OF UNE GROUND MOTIONS

CSCR .

··_**·**89、

004

This appendix summarizes the background information concerning the prediction equations given in Table A2-1 and used for the prediction of UNE ground motions. This background information includes discussions on how the design basis UNE was selected, the data used in the development of the equations (including the rationale used in the analysis of the data and the recommended prediction equations) and a brief discussion on wave propagation from a UNE. Additional detail on the development of the prediction equations may be found in References A2-1 through A2-3.

•

Table A2-1: Prediction Equations for Stations on Rock(1)

Component	Equation	Hean <u>Value</u>	1.65 σ <u>Value</u>
Vert. Accel. (g)	0.487 W ^{0.491} R-1.792	0.05	0.2
Rad. Accel. (g)	0.239 W ^{0.382} R-1.425	0.03	0.1
Trans. Accel. (g)	0.246 w ^{0.326} g-1.371	0.03	0.1
Vector Accel. (g)	0.511 W ^{0.482} R-1.717	0.06	0.2
Vert. Vel. (cm/s)	8.390 W ^{0.679} R ^{-1.684}	4	9
Rad. Vel. (cm/s)	6.861 W ^{0.544} R-1.352	4	12
Trans. Vel. (cm/s)	5.873 40.458 R-1.208	3	12
Vector Vel. (cm/s)	12.04 40.628 R-1.593	²⁷ 5	10
Vert. Disp. (cm)	1.319 ¥ ^{0.737} R-1.699	1	2
Rad. Disp. (cm)	1.024 W ^{0.719} R ^{-1.486}	. 1	3
Trans. Disp. (cm)	0.598 W ^{0.603} R-1.165	1	4
Vector Disp. (cm)	2.683 W0.675 R-1.640	1	2

<u>Note 1</u>: The vector values at the 1.65 σ level for acceleration, velocity and displacement are less than the maximum individual component because (i) the standard deviation for the vector quantities are much smaller than that of the individual components, and (ii) of the round-off effects.

Selection of the Design Basis UNE

Locations of present and proposed testing areas were shown in Figure 3-1. Testing areas in present use are those at Pahute Mesa, Rainier Mesa and Yucca Flats. Possible future sites have been defined (Reference A2-4) as they are required in the event that existing sites are consumed. The two possible future sites of concern are the Buckboard area and Hid Valley.

The upper limits on yield for each of the testing areas have been defined (Reference A2-5) based on offsite damage with special emphasis on potential damage in Las Vegas. These limits are:

Pahute Hesa	1300 kt
Yucca Flats	300 kc
Frenchman's Flat	300 kt
Buckboard Area	750 kc
Hid Valley	•

(Note, the yield limit for Hid Valley was not specifically addressed because the geology will restrict yields to well below the other sites.)

Using the information given above, predictions were made for UNEs in the closest testing area (to the Yucca Mountain) with the highest yield limits (Pahute Mesa and Buckboard Area - Reference A2-6). The smallest possible distance between these particular testing areas and Yucca Mountain were scaled from a map at this distance and was used in the prediction equations. The design basis UNE was selected as the UNE which produced the largest ground motions at Yucca Mountain. This was a 700 kt event in the Buckboard area at 22.8 km away (note 700 kt was used instead of 750 kt because of the small differences in the predicted values and the already conservative approach of assuming the closest point for the largest yield). Although the yield limit for Pahute Mesa is greater, it is sufficiently far away that the ground motion at the repository site would be less than that from the nearest location in the Buckboard area.

Development of the UNE Prediction Equations

__'89 004

The major objectives for the analyses included in References A2-1 through A2-3 were: (1) to develop a regional prediction model for the Nevada Test Site alone; and (2) to identify and quantify the differences in ground motion behavior at Yucca Hountain when compared to NTS. To this end, data from a number of UNEs were analyzed.

The data set used to develop the prediction equations includes ground motions recorded from a total of 34 UNEs. These events were conducted between 1966 and 1984. The yield variation in the data set is from 80 kt to 1400 kt (9 UNEs had yields > 500 kt; 7 UNEs had yields between 150 and 500 kt; 18 UNEs had yields between 80 and 150 kt). Ground motion has been recorded at about 50 different locations. Of these 50 locations, ten have been located in the Yucca Hountain area. Ground motion from a total of eight of these events were recorded at Yucca Mountain stations. This data set was chosen based on the need for a reasonable variation in yield and distance (from the source) to obtain general prediction equations. The fact that there are a limited number of events recorded at Yucca Mountain included in the data set is due to the fact that these stations were first installed in only mid 1980. All events were conducted in the Pahute Mesa testing area of NTS (see Fig. 3-1). Station geologies may be placed in two broad categories - rock and alluvium.

The prediction equations that were developed in References A2-1 and A2-2 are empirical. The major assumptions made in the development of these equations are: (1) source geology is considered to be the same; (2) differences in travel path geology are ignored; and (3) station geology differences are accounted for by providing separate equations for rock and alluvium. In addition, the data are assumed to be lognormally distributed and linearly correlated in a log-log space (i.e., fit with a power curve). These assumptions and approach are not original. Past studies (Reference A2-7) have shown this to be a reasonable approach in describing the behavior of UNE ground motions. The equations are developed from multiple linear regressions in which yield and distance are considered to be the

A2-3

CSCR _____'89 004

independent variables and the ground motion parameter (acceleration, velocity or displacement) is the dependent variable. The data were subdivided into three major groups (Reference A2-1). Group I included all data in the data set. Data from known anomalous stations (e.g., NRDS area, Rainier Mesa, Climax Stock, etc.)(Reference A2-8) were excluded to form Group II. The Group III data set was Group II minus the data from the Yucca Mountain stations available at the time of the analyses. In addition to these three major groups, three subdivisions of these groups were made based on the station geology. These subdivisions were: (i) all stations regardless of geology; (ii) only stations on rock; and (iii) only stations on alluvium.

The recommendations from References A2-1 and A2-2 were to use the Group III equations for the appropriate station geology as the prediction equations at NTS. These recommendations were based on the fact that inclusion of the anomalous stations would bias the predictions in an unfavorable fashion for a procedure that is meant to predict general NTS ground motions. Inclusion of the Yucca Mountains stations would bias the predictions to lower yields and greater distances (most UNEs are between 40 and 50 km away from Yucca Mountain).

The recommended prediction equations from References A2-1 and A2-2 were evaluated in Reference A2-3. This study used all data recorded at Yucca Mountain stations between mid-1980 and the end of FY 1986. These events were "predicted" with the recommended equations and these predicted values were compared to the measured values at Yucca Mountain. Ratios of measured/predicted ground motions were calculated for each event at each Yucca Mountain station and average ratios for each station were determined. In the analysis of these average station ratios, it was observed that the predicted values were generally less than those measured. The average ratios calculated for each station were always less than the lo value of the prediction equation. The individual ratios calculated for each event at a particular station seldom exceeded the 2 σ values calculated from the equations (1 σ corresponds to the 68% confidence interval for the mean of all the observations at the site or the 84% nonexceedance probability level

12-4

CSC? ____ '89 004

while 2σ corresponds to the 95% confidence interval or the 98% nonexceedance probability level). The conclusion of this analysis was that the prediction equations from References A2-1 and A2-2 provided reasonably accurate results given the statistics of the fits. To attempt to correct for possible site effects with this data set, would imply a level of accuracy that does not exist in the data.

As discussed in Section 3.0 of the main body of this report, the predicted ground motions provided for the design of the exploratory shaft were specified at the 95% nonexceedance probability level. This corresponds to 1.65σ . These values are also listed in Table A2-1 with the equations.

<u>Wave Propagation from UNEs</u>

The UNE produces a radially expanding compressional shock front at the point of the explosion. As the distance increases from the source, this compressional front is converted to a complex wave train of various seismic signals. These signals are the result of tectonic release, rarefactions from layering in the earth, free surface effects at the ground surface and material anisotropies. At distances of interest to the exploratory shaft, the primary wave types present in the ground motions are the body waves and surface waves. Body waves are composed of compression (P) waves, horizontally polarized shear waves (Sh) and the vertically polarized shear waves (Sy). Surface waves are composed of Rayleigh and Love waves. The wave types that carry the majority of the energy are the P, Sh and Sy waves. Because of the depth of the UNE and the radial nature of the explosion, the following assumptions are made about which wave types are responsible for the component acceleration and velocities observed at distances of interest to the exploratory shaft.

- Peak radial motions are the result of the P wave.

- Peak transverse motions are the result of the Sh wave.

- Peak vertical motions are the result of the Sy wave.

CSCR _____'89

004

The peak displacements observed at these distances from a UNE are associated with the surface waves.

References

Vortman, L. J., Ground Motion Produced at Yucca Mountain from Pahute A2-1. Hesa Underground Nuclear Explosions, SAND85-1605, Sandia National Laboratories, February 1986.

· · ·

- A2.2. Long, J. W., Component Ground Motion at the Nevada Test Site from Pahute Mesa Underground Nuclear Explosions, SAND86-0439, Sandia National Laboratories, October 1986, In Review.
- A2.3. Phillips, J. S., Evaluation of Equations Used for the Prediction of Peak Ground Motions at Yucca Mountain from Underground Nuclear Explosions in Pahute Mesa, SAND87-1811, Sandia National Laboratories, October 1987, In Review.
- A2-4. Fernald, A. T., Coordinator, <u>Real Estate Availability Study</u>. Potential New Test Areas. Nevada Test Site, USGS, January 1977.
- . A2-5. Minutes of the Ground Motion and Seismic Evaluation Subcommittee of October 11, 1977, dated October 19, 1977.
- A2-6. Vortman, L. J., "Prediction of Ground Hotion From Underground Nuclear Weapons Test as It Relates to Siting a Nuclear Waste Storage Facility at NTS and Compatibility With the Weapons Test Program," SAND80-1020/1, Sandia Naitonal Laboratories, April 1980.
- A2-7. Environmental Research Corporation, Prediction of Ground Hotion Characteristics of Underground Nuclear Deconations, NVO-1163-239, U.S. Atomic Energy Commission, Nevada Operations Office, March 1974.
- A2-8. Vortman, L. J., Long, J. W., "Effects of Repository Depths on Ground Motion - Pahute Mesa Data," SAND82-0174, Sandia National Laboratories, May, 1982
CSCR _____'89 004

APPENDIX A-3: DETERMINATION OF CONTROLLING STRAIN COMBINATION FOR DESIGN

CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

1. Earthquake C atrol Motion

Horizontal: V = 30 cm/sec a = 0.3 g Vertical : $V_V = 2/3$ V $s_V = a$

2. UNE Control Motion

Horizontal: V' = 12 cm/sac = 0.40 V a' = 0.1 g = 0.33 aVertical : $V'_{V} = 9 \text{ cm/sec} = 0.30 \text{ V}$ $a'_{V} = 0.2 \text{ g} = 0.67 \text{ a}$

Note 1: All results will be normalized in terms of V and a.

3. Earthquake incident angles between 0° (vertical) and 30° (maximum) and free field strains are given by Table A3-2 which was derived from Table A3-1 using:

 $V_P = V_V/\cos\theta$ $V_{SV} = V/\cos\theta$ $V_{SH} = V$ $a_P = a_V/\cos\theta$ $a_{SV} = a/\cos\theta$ $a_{SH} = a$

4. UNE incident angles can range from 0° (vertical) to 90° (horizontal). For $0^{\circ} \le \theta \le 45^{\circ}$: Use same assumptions as for Condition 3 and Table A3-2

For $45^{\circ} < \theta \leq 90^{\circ}$: Use Table A3-3 derived from Table A3-1 using:

$$\nabla_P = \nabla' / \sin \theta$$
 $\nabla_{SV} = \nabla_V / \sin \theta$ $\nabla_{SH} = \nabla'$

These assumptions are very conservative for $30^{\circ} \leq \theta \leq 60^{\circ}$ as they lead to the following wave particle velocities and accelerations.

CSCR _____'89 004

Table A3-1





.

ЛЗ-2



Table AJ-2

Free Field and Bending Strains in Terms of Ground Motion Control Parameters for Earthquakes

Uave				Free Field Strains			Bending Strains	
Туре	[€] хх ,	۶r	ε _{xx}	. 7 _{xy}	7 _{yz}	7 _{xx}	б.	
P	$\frac{\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{v}}}{C_{\mathbf{p}}} \frac{\sin^2 \mathbf{e}}{\cos \mathbf{e}}$	o		0	0	$\frac{v_{v}}{c_{p}} 2 \sin \theta$	$\frac{R}{C_p^2} = \frac{1}{2} \sin \Theta \cos \Theta \text{ (in x-z plane)}$	
5V	v _h c _s sin ●	0	^v h c p sin ●	0	0	$\frac{v_h}{c} \frac{\cos 2}{\cos \theta}$	$\frac{R}{c_{B}^{2}} \frac{A_{h}}{\cos^{2}} \Theta (\text{in x-x plane})$	
SH	o 🎺	0	0	v _h C _g ain ●	v _h C _a coa ●	0	$\frac{\frac{R}{h}a_{h}}{c_{B}^{2}}\cos^{2}\Theta (\ln y \cdot z \text{ plane})$	

:.

.

Note: These expressions are valid only for steeply energing body waves, i.e., $\theta = 30^{\circ}$ or lass.

CSCR ____'89 004

		C 12,	/sec				″g*	
θ	Vp	Vsv	V' (1)	v, (1)	^a p	*SA	a' (1)	a, (1)
0•	9.0	12.0	12.0	9.0	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.2
37•	11.3	15.0	14.7	12.6	0.25	0.125	0.19	0.23
45*	12.7	17.0	15.6	15.6	0.282	0.141	0.24	0.24
53•	15.0	11.3	14.7	12.6	0.125	0.25	0.19	0.23
90•	12.0	9.0	12.0	9.0	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.2

(1) - Probabilistic combination rule of 100% to 40% used to generate these values.

The table above shows that the computed values of V and a are very conservative as compared to the design basis UNE values. Despite this excessive conservatism, UNE will not govern.

5. Effects of P, Sy, and SH will be vector summed using 100%-40%-40% combination rule based on random phasing. For instance bending strain cb due to SH wave is 90° to cb from P and Sy waves.

• • • • • •

Thus,
$$\epsilon_b = \sqrt{(\epsilon_b_p + 0.4 \epsilon_b_{SV})^2 + 0.4 \epsilon_{b_{SH}}^2}$$
, etc.

- 6. Designer is concerned with total axial strain and either maximum hoop strain or maximum hoop stress.
 - a) Elastic computed maximum hoop stress on at unlined opening will serve as a measure of hoop effects.
 - b) Total axial strain, c_a , is given by:

c) Earthquake and UNE incident angles and component combinations which maximize σ_h and ϵ_a must be determined.

189 004

7. Properties Used:

 $c_{a} = c_{ZZ} + c_{b}$

Poisson's Ratio: $\nu = 0.19$ (Results insensitive for $G.13 \le \nu \le 0.24$) Wave Speed Ratios: $C_p/C_s = 1.62$ (Results insensitive for $1.53 \le C_p/C_s \le 1.71$) Shear Wave Speed: $C_S \ge 800$ m/sec Shaft Radius: $R \le 5$ m

References

A3-1. Timoshenko, S. and Goodier, J. N., "Theory of Elasticity," HcGraw-Hill Publication, 1951.

Table A3-3

Wave Type	¢ _{XX}	¢ _{ZZ}	Ĵxy A	¢۶
P	V' sin0 p	$\frac{V'}{C_p} \frac{\cos^2\theta}{\sin\theta}$	0	$\frac{R a}{c_p^2} \cos^2 \theta (x-z \ plane)$
sv	$\frac{v'}{c_s} \cos\theta$	$\frac{V'_{v}}{C_{g}} \cos\theta$	0	$\frac{R a'_{v}}{C_{s}^{2}} \frac{\cos^{3}\theta}{\sin\theta} $ (x-z plane)
SH	0	0	$\frac{V'}{C_s}$ sin0	$\frac{R a'}{c_s^2} \cos^2 \theta (y-z \ plane)$

A3-5

ELASTIC HOOP STRESS FOR UNLINED OPENING

 $\frac{\text{Free Field:}}{(\sigma_X/G)} = 2\epsilon_{XX} + (\lambda/G)(\epsilon_{XX} + \epsilon_{ZZ})}{(\sigma_Y/G)} = (\lambda/G)(\epsilon_{XX} + \epsilon_{ZZ})} + - \text{Lame's Equation} \\ (\tau_{XY}/G) = \tau_{XY}$ (Reference A3-1)

CSCR ____

Principal Stresses
$$\sigma_{1,3} = \frac{\sigma_x + \sigma_y}{2} \pm \left[\frac{\sigma_x + \sigma_y}{2} \right]^2 + r_{xy}^2$$

$$\therefore (\sigma_{1,3}/G) = \epsilon_{xx} + (\lambda/G)(\epsilon_{xx} + \epsilon_{zz}) \pm \sqrt{\epsilon_{xx}^2 + r_{xy}^2}$$

004

'89

<u>Maximum Hoop Stress</u>: $(\sigma_h/G) = 3 (\sigma_1/G) - (\sigma_3/G) - Kirsch's Equation (Reference A3-1)$

$$\therefore (\sigma_{\rm h}/2{\rm G}) - \epsilon_{\rm xx} + (\lambda/{\rm G})(\epsilon_{\rm xx} + \epsilon_{\rm zz}) + 2 \int \epsilon_{\rm xx}^2 + \gamma_{\rm xy}^2 \qquad \text{Equ. 1}$$

where
$$(\lambda/G) = \frac{2\nu}{1-2\nu} = \frac{2(0.19)}{1-2(0.19)} = 0.61$$
 for $\nu = 0.19$

Note 2: For both earthquake and UNE, incident angle, and component combination which maximizes ($\sigma_{\rm h}/2{\rm G}$) will maximize hoop effects on shaft

<u>Note 3</u>: Normalize all results in terms of $\vec{e}_N = \frac{V}{N}$

Axial Strain: $c_a = c_{zz} + c_b$

Normalize
$$c_b$$
 by $c_{BN} = \left(\frac{Ra}{C_s^2}\right)$
 $\therefore (c_a/c_N) = \left(\frac{c_{ZZ}}{c_N}\right) + \left(\frac{c_b}{c_{BN}}\right) \left(\frac{c_{BN}}{c_N}\right)$

$$\frac{\text{For } R \leq 5 \text{ m and } C_{s} \geq 800 \text{ m/s}}{(\epsilon_{BN}/\epsilon_{N}) - \frac{Ra}{VC_{s}} \leq \frac{(5_{m})(0.3g)(980 \text{ cm/sec}^{2}g)}{30 \text{ cm/sec} (800 \text{ cm/sec})} = 0.061$$

$$\therefore (\epsilon_{a}/\epsilon_{N}) \leq (\epsilon_{zz}/\epsilon_{N}) + 0.061 (\epsilon_{b}/\epsilon_{BN}) \qquad \text{Equ. 2}$$

CSCR _____'89 004

<u>Note 4</u>: Axial effects on shaft will be maximized when (c_a/c_N) maximized

FOR EARTHOUAKE CONTROL HOTION

0 - Q*	cxx/cN	czz/cN	×xλ(د∛	съ/сву (*)	σh/2GcN	ca/ch
P	0	0.41	• 0	0		
SV	0	· O	0	1.0		
SV ····	. 0	· O	0	1.0		
1008P+408 (Sv+SH)	0	0.41	0	0.57	0.25	0.44
100 \$ 5v+40 \$ (<u>P</u> +5H)	0 .,	0.16	0	1.08	0.10	0.23
10085H+408 (P+5v)	Ο.	0.16	0	1.08	0.10	0.23
<u>0 - 30°</u>						
P	0.12	0.36	0	0.16		
sv	0.50	0.50	0	·· 0.75		
SH .	0	0	0.50	0.75		
$100 \cdot P + 40 \cdot (S_v + S_H)$	0.32	0.56	0.20	0.55	0.61	0.59
$100 S_v + 40 (P + S_H)$	0.55	0.64	0.20	0.87	2.45**	0.69**
$100 + S_{H} + 40 + (P + S_{V})$	0.25	0.34	0.50	0.83	1.73	0.39
*Vectorially combin	ned per	Condition	5.			

**Controls

.

FOR UNE CONTROL MOTION:

2

3

0.31

0.14

0.31

0.14

2

1 - 100%	$\underline{P} + 40$ ($\underline{S}_{v} + \underline{S}_{H}$)
2 - 100%	$\underline{s}_v + 40$ ($\underline{P} + \underline{s}_H$)
3 - 100%	$\underline{S}_{H} + 40$ (P + \underline{S}_{v})

CSCR

004

'89

<u>0 - 0*</u>	cxx/cN	czz/cN	λ _{xy} /ε _N	cP/cN	σ/2Ge _N	ca/cN
P	0	0.19	0	0		
sv	0	0	0	0.33		
SH	0	0	0	0.33		
1	O	0.19	0	•	0.12	0.19
2		0.08	••	0.36	••	0.10
3		0.08		0.36	••	0.10
0 - 37°	c _{xx} /c _N	^z z/ ^z N	yxy/cN	CD/CBN	_ጥ /26 c እ	c _a /c _N
P	0.09	0.15	0	0.12		
sv	0.24	0.24	0	0.21		
SH	0	0	0.24	0.21		
1	0.19	0.25	0.10	• • •••	••	••
2	0.28	0.30	0.10	0.27	1.23	0.32
3	0.13	0.16	0.24	••	₩. ••• ••	••
<u>0 - 45°</u>	exx/ex	czz/cN	×xy∕t₩	cD/cBN	oh/2CtN	ca/cN
P	0.08	0.08	0	0.13		
sv	0.28	0.28	0	0.17		
SH	0	0	0.28	0.17		
1	0.19	0.19	0.11	••	0.86	• •

A3-8

0.11

0.28

0.23

• •

1.35*

0.94

0.32*

• •

CSCR _____'89 004

<u>0 - 53°</u>	exx/en	czz/cN	λ _X y/cN	CD/CBN	oh/20cN	с∎\ сН
P	0.20	0.11	0	0,05		
sv	0.18	0.18	0	0.18		•
SH .	0	0	0.32	0.12		
1	0.27	0.18	0.13	••	1.14	
2	0.26	0.22	0.13	••	• •	••
3	0.15	0.12	0.32	. ••	1.02	••
<u>9 - 90*</u>	cxx/cN	czz/cN	۶ ×y/cN	CP/CBN	σ _h /2Ge _N	ca/cN
P	0.25	0	• 0	0		
sv	0	0	0	0		
SH	0	. O	0.40	C		
1	0.25	0	0.16	ο.	1.00	0
2	••	0	••	0	••	0
3	0.10	0	0.40	0	0.99	0

*Controls

--By observation, this cannot control; so not computed.

A3-9

·,1.

Controls

Conclusions

1. Earthquake Control Motion, with $\theta = 30^{\circ}$ and a combination of 100% Sy + 40% (P + SH)

For this case, $\sigma_h/2Ge_N = 2.45$ and







A3-10

:

•

• ;

•

AND	COST/SCHE	DULE CHA	NGE REQUEST (C/S	CR) 987
Charige No: 89/005	Organization: SAIC		Originator: N. E. Spaeth	Origination Date: 11/15/8E
Title: Revise the Design Requ with the Ap	Exploratory Shaft uirements Document pproved ESF Engine	, Facility (. (SDRD) NVO eering Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in accordance e Request (ECR) 013	
Explanation & Rea	ason for Change:	:	· <u>····</u> ·······························	
WES: 1.2.0	5.1.1.T			
CHANGE: S	ee the attached ES	F ECR 013.		
REASON: S	ee the "Basis for	Change [*] on 1	ESF ECR 013.	
COST IMPAC	I: None			
SCHEDULE I	PACT: None			
ATTACHMENTS	5: 1. Letter, L. July 20, 1 Explorator Design Rec Engineerin through 02	P. Skousen 988, Propos y Shaft Fac uirements Do g Change Re 7.	to M. E. Spaeth, ed Changes to the ility Subsystem ocument (SDRD) quests (ECRs) 010	
	2. ESF ECR 01	3.		• •
				2) • 1. • • • • • • • • • • •
Responsible Organ	nization <u>M. E. Spa</u> . C. Merkley	eth 11/	House	Date 11/22/58 Date 12/13/88

YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY	
Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 012. 89/005	
Summary of Recommended Actions: Project Office TAMSS	
RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC	ADMIN
Concurrence With Conditions A S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	
Comment Summary Evaluation:	
Impact Analyses:	
Page CCB Secretary P. C. Merklev Date 12/12/88 _1 of _	1

.



Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive. Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JIII 22 1988

CCF RECEIVED

Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Vilmot, VMPO, NV

CSCR __

2

_'89

005

1999

1 . .

CR NO ULI	ويتباعن وربياته البكر متعيين ور	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	اندا ورادب يبي مجوران بالبابات				~ M D- 1
					PAGE		· · · · ·
ECTION 1. TO BE	COMPLETED	BY PARTICIPANT	REQUESTIN	IG CHANGE	6110		
A LEVEL				PARTICIPANT	- 57107	<u></u>	
VBS DESIGNATION	$\frac{23}{1}$	2.6		ORIGINATOR		00	
THE		Z.6.3 Surface	Facilities	REV. NO. 1	_DATE_	12/18/8	7
In the ESF SDRI), 1.2.6.3 S	urface Facilit:	ies Functio	nal Requireme	nts A/E	buildi	ng
(Area 25) (page	3-2) delet	e all informat:	ion under "	A/E Buildir	ig (Area	25)."	
	·····		·····	·····			<u> </u>
	······	· ;					
			·····				
			······································				
			·····				
RASIS FOR CHAN	JF These	factlitten and		undan ala da	SEE C	ONTINUAT	ION F
	111236	Identifies at	e no longer	under the ju	risdict	100 01	the
				~ ~ ~			
						ONTINUAT	<u>ion p</u>
PARTICIPAND	l. D	ATE 6 /2 c/87	ESF ICWO	BEPRESENTAT	TVE OR I	PARTICI	<u>ion p</u> Fant
PARTICIPANTA	CHAIPMAN A	ATE 6/20/80	ESF ICWA	BEDRESENTAT	TVE OR I	ONTINUAT	HON P HANT
PARTICIPANDA CA REF 2000 SECTION 2-ICWG	CHAIRMAN A	ATE 6/20/80	ESF ICWO	BLE	THE OR I	ONTINUAT PARTICIP	ION F HANT
PARTICIPANDA DA REF SECTION 2-ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONYES	ESF ICWO TPO	BLE SCOPE CHANGE	TVE OR I	ONTINUAT	NO NO
PARTICIPANDA DA REF. 200 SECTION 2-10WG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONYES	ESF ICWO TPO	BLE SCOPE CHANGE	TVE OR I	ESYE	NO
ARTICIPANTA A REF SECTION 2-ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	NATE <u>6/2c/80</u> NOTION N UATION YES	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD	TVE OR I	PARTICIE ESYE	NO STEE
ARTICIPANDA A REF ARCAS SECTION 2-ICWG 1. PROCEED WIT 2. PROCEED WIT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase)	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	ATE 6/20/80 NOTION N UATION YES ENGINEERING	ESF ICWO TPO	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD	SEE CO TVE OR I DATE MPACT GET	PROJE	NO
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2. ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) NOT APPL	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	ATE 6/20/80 ACTION N UATION YES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS	ESF ICWO TPO	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANTA A REF SECTION 2-ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (INCIDENTIAL) 	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BEPRESENTAT BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REF ARC SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK Secresse) JCABLE TO MPACT	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWOR TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK Socresse) JCABLE TC IMPACT	ATE 6/20/80 ACTION N UATION YES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BLE BLE COPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALU TH WORK S SOCTOBED JCABLE TO MPACT	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWE TPO OT APPLICA NO S ROM	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK S SOCTORED JCABLE TO MPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE ENGINEERING STIMATE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BLE BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPAND A REF SECTION 2 - KWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W PROCEED W 6. FUNDING:	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK S Socresse) JCABLE TC IMPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BEPRESENTAT BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD ENGINEE CONSTRU	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REP SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W PROCEED W 6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK S S S S S C TH OFTAIL E TH DETAIL E TH DETAIL E TH DETAIL E TH DETAIL E	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	GET	PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W PROCEED W 6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC CHANGE OF	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVAL TH WORK S Socresse) JCABLE TC IMPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E CABLE	ATE 6/20/80 ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE STIMATE NOT FUNDED, PI SPECIAL STUDIE	ESF ICWO TPO	BEPRESENTAT BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD ENGINEE CONSTRU NO	AING	ONTINUAT PARTICIE ESYE PROJE	NO SCTEI
ARTICIPANDA A REF. ASC SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W 8. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC CHANGE OF	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK Secresse) JCABLE TO MPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E CABLE DER	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE STIMATE 	ESF ICWO TPO	BEPRESENTAT	A CHAIRM	ONTINUAT PARTICIE ESYE PROJE	
ARTICIPANDA A REP SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase) 	CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALU TH WORK S SOCTORESO) JCABLE TO MPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E CABLE DER	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE STIMATE NOT FUNDED, PI SPECIAL STUDIE	ESF ICWO TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM SLE	BLE SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD BUD	A CHAIRM	ONTINUAT PARTICIE ESYE PROJE	NO SANT NO SANT NO SANT NO SANT FE
ARTICIPANDA A REF SECTION 2ICWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTS (INCTOBED/OR NOT APPL 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W PROCEED W 6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC CHANGE OF 7. APPROVED	CHAIRMAN A CHAIRMAN A TH ECR EVALL TH WORK Socresse) JCABLE TC IMPACT TTH DETAIL E TTH DETAIL E CABLE DER	ATE 6/20/80 ACTIONN UATIONN UATIONYES ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION OTALS NOT APPLICAE STIMATE 	ESF ICWE TPO OT APPLICA NO S NO S ROM PLE YES YES ROJECTED C	BEPRESENTAT	A CHAIR	ONTINUAT PARTICIE ESYE PROJE	NO CTEL WW TE TE

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

.'89

005

Rev. 6

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

Subparts are:

1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System
1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities
1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces
1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas
1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities
1.2.6.3.6 Shop
1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse
1.2.6.3.8 Trailers
1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25)
1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

Definition of Subsystem Elements

CSCR

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:
 - a. Ventilation system
 - b. Test support facilities
 - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
 - c. Trailer spaces
 - d. Parking areas
 - 1) Surface mobile equipment 374
 - 2) Personnel parking

CSCR _____.'89 __005

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

- 3) Visitor parking
- e Materials storage facilities
- f. Shop
- g. Warehouse
- h. Trailers
 - 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (Pls)
 - 2) Offices for site security
 - 3) Offices for site operations staff
 - 4) Offices for site administration and training
 - 5) Offices for Quality Assurance
 - 6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction
 - 7) Laboratories, etc.
 - 8) Change trailers
 - 9) First aid trailer
 - 10) Test support trailer
 - 11) NRC and State offices
- i. A&E building (Area 25)
 - 1) DELETED
 - 2) DELETED
 - 3) DELETED
 - DELETED
 - 5) DELETED
 - 6) DELETED
 - 7) DELETED
 - 8) DELETED 9) DELETED
- j. Communications and data building
 - 1) Computer/control system
 - 2) Data acquisition (IDS) 🐄
 - 3) Communications equipment
- 2. Provide air quality monitoring.
- 3. Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4. Provide dust control and/or collection facilities.
- 5. Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions.
- 6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life. unless otherwise noted.

Rev 6

3-2

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

89 🔬

3 The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security, including controlled access and emergency response.

005

- 4 The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC). compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.
- 5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.
- 6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

CSCR

Constraints

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4. Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

Assumptions

None.

Rev. 1

1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES

CSCR _____'89 005 CSCR _____'89

Subparts are:

1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces 1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas 1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities 1.2.6.3.6 Shop 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse 1.2.6.3.8 Trailers 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25) 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

· · · · ·

Functional Requirements

1. Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:

- a. Ventilation system
- b. Test support facilities
 - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
- c. Trailer spaces
- d. Parking areas
 - 1) Surface mobile equipment
 - 2) Personnel parking
 - 3) Visitor parking
- e. Materials storage facilities
- f. Shop
- g. Warehouse
- h. Trailers

EXISTING

7

Rev. 1

- 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (PIs)
- 2) Offices for site security and a state of a site operations staff

4) Offices for site administration and training

5) Offices for Quality Assurance

6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction

7) Laboratories, etc.

8) Change trailers

9) First aid trailer 10) Test support trailer

11) NRC and State offices

- i. A&E building (Area 25) 1) Administration

 - 2) Visitors
 - 3) Training
 - 4) Engineering staff
 - 5) Security
 - 6) Labs (as required)
 - 7) Sleeping quarters (as required)
 - 8) Offices for Pls
 - 9) NRC and State offices
- j. Communications and data building
 - 1) Computer/control system
 - 2) Data acquisition (IDS)
 - 3) Communications equipment
- 2. Provide air quality monitoring.
- 3. Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4. Provide dust control and/or collection facilities.

5. Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions.

6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life, unless otherwise noted.
- 3. The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security, including controlled access and emergency response.
- 4. The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC). compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.

5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.

Rev. 1

EXISTING

6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

CSCR

Constraints

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4. Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

3-3

Assumptions

None.

hange tip:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date.
300.68	SAIC	W. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
ille: Revise the Expl Dcsign Requirem with the Approv	oratory Shaft Facilit ents Document (SDRD) ed ESF Engineering Ch	y (ESF) Subsystem NYO-309 in Accordance ange Request (ECR) 014	
xplanation & Reason	for Change:		
WBS: 1.2.6.1.1	. T		
CHANGE: See th	e attached ESF ECR 01	4.	
REASON: See th	e "Basis for Change"	on ESF ECR 014.	
COST IMPACT: N	one		
SCHEDULE INPACT	: None	•	
ATTACHMENTS: 1	 Letter, L. P. Skou July 20, 1988, Proj Exploratory Shaft 1 Design Requirement: Engineering Change through 027. ESF ECR 014. 	sen to M. E. Spaeth, posed Changes to the Facility Subsystem s Document (SDRD) Requests (ECRs) 010	
esponsible Organizatio	on <u>M. E. Spaeth</u>	Milant	Date

e?	YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY							
Baseline Change: Revise approved ESF-ECR 014.	se ESF SDRD in accordance with C/SCR No: 89/006							
Summary of Recommended	i Actions:							
	Project Office							
	RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN							
Concurrence								
Concurrence with Condit								
Non Concurrence								
No Recommendation								
Comment Summary Evaluat	ition:							
Impact Analyses:								
Ali	page Page							
CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Me</u>	$\frac{ erk ev}{ \lambda \lambda \delta } = \frac{1}{ \lambda \lambda \delta }$							

.



CSCR Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518

Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

006

'89

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications

International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

1/1 JUL 21 1988 Route Copies -

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEH DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Vorking Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> · Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JUI 22 1988

CCF RECEIVED

Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV 006

20 1993

89

CSCR

	ES	F ENGINE	ERING C	IMITUE	REQU	EST		F M	
CR NO. 014					· · ·	:	PAGE	1	OF
ECTION 1. TO BE OURCE VBS DESIGNATION TILE DESCRIPTION OF 0	COMPLE	TED BY PAF N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.3.9 (Area 25)	ALE BUIL		NG CH PAJ DA OR REV	IANGE	SAIC 6/10/ SAIC	<u>88</u> 12/1	8/87
In the ESF SDRI	delete	the entire	section	1.2.6.3.	9 A/E	Building	(Area	25)	
									
			·						
<u> </u>									
							·		
				···					
BASIS FOR CHAN	GE The	facilities	s are no l	onger un	der th	e jurisd:	<u>SEE C</u> lction	of, th	LATION P
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
						<u>α</u> ()			JATION P
		. DATE 6/2	20/50	ESF ICVA	J REP		SEE C VE OR DATE	CONTINI PARTI 6/2,	JATION P ICIPANT
PARTICIPANT DA REI	CHAIRM/	DATE 6/	<u>zc/50</u> N01	ESF ICVA	ABLE		SEE C VE OR DATE	DONTINI PARTI 6/2/	JATION P ICIPANT
PARTICIPANT DA REF SECTION 2. 4CWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT	CHAIRM/ TH ECR E TH WORK	DATE <u>6</u> DATE <u>6</u> N ACTION	ves	ESF ICH TPO	ABLE	CHANGE RUCTION	SEE C VE OR DATE_ MIPACT		JATION P ICIPANT ZRE NO YES_
ARTICIPANT DA RER SECTION 2. 4CWG 1. PROCEED WI 2. PROCEED WI 3. TOTAL COSTI		DATE 6/2	VES YES	ESF ICH TPO	ABLE	CHANGE RUCTION BUDO	SET	ES	JATION P ICIPANT ZRE NO YES_ NECTED
ARTICIPANT DA RER SECTION 2. ICWG 1. PROCEED WI 2. PROCEED WI 3. TOTAL COST (INCTIMENT) NOT APPL	CHAIRM/ TH ECR E TH WORK	DATE 6/2	YES YES	ESF ICUR TPO	ABLE SCOPE CONST	CHANGE RUCTION BUDO	YE OR TOATE	ES	
ARTICIPANE DA RER DA RER SECTION 2. 4CWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COST (INCTOBED NOT APPL 4. SCHEDULING	CHAIRM/ TH ECR E TH WORK	DATE 6/2	EERING TRUCTION	ESF ICVA TPO T APPLIC NO NO	ABLE SCOPE CONST		SEE C VE OR DATE_ WIPACT		
ARTICIPANT DA REP SECTION 2. 4CWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COST (INCTOBED WT 4. SCHEDULING 5. PROCEED W PROCEED W	CHAIRM/ TH ECR E TH WORK Secresse) ICABLE IMPACT	ENGIN CONSTOTALS	VES VES REPRING TRUCTION	ESF ICWA TPO	ABLE SCOPE CONST	CHANGE RUCTION BUDC ENGINEER CONSTRU	SET	ES	
ARTICIPANE DA REP DA REP SECTION 2. 4CWG 1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT 3. TOTAL COSTR (INCRESSION 	CHAIRM/ TH ECR E TH WORK Secresse) ICABLE IMPACT	ENGIN CONSTOTALS IN ACTION EVALUATION ENGINEE IL ENGINEE IL ESTIMATE	NOT YES YES TRUCTION APPLICABLE RING E JNDED, PRO	ESF ICWA TPO APPLIC NO NO ROM	ABLE SCOPE CONST			PART PART ES PRC	

•

CSCR ____'89 006 PROPOSED MODIFICATION Rev. 5 A&E BUILDING (AREA 25) 1.2.6.3.9 Section Deleted

Rev. 1

1.2.6.3.9 A&E BUILDING (AREA 25)

EXISTING

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The Administrative and Engineering (A&E) building includes all the facilities for the support functions that are required to support the ESF construction and operations. As a minimum, this includes: offices and administrative support facilities; the facilities and systems for storing, preserving, and retrieving of ESF information and documents during the design, construction, and testing phases of the facility; the facilities and systems for personnel training; the facilities and systems for visitors; and the facilities and systems for showers and a change room.

Functional Requirements

The A&E building shall provide support for personnel and services during the ESF construction, and operation for the site characterization program. This facility shall accommodate the following types of activities and services:

- 1. Administrative services
- 2. Multipurpose conference, training, and visitor's area
- 3. Engineering services
- 4. Testing support services (personnel offices)
- 5. Industrial safety
- 6. Environmental health and safety
- 7. Laboratory
- 8. Required on site administrative, environmental, and safety records

- 9. Training
- 10. Visitors orientation and processing

Performance Criteria

- 1. A&E building facilities shall have space, supporting equipment, and furniture as necessary and appropriate to satisfy the needs of ESF operations and underground site characterization.
- 2. Space and facilities shall support the training, certification, and requalification of operation and supervisory personnel.
- 3. During ESF construction and testing, visitor facilities shall be available. The facilities shall support a minimum of 50 visitors on the surface and 10 visitors underground at any one time.
- 4. A multi-purpose room which will seat a minimum of 50 people shall be provided as part of the administrative area. This room shall be used for mine training, visitors, and conferences.

3.9-1



3.7-2

	NNWSI PROJECT Page 1 of 1 N-AD-036 COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/SCR) 9/87
Change 'ko: 0	rganization: Originator: Origination Date:
89/007	SAIC N. E. Spaeth 11/15/88
Title: Revise the Explo Design Requireme with the Approve	ratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem nts Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance d ESF Engineering Change Request (ECR) 015
Explanation & Reason fo WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.	or Change: T
CHANGE: See the	attached ESF ECR 015.
REASON: See the	"Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 015.
COST IMPACT: No	ne
SCHEDULE IMPACT:	None
ATTACHMENTS: 1.	Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.
2.	ESF ECR 015.
Responsible Organizatio CCB Secretary <u>P. C. 1</u> Approval: Project Man	n <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> Werkley ager, WMPO <u>VC. P. Gertz</u>
	Change 'KD: 0 89/007 Title: Revise the Explo Design Requireme with the Approve Explanation & Reason for WBS: 1.2.6.1.1. CHANGE: See the REASON: See the COST IMPACT: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: ATTACHMENTS: 1. 2. 2. Project Mani

	EASELI	ie chan	IGE EV?	LUATI	CH SUM	'ARY			
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 015.	SDRD	in acc	ordanc	e with		C/SC7 89/0	R No: 007	
		. 1			•				
	Summary of Recommended Actic	ons: 2.		~***~			4	CMCC	
		RESE	ESD	2550	<u></u>	MIES	SGEI	SEGC	ADMIN
	Concurrence			X	X	X	\mathbf{X}	\mathbf{X}	X
	Concurrence with Conditions								
•	Non Concurrence					· 🔲			\Box
	No Recommendation								
	Comment Summary Evaluation:					· .	 - -		
	Impact Analyses:							<u> </u>	
						· . • .			
							• • •		
	Myerke	ily					Page		



م الأو مع المراجعة ا 007 CSCR Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518 RECEIVED JUL 2 0 1988 M. E. SPAETH JUL 21 1988 for " Route Mun Copies -

Michael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANCE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

CCF RECEIVED

Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Vilmot, VMPO, NV SCR

'89

007

1999

	ESF ENGINEERING	CSCR	189 007 NUEST	
ECR 1:0. 015	می این می این می از می این می		PAG	ESF11.FM8-12/2 EOF1
SECTION 1. TO BE O OA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CI	COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6.0 L.2.6.0 General ANGE Shaft Facility	REQUESTING (P D C Exploratory R	CHANGE ARTICIPANT SAIO ATE 57TT RIGINATOR SAIO EV. NODATE	C J/88 C 12/18/87
In the ESF SDRD Codes, and Speci regulation, code to "Except for t edition or revis is to be used."	1.2.6.0, General Explora fications (page 0-1), ch , or standard in effect he 12/25/87 Draft Depart ion of a regulation, cod	tory Shaft Fac ange "The late as of October ment of Energy e or standard	ility, Applicabl st edition or re 1. 1987. is to b Order DOE 6430. in effect as of	e Regulations vision of a ne used." 1A. the latest October 1, 198
BASIS FOR CHANG	E Lester P. Skousen let	ter dated Marc	SEE h 23, 1988.	CONTINUATION PAC
PARTICIPANT//	DATE 6/2/38	ESF ICWG RE	PRESENTATIVE OR	CONTINUATION PAC PARTICIPANT 6/21/00
SECTION 2. ICWA C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	HAIRMAN ACTION N ECR EVALUATIONYES	NO SCO	PE CHANGE STRUCTION IMPAC	YESNO TYES
3. TOTAL COSTS (Incresse/de	CTABLE TOTALS	ROM	BUDGET	PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING I	MPACTNOT APPLICAE	BLE	ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION	WEI
5. PROCEED WIT	H DETAIL ENGINEERING	YESK)	
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC. CHANGE ORD	ABLENOT FUNDED, P ERSPECIAL STUDIE	ROJECTED ONLY	ICWG CHAIR	AMAN DATE
7. APPROVED			June K.	L. M. T. J. M. MANDATE

E.S.

5

CSCR .____89 007

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

1.2.6.0 GENERAL EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY

Subparts are:

1.2.6.1 Site 1.2.6.2 Utilities 1.2.6.3 Surface Facilities 1.2.6.4 First Shaft 1.2.6.5 Second Shaft 1.2.6.6 Underground Excavations 1.2.6.7 Underground Utility Systems 1.2.6.8 Underground Tests

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) is defined by those systems, subsystems, and components used for in situ site characterization and performance confirmation testing of a candidate site for a repository. The ESF is defined as the surface and underground facilities (including shafts and connecting drifts) and supporting systems required to support site characterization testing at depth. (See Appendix A, Sketches 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.)

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

It is the responsibility of the Architect-Engineer (A/E) to identify which specific regulations. codes, and standards apply from the regulations, orders, codes, and specifications listed in this document. Citations can be found in each section of this document as applicable. Specific citations for the applicable regulations, codes, and specifications can be found in the ESF Basis for Design Documents. Appendix E contains a listing of some additional commonly used regulations, codes, and standards. Except for the 12/25/87 Draft Department of Energy Order DOE 6430 1A, the latest edition or revison of a regulation, code or standard in effect as of October 1, 1987, is to be used. In the event of conflicting requirements, the most stringent shall be applied. The Director of the Waste Management Project Office (WMPO), or his designee, shall be requested in writing to approve or obtain any required waivers.

Functional Requirements

1. Support in situ site characterization for the Mined Geologic Disposal System and provide testing facilities for in situ site characterization as required by DOE/OGR milestones and the Site Characterization Plan.

2. Provide an ESF whose permanent items can be incorporated into the repository and which can be used to support phase 1 repository construction. Those items, listed below, are the ESF permanent systems, structures, and components that shall be designed, procured, and constructed to be incorporated into the repository. The

0.1

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

.'89 🖹 0 0 7

permanent items must be designed to have a maintainable life and quality as specified for the repository.

- a. Underground Opening(s) space created by mining or drilling, including those zones within the rock altered by that process.
- b. Shaft Liner(s) all components placed between the inside limits of the shaft and the accessible extent of the underground opening.
- c. Ground Support any means used to reinforce rock and/or control the movement of rock except for removable or replaceable hardware.
- 3. Provide a suitable location for in situ site characterization.
- 4. Provide equipment and facilities for ensuring a safe, healthful, and productive working environment.
- 5. Provide the facilities to alert on-site personnel of possibly dangerous situations.
- 6. Provide design and construction methods that will demonstrate licensability and constructability for the candidate repository.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The ESF shall be designed to support site characterization by providing facilities to meet the needs of in situ site characterization testing.
- 2. Underground openings shall be developed to meet the needs of in situ site characterization, including basic needs for the initially planned tests. Additionally an allowance for uncertainties for the test area needs at the main test level has been set at 100 percent; i.e., all major systems for ventilation, utilities, emergency egress, rock handling, personnel support, and others shall be analyzed to determine the need for and the impact associated with this uncertainty allowance. If it can be demonstrated that critical parts of the allowance would require excessive costs, schedule, test disruption, or other program impacts to design, procurement, and/or construction later (after the basic test plan needs are completed), consideration shall be given to designing, procuring, and/or constructing these critical items as part of the initial facility. The uncertainty allowance for each of the major ESF systems shall be determined by an analysis of the following systems:

0-2

Description

Underground test area at the main test level

Systems

- Site
- Utilities
- Surface facilities
- First shaft
- Second shaft
- Underground excavations

Uncertainty Allowance

100 percent

DETERMINED BY ANALYSES IN THE TITLE I DESIGN PHASE
Rev. 6

007

.'89

- Underground utility systems Underground tests

Specific allowances for each major system shall be identified and incorporated prior to the start of Title II design (detailed design).

- 3. in situ and in-shaft testing shall satisfy the requirements of the DOE/OGR milestones and the Site Characterization Plan (SCP).
- 4. Those ESF structures, systems, and components that are incorporated into the repository shall be designed and constructed to meet the requirements of 10 CFR Part 60. Compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR Part 60 will be demonstrated in the license application.
- 5. ESF permanent structures, systems, and components that will be incorporated into the repository shall be designed and constructed with the same criteria, standards. and Quality Assurance levels as required for the repository, to the extent known at the time of ESF design.
- 6. Drill cores from USW G-4 and other existing geologic data shall be used to design the ESF shafts and underground openings. - Alerand . C
- 7. Quality and quantity of uncontaminated ventilation air supplied to the subsurface facilities of the ESF system shall provide a safe, healthy, and productive working environment to operating personnel.
- 8. Alarm systems shall indicate when the various monitored conditions exceed predetermined specified limits. Redundant systems shall be installed as required by applicable
- regulations. 9. Monitoring of conditions such as noise, noxious or flammable gas, and radon shall be conducted in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations.
- 10. ESF openings, boreholes, and their seals shall be designed so that they do not become pathways that compromise the repository's ability to meet the performance objectives. of 10 CFR Part 60. Compliance with this criterion will be demonstrated in the license application.
- 11. Shafts and other underground excavations shall be designed and constructed with reasonably available technology similar to or corresponding with the techniques planned for the candidate repository.
- 12. All geotechnical information and assumptions used in the design of underground features (including seismic criteria)'shall be consistent with information contained in the baselined repository Reference Information Base (RIB) or traceable to NNWSI Project published information. See Appendix D for the indexes and cross references to other applicable and referenceable Project documentation.
- 13. The ESF shall be designed to include on-site facilities and services that ensure a safe and timely response to emergency conditions and that facilitate the use of available off-site services (such as fire, police, medical, and ambulance service) that may aid in recovery from emergencies.

Rev. 6

Interface Control Requirements

1. The basic interface control requirements are established by the NNWSI Project ESF Interface Control Procedure (ICP). Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) 03-05. This procedure is applicable to all work to be performed by participating organizations and contractors during the engineering phases for the ESF. This is an interim procedure and, as such, shall apply until the NNWSI Project Systems Engineering Management Plan (SEMP) and the NNWSI Project Configuration Management Plan (CMP) with appropriate implementing procedures have been finalized, approved, and implemented within the NNWSI Project. Specific working groups may be formed, as required, to coordinate Project-specific interfaces.

Constraints

- 1. The ESF system shall comply with all applicable federal environmental regulations and with state and local environmental regulations consistent with the DOE's responsibilities under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (NWPA). Such compliance could include the following:
 - a. The designs for systems which contain point-source discharges of treated waste waters into surface-water systems shall comply with the provisions of the Clean Water Act (as amended) as implemented through the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit process.
 - b. The design for the management and disposal of solid and any hazardous wastes (excluding any radioactive wastes) shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) (as amended) which could include RCRA permitting for the hazardous wastes.
 - c. The design for systems which handle, use, and/or dispose of any toxic substances shall comply with the requirements of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), as amended. Federal regulations implementing TSCA are coded in Title 40, Chapter I, Subchapter R.
 - d. The design of systems shall ensure that the noise levels of those systems shall be controlled in accordance with the requirements of the Noise Control Act of 1972.

- e. The design for any system or activity involving underground injections shall comply with the provision of the Safe Drinking Water Act (as amended) which could require an Underground Injection Control (UIC) permit.
- 2. The ESF shall be designed so that the effects of credible disruptive events as defined in the RIB (e.g., flooding, fires, and explosions) shall be limited from spreading through the facility.
- 3. The engineered barrier system must be designed such that other systems, structures, and components of the ESF and the candidate repository do not eventually become

0.4

Rev. 6

ground-water flow paths and do not promote the release of radionuclides to the accessible environment.

4. The structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed so that natural phenomena and environmental conditions anticipated at the ESF and candidate repository will not interfere with necessary safety functions.

5. The structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located to withstand the effects of credible fires and explosions as well as all other postulated design basis accidents as defined in the RIB.

6. The ESF permanent systems, structures, and components important to safety shall be designed to ensure continued safe repository operation or safe repository shutdown and personnel evacuation, if necessary, under conditions resulting from the effects of natural phenomena and design-basis accidents.

7. To the extent practicable, the ESF shall be designed to incorporate the use of noncombustible and heat-resistant materials.

8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata, and the ground-water system shall be considered in the ESF design.

9. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations. consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the support services and equipment.

10. The ESF shall be designed, constructed, and operated to meet decommissioning and closure requirements of applicable federal, state, and local codes.

11. The design shall allow for fugitive and stationary source dust control at potential dust generation areas such as roads and earth moving sites to minimize airborne particulates, as required by applicable federal, state, and local codes.

Assumptions

- 1. The site shall be located such that, based on expected ground-water conditions, it will be unlikely that engineering measures beyond reasonably available technology will be required for ESF construction, operation, or closure.
- 2. The responsibilities of the NNWSI Project ESF participants are defined in the ESF Project Management Plan.
- 3. The design shall assume that the shaft subcontractor will be totally self-sufficient with respect to the physical mine plant, except for government-furnished utilities, equipment, and facilities.

1.2.6.0 GENERAL EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY

EXISTING

189 - 007

Rev. 1

Subparts are:

1.2.6.1	Site
1.2.6.2	Utilities
1.2.6.3	Surface Facilities
1.2.6.4	First Shaft and the state of th
1.2.6.5	Second Shaft
1.2.6.6	Underground Excavations
1.2.6.7	Underground Utility System
1.2.6.8	Underground Tests
• .	

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) is defined by those systems, subsystems, and components used for in situ site characterization and performance confirmation testing of a candidate site for a repository. The ESF is defined as the surface and underground facilities (including shafts and connecting drifts) and supporting systems required to support site characterization testing at depth. (See Appendix A, Sketches 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.)

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

It is the responsibility of the Architect-Engineer (A/E) to identify which specific regulations, codes, and standards apply from the regulations, orders, codes, and specifications listed in this document. Citations can be found in each section of this document as applicable. Specific citations for the applicable regulations, codes, and specifications can be found in the ESF Basis for Design Documents. Appendix E contains a listing of some additional commonly used regulations, codes, and standards. The latest edition or revision of a regulation, code, or standard in effect as of October 1, 1987, is to be used. In the event of conflicting requirements, the most stringent shall be applied. The Director of the Waste Management Project Office (WMPO), or his designee, shall be requested in writing to approve or obtain any required waivers.

Functional Requirements

1. Support in situ site characterization for the Mined Geologic Disposal System and provide testing facilities for in situ site characterization as required by DOE/OGR milestones and the Site Characterization Plan.

2. Provide an ESF whose permanent items can be incorporated into the repository and which can be used to support phase I repository construction. Those items. listed below, are the ESF permanent systems, structures, and components that shall be designed, procured, and constructed to be incorporated into the repository. The permanent items must be designed to have a maintainable life and quality as specified for the repository.

0-1

189 00/

EXISTING

Rev. 1

- a. Underground Opening(s) space created by mining or drilling, including those zones within the rock altered by that process.
- b. Shaft Liner(s) all components placed between the inside limits of the shaft and the accessible extent of the underground opening.

- c. Ground Support any means used to reinforce rock and/or control the movement of rock except for removable or replaceable hardware.
- 3. Provide a suitable location for in situ site characterization. «
- 4. Provide equipment and facilities for ensuring a safe, healthful, and productive working environment.
- 5. Provide the facilities to alert on-site personnel of possibly dangerous situations.
- 6. Provide design and construction methods that will demonstrate licensability and constructability for the candidate repository.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The ESF shall be designed to support site characterization by providing facilities to meet the needs of in situ site characterization testing.

0-2

2. Underground openings shall be developed to meet the needs of in situ site characterization, including basic needs for the initially planned tests. Additionally an allowance for uncertainties for the test area needs at the main test level has been set at 100 percent; i.e., all major systems for ventilation, utilities, emergency egress, rock handling, personnel support, and others shall be analyzed to determine the need for and the impact associated with this uncertainty allowance. If it can be demonstrated that critical parts of the allowance would require excessive costs, schedule, test disruption. or other program impacts to design, procurement, and/or construction later (after the basic test plan needs are completed), consideration shall be given to designing, procuring, and/or constructing these critical items as part of the initial facility. The uncertainty allowance for each of the major ESF systems shall be determined by an analysis of the following systems: 2000

Description

Underground test area at the main test level

Systems

- Site
- Utilities
- Surface facilities
- First shaft
- Second shaft
- Underground excavations
- Underground utility systems
- Underground tests -

. 100 percent

DETERMINED BY ANALYSES IN THE TITLE I DESIGN PHASE

Uncertainty Allowance

Rev. 1

Specific allowances for each major system shall be identified and incorporated prior to the start of Title II design (detailed design).

CSCR EXISTING

- 3. in situ and in-shaft testing shall satisfy the requirements of the DOE/OGR milestones and the Site Characterization Plan (SCP). 1. 1995
- 4. Those ESF structures, systems, and components that are incorporated into the repository shall be designed and constructed to meet the requirements of 10 CFR Part 60. Compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR Part 60 will be demonstrated in the license application.
- 5. ESF permanent structures, systems, and components that will be incorporated into the repository shall be designed and constructed with the same criteria, standards. and Quality Assurance levels as required for the repository, to the extent known at the time of ESF design. a second second
- 6. Drill cores from USW G-4 and other existing geologic data shall be used to design the ESF shafts and underground openings.
- 7. Quality and quantity of uncontaminated ventilation air supplied to the subsurface facilities of the ESF system shall provide a safe, healthy, and productive working environment to operating personnel.
- 8. Alarm systems shall indicate when the various monitored conditions exceed predetermined specified limits. Redundant systems shall be installed as required by applicable regulations.
- 9. Monitoring of conditions such as noise, noxious or flammable gas, and radon shall be conducted in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations. Aso. See
- 10. ESF openings, boreholes, and their seals shall be designed so that they do not become pathways that compromise the repository's ability to meet the performance objectives of 10 CFR Part 60. Compliance with this criterion will be demonstrated in the license application.
- 11. Shafts and other underground excavations shall be designed and constructed with reasonably available technology similar to or corresponding with the techniques planned for the candidate repository.
- 12. All geotechnical information and assumptions used in the design of underground features (including seismic criteria) shall be consistent with information contained in the baselined repository Reference Information Base (RIB) or traceable to NNWSI Project published information. See Appendix D for the indexes and cross references to other applicable and referenceable Project documentation. 13 eg., به: و. - : :
- 13. The ESF shall be designed to include on-site facilities and services that ensure a safe and timely response to emergency conditions and that facilitate the use of available off-site services (such as fire, police, medical, and ambulance service) that may aid in recovery from emergencies.

0.3

Interface Control Requirements

1. The basic interface control requirements are established by the NNWSI Project ESF Interface Control Procedure (ICP), Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) 03-05. This procedure is applicable to all work to be performed by participating organizations and contractors during the engineering phases for the ESF. This is an interim procedure and, as such, shall apply until the NNWSI Project Systems Engineering Management Plan (SEMP) and the NNWSI Project Configuration Management Plan (CMP) with appropriate implementing procedures have been finalized, approved, and implemented within the NNWSI Project. Specific working groups may be formed, as required, to coordinate Project-specific interfaces.

EXISTING

CSCR / 189 007

Rev. 1

Constraints

- 1. The ESF system shall comply with all applicable federal environmental regulations and with state and local environmental regulations consistent with the DOE's responsibilities under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (NWPA). Such compliance could include the following:
 - a. The designs for systems which contain point-source discharges of treated waste waters into surface-water systems shall comply with the provisions of the Clean Water Act (as amended) as implemented through the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit process.
 - b. The design for the management and disposal of solid and any hazardous wastes (excluding any radioactive wastes) shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the "Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) (as amended) which could include RCRA permitting for the hazardous wastes.
 - c. The design for systems which handle, use, and/or dispose of any toxic substances shall comply with the requirements of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), as amended. Federal regulations implementing TSCA are coded in Title 40, Chapter I, Subchapter R.
 - d. The design of systems shall ensure that the noise levels of those systems shall be controlled in accordance with the requirements of the Noise Control Act of 1972.
 - e. The design for any system or activity involving underground injections shall comply with the provision of the Safe Drinking Water Act (as amended) which could require an Underground Injection Control (UIC) permit.
- 2. The ESF shall be designed so that the effects of credible disruptive events as defined in the RIB (e.g., flooding, fires, and explosions) shall be limited from spreading through the facility.
- 3. The engineered barrier system must be designed such that other systems, structures, and components of the ESF and the candidate repository do not eventually become

0.4

EXISTING CSCR '89 007

Rev. 1

ground-water flow paths and do not promote the release of radionuclides to the accessible environment.

4. The structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed so that natural phenomena and environmental conditions anticipated at the ESF and candidate repository will not interfere with necessary safety functions.

- 5. The structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located to withstand the effects of credible fires and explosions as well as all other postulated design basis accidents as defined in the RIB.
- 6. The ESF permanent systems, structures, and components important to safety shall be designed to ensure continued safe repository operation or safe repository shutdown and personnel evacuation, if necessary, under conditions resulting from the effects of natural phenomena and design-basis accidents.
- 7. To the extent practicable, the ESF shall be designed to incorporate the use of noncombustible and heat-resistant materials.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata, and the ground-water system shall be considered in the ESF design.
- 9. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the support services and equipment.
- 10. The ESF shall be designed, constructed, and operated to meet decommissioning and closure requirements of applicable federal, state, and local codes.
- 11. The design shall allow for fugitive and stationary source dust control at potential dust generation areas such as roads and earth moving sites to minimize airborne particulates, as required by applicable federal, state, and local codes.

Assumptions

- 1. The site shall be located such that, based on expected ground-water conditions, it will be unlikely that engineering measures beyond reasonably available technology will be required for ESF construction, operation, or closure.
- 2. The responsibilities of the NNWSI Project ESF participants are defined in the ESF Project Management Plan.
- 3. The design shall assume that the shaft subcontractor will be totally self-sufficient with respect to the physical mine plant, except for government-furnished utilities, equipment, and facilities.

0-5

		NNWSI COST/SCHEDULE CHA	PROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87
	Change No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
U	897008	SAIC	N. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
	Title: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	oloratory Shaft Facility ments Document (SDRD) NV oved ESF Engineering Chan	(ESF) Subsystem 0-309 in Accordance ge Request (ECR) 016	,
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:	·	
	WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T		
	CHANGE: See t	the attached ESF ECR 016.		
	REASON: See t	he "Basis for Change" on	ESF ECR 016.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None		
6	ATTACHMENTS:	 Letter, L. P. Skouses July 20, 1988, Propos Exploratory Shaft Fac Design Requirements I Engineering Change Re through 027. 	n to W. E. Spaeth, sed Changes to the cility Subsystem Document (SDRD) equests (ECRs) 010	
		2. ESF ECR 016		
			· .	
	Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u>	tion <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> . <u>Merkley</u>	Churth -	Date 11/2/15/ Date 12/13/18
	Approval: Project Ma	anager, WMPOI-C. P. Gert	MARCH BULL	Date <u>12/17/88</u>

	Z BASELIN	ucca m E chan	icunta: Ige evi	in froj Luatic	tect In Surg	'ARY			
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 016.	SDRD	in ac	cordand	ce with	n	C/SCF 89/0	L No:)08	
	Summary of Recommended Actio	ns:					L <u></u>		
		<u>P</u> Rese	EfD	Office P&OC	QA	MIES	SLEI	SE&C	ADMIN
	Concurrence Concurrence with Conditions								
	Non Concurrence No Recommendation								
	Comment Summary Evaluation:	·							
	Impact Analyses:						<u> </u>		
	CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u>	ley	<u> </u>	Date	/2/12	188	Page	of	_



CSCR _____'89 Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office

P. O. Box 98516 Las Vegas. NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

008

Hichael E. Spaeth

Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

for 11 ' JUL 2 1 1988 Route Mw Copies _

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

CCF RECEIVED

CSCR _____'89 008

-2-

Hultiple Addressees

· .

JUL 20 1933

cc w/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV V. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV

	C	SCR'8	9 008		
	ESF ENGINEERING C	HANGE REQU	JEST		ESF11.FMB-12/21
ECR NO. 016	<u>,</u>			PAGE _	1OF2
SECTION 1. TO BE O OA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CH	COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT R N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.2 Utilities	EQUESTING CI PA DA OF RE	HANGE RTICIPANT TE KGINATOR V. NO	SAIC 	3
In the ESF SDRD (page 2-1 and 2- 6430.1 Chapter V 2) Lighting chan DOE 5430.1A date "DOE 6430.1, Cha 4) Uninterruptib 12/25/87 Divisio and XII" to"Draf and Division 15,	1.2.6.2 Utilities Applicab 2) make the following chan I" to "Draft DOE 6430.1A di ge "DOE 6430.1, Chapter VI d 12/25/87, Division 16; E pter VIII" to "Draft DOE 64 1e Prwer change "DOE 6430. n 16, Electrical." 5) Wate t DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/2 Mechanical." 6) Sewage St	le Regulation ges: 1) Elec ated 12/25/87 II, Lighting 1 lectrical." 430.1A dated 1 Chapter VI" er system change	a. Codes. trical Por Division Design Sta 3) Standby 12/25/87, to "Draf nge "DOE Site and "DOE 6430	and Spec ver chanz 16 Elect andards" y power c Division t DOE 643 6430.1 Ch Civil En .1 Chapte	ifications e "DOE rical." to "Draft hange 16 Electric. D.1A dated hapter: V. X. gineerics er XII" to
Draft DOE 6430.1 BASIS FOR CHANGE	A dated 12/25/87 Division : E Lester P. Skousen lette	2, Site and C er dated Marc	<u>1v11</u> n 23, 198	SEE COM 8.	TINUATION PAGE
				······································	
PARTICIPANTE OA REP	HAIRMAN ACTION NOT	ESF ICHIG REP TPO	REPENTAL	VE OR PA	TINUATION PAGE
1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	WORK	NO SCOP NO CONS	e change Truction	YES MPACT _	5NO YESN
3. TOTAL COSTS (increese/de NOT APPLK	CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION CABLE TOTALS	<u>вом</u>		GET	PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING I	MPACTNOT APPLICABLE		ENGINEEF CONSTRU	ring Ction	WEEKS
5. PROCEED WIT PROCEED WIT	H DETAIL ENGINEERING	YESNO			
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICA CHANGE ORD	ABLENOT FUNDED, PRO ERSPECIAL STUDIES	NECTED ONLY	ICWG	CHAIRM	N/DATE
7. APPROVED			ICWG	CHAIRMA	A/DATE

		<u>.</u>	66	<u>x</u> .	
ICWG	CH	AIR	MA	A/D	ATE

Ð

CSCR _____'89 008

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

.

	ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST	ESF 12 JUNE-11
CR NO. 016		PAGE
Continuation Page	·	<u>2</u> or <u>2</u>
	1 2 6 2 11+11+1+1	
ATA Enginee	ring." 7) Communications System change "DOE 6430.1 C	hapter VII to
"Draft_DOE_643	0.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 16 Electrical." 8) Comp	ressed Air
System change	"DOE 6430.1" to "Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Div	ision 2 Site
and Civil Engi	neering."	
		<u> </u>
	······································	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
·····	·	
<u> </u>		
		······································
·		
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
OTHER INFORMATK	ON	



89 💀 0 0 8

1.2.6.2 UTILITIES

Subparts are:

- 1.2.6 2.1 Power systems
- 1.2.6.2.2 Water Systems
- 1.2.6.2.3 Sewage Systems
- 1.2.6.2.4 Communication System
- 1.2.6.2.5 Mine Wastewater System 1.2.6.2.6 Compressed Air System

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The utilities systems, subsystems, structures, and components include provisions for power, water, sewage, communications, mine wastewater, and compressed air.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The power systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

Electrical Power

- Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 16 Electrical 1.
- ANSI NFPA-70 2.
 - 3. ANSI C-2

Lighting

Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87, Division 16, Electrical 1.

Stand-by Power

Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 16 Electrical 1.

Uninterruptible Power

- Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 16 Electrical 1.
- 2. **IEEE-485**
- 3. **IEEE-650**

The water systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12, 25, 87 Division 2 Site and Civil Engineering and 1. Division 15. Mechanical
- Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 445, paragraphs .121 through .139 2. 3.
 - NEPA 20.22. 24

CSCR🖗

23 × 189 ± 00

Sev.

The sewage systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 1. 🦿 Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12:25:87 Division 2, Site and Civil Engineering
- Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter, 445, paragraph, 121 through .139 2.

The communications system design shall be in accordance with the following:

Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12 25,87 Division 16 Electrical 1.

The mine wastewater system shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 30 CFR, Chapter 1 1. 2.
- Nevada mining law and California mine and tunnel safety orders
- Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 445 3. 4.
 - DOE order 5480.1A

The compressed air system shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 2 Site and Civil Engineering 1.
- 2. 30 CFR, Chapter 1
- Nevada mining law 3.
- California mine and tunnel safety orders, 4.

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

1. The utility systems, subsystems, and facilities shall provide electrical power, water, sewer, mine wastewater disposal, telephone, communications, compressed air, and area lighting to the ESF adequate to support construction and operation of the shafts, underground workings, and the ESF testing program during site characterization.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The utility services, such as power, water, and communications, shall have the capability of meeting ESF needs and be constructed and made available to meet all of the requirements for construction and operation of the ESF. 1 I. T. P. F
- 2. Utilities such as electric power, compressed air, and water systems shall be provided to underground construction, operations, and in situ site characterization areas. When installed, these systems shall not restrict foot, vehicular, or shaft conveyance traffic; obstruct ventilation; or cause health and safety concerns.

2.2

Interface Control Requirements

1. The A E must recognize that interfaces with Central Telephone Company of Nevada for communications and the Nevada Test Site (NTS) for utility supply will be required. Also see Section 1.2.6.0. Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

1. The offsite utilities shall be considered as extending from the closest tie-in point off the ESF site to its designated point on the ESF site.

Assumptions

- 1. Solid refuse will be hauled to an existing landfill on the NTS.

2.3

CSCR _____'89 008

EXISTING

Rev. 1

1.2.6.2 UTILITIES

Subparts are:

1.2.6.2.1Power systems1.2.6.2.2Water Systems1.2.6.2.3Sewage Systems1.2.6.2.4Communication System1.2.6.2.5Mine Wastewater System1.2.6.2.6Compressed Air System

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The utilities systems, subsystems, structures, and components include provisions for power, water, sewage, communications, mine wastewater, and compressed air.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The power systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

Electrical Power

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VI
- 2. ANSI NFPA-70
- 3. ANSI C-2

Lighting

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VIII, Lighting Design Standards

Stand-by Power

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VIII

Uninterruptible Power

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VI
- 2. IEEE-485
- 3. IEEE-650

The water systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 1. DOE 6430.1. Chapters V. X. and XII
- 2. Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 445, paragraphs .121 through .139
- 3. NEPA 20.22, 24

CSCR ____'89 008 EXISTING

Rev. 1

The sewage systems shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter XII
- 2. Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 445, paragraph .121 through .139

The communications system design shall be in accordance with the following:

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VII

The mine wastewater system shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 1. 30 CFR, Chapter 1
- 2. Nevada mining law and California mine and tunnel safety orders
- 3. Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 445
- 4. DOE order 5480.1A

The compressed air system shall be designed in accordance with the following:

- 1. DOE 6430.1
- 2. 30 CFR, Chapter 1
- 3. Nevada mining law
- 4. California mine and tunnel safety orders

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

1. The utility systems, subsystems, and facilities shall provide electrical power, water, sewer, mine wastewater disposal, telephone, communications, compressed air, and area lighting to the ESF adequate to support construction and operation of the shafts, underground workings, and the ESF testing program during site characterization.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The utility services, such as power, water, and communications, shall have the capability of meeting ESF needs and be constructed and made available to meet all of the requirements for construction and operation of the ESF.
- 2. Utilities such as electric power, compressed air, and water systems shall be provided to underground construction, operations, and in situ site characterization areas. When installed, these systems shall not restrict foot, vehicular, or shaft conveyance traffic; obstruct ventilation; or cause health and safety concerns.

```
USUN _____OV UUU
```

EXISTING

Rev. 1

Interface Control Requirements

1. The A/E must recognize that interfaces with Central Telephone Company of Nevada for communications and the Nevada Test Site (NTS) for utility supply will be required. Also see Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

1. The offsite utilities shall be considered as extending from the closest tie-in point off the ESF site to its designated point on the ESF site.

> · ·

> > ٠

Assumptions

•

1. Solid refuse will be hauled to an existing landfill on the NTS.

. •

	X	NNWSI P COST/SCHEDULE CHAI	PROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/SC	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87			
	Change No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:			
•	89,009	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88			
	Title: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	oloratory Shaft Facility (ements Document (SDRD) NVO oved ESF Engineering Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) 017				
	Explanation & Reasor	for Change:					
	WBS: 1.2.6.1	1.T					
	CHANGE: See t	the attached ESF ECR 017.					
	REASON: See 1	the "Basis for Change" on .	ESF ECR 017.				
	COST IMPACT:	None					
	SCHEDULE INPAC	CT: None					
9	ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.						
		2. ESF ECR 017.		·			
•	Responsible Organiza CCB Secretary <u>P. C</u> Approval: Project M	tion <u>V. E. Spaeth</u> . Verkley <u>Mulanki</u> anager, WMPO <u>C. P. Gerta</u>	7 Capatit	Date $11/22/18$ Date $12/13/88$ Date $12/13/68$			

	BASELI	YUCCA A NE CHAN	ICUITA IGE EVI	IN FROM NLUATIO	tect In Sum	MARY			
Baseline C approved E	hange: Revise ESF SF-ECR 017.	SF SDRD in accordance with					C/SCR No: 89/009		
Summary of	Recommendea Acti	cns:							
		<u>Pr</u> Rese	<u>stect</u> EiD	Office PSCC	62	MISS	T Siei	<u>'SMSS</u> SESC	ADMIN
Concurrenc Concurrenc Non Concur No Recomme	e e with Conditions Tense ndation								
Comment Su	mmary Evaluation:								
Impact Ana	lyses:								
	Au	. <i>.</i>					Page		
CC3 Secret	ary P. C. Merkley	, 7		Date	12/1	2/88	<u> </u>	of <u>1</u>	



Department of Energy

Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

for 11 ' JUL 21 1988 Route Mw Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNWSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

CCF RECEIVED

CSCR ____'89 009

Hultiple Addressees

-2-

.

JUL 20 1998

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV V. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VHPO, NV

CSCR'89	009
---------	-----

B

I

	ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQ	UEST ESF11.FMB-12/28
ECR NO. 017		PAGE OF
SECTION 1. TO BE C	OMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTING C	HANGE VITICIPANT SAIC
SOUNCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CH	ANGE Systems	
In the ESF SDRD and Specification change DOE 6430.	1.2.6.7 Underground Utility Systems App ns (page 7-1 and 7-2) make the followin 1 Chapter VI" to "Draft DOE 6430.1A day	plicable Codes, Regulations, ng changes: 1) Electrical ted 12/25/87 Division 16
Electrical." 2) to "Draft DOE 64 change "DOE 6430	Lighting change "DOE 6430.1 Chapter VI 30.1A dated 12/25/87, Division 16 Elect .1 Chapter VIII" to "Draft DOE 6430.1A	III, Lighting Design Standards" trical." 3) Standby power dated 12/25/87, Division 16
Electrical." 4) 6430.1A dated 122 Chapters V. X. X.	Uninterruptible power change "DOE 642 /25/87 Division 16 Electrical." 5) Wat	30.1 Chapter VI" to "Draft DOE ter systems change "DOE 6430.1
Engineering and I Chapter XII" to	Divison 15 Mechanical." 6) Mine vastes "Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Divis	Ater system change "DOE 6430.1 sion 2 SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
BASIS FOR CHANGE	Lester P. Skousen letter dated March	23, 1988
DARTICIRANTE	DATE 4/20/00 TPO	DATE 21/28
1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	ECR EVALUATION NOT APPLICABLE WORKYESNO CONS	E CHANGE YES NO TRUCTION IMPACT YES N
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/dec NOT APPLIC.	ROM (CONSTRUCTION ABLE TOTALS	BUDGET PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING IM	PACTNOT APPLICABLE	ENGINEERING WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH PROCEED WITH	1 DETAIL ENGINEERING YES NO 1 DETAIL ESTIMATE YES NO	
6. FUNDING:	BLENOT FUNDED, PROJECTED ONLY	
CHANGE ORDE	RSPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG CHAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED		icwg Chairmanhoate

ž V	SF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST	EBF12.FMB-1
CR NO. 017		PAGE
Continuation Page		<u>2</u> OF <u>2</u>
$\mathbb{H} \stackrel{\text{ESF SURD [.2.6.]}}{\longrightarrow}$	7 Underground Utility Systems	
DATA Site and Civil Eng	ineering."	
		······································
······································		
		······
	······································	
		<u></u>
, 		
	······································	
· · ·		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	·····	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	*	
	·····	
. <u></u>		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
OTHER INFORMATION		

- -

.

CSCR _____'89 009 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

UNDERGROUND UTILITY SYSTEMS 1.2.6.7

Subparts are:

- 1.2.6.7.1 Power Distribution System
- 1.2.6.7.2 Communications System
- 1.2.6.7.3 Lighting System 1.2.6.7.4 Ventilation System
- 1.2.6.7.5 Water Distribution System
- 1.2.6.7.6 Mine Wastewater Collection System 1.2.6.7.7 Compressed Air Distribution System 1.2.6.7.8 Fire Protection System

Rev. o

- 1.2.6.7.9 Muck Handling Systems
- 1.2.6.7.10 Sanitary Facilities
- 1.2.6.7.11 Monitoring and Warning Systems

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The underground utility systems, subsystems, and components include provisions for power, communications, lighting, ventilation, water, mine wastewater, compressed air, fire protection, excavation and muck handling, sanitary, and monitoring and warning systems required to meet the needs of the underground site characterization testing program during construction and operation.

Applicable Codes, Regulations, and Specifications

. . .

General

- 1. 30 CFR Part 57
- 2. Nevada Mining Law
- 3. California Mine and Tunnel Safety Orders

Electrical

- 1. Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 Division 16 Electrical
- 2. ANSI: NFPA-70
- ANSI C-2 3.

Lighting

Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87, Division 16 Electrical 1.

Stand-by power

Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87. Division 16 Electrical 1.



Rev. o

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Uninterruptible power

- 1. Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12,25 87. Division 16 Electrical
- 2. IEEE-485
- 3. IEEE-650

Water systems

- 1. Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25.87. Division 2 Site and Civil Engineering and Division 15 Mechanical
- 2. NRS Chapter 445, paragraphs .121 through .139

Mine wastewater system

1. Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25,'87 Division 2 Site and Civil Engineering

Ventilation system and dust control

1. American Institute of Government Hygienists. <u>Industrial Ventilation, Manual of</u> <u>Recommended Practice</u>

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Codes, Regulations, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide utilities for underground ESF operations, in situ site characterization, and monitoring activities.
- 2. Provide facilities and equipment for the installation and maintenance of the underground utilities.
- 3. Provide for the distribution of utilities around the operations area of the Main Test Level in such a manner to allow for flexibility in the siting and construction of the final testing locations.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The underground utility systems and service facilities shall have suitable utilities, including power, lights, water and compressed air, as required for construction, operations, and in situ site characterization, and shall be capable of supporting the uncertainty allowances as defined in Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item =2.
- 2. The utility services shall include minimal backup units for primary power lines, primary pumps, shaft conveyances, primary ventilation fans, and primary communications and testing equipment to allow testing continuity based upon NNWSI Project analysis.
- 3. Cranes, lifting equipment, and shop machinery shall be consistent with maintenance needs.

Rev. 5

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. Utility systems (i.e., electric power, air, water, etc.), when installed, shall not restrict foot, vehicular, or shaft conveyance traffic; obstruct ventilation; or cause safety hazards.
- 2. In the selection of equipment that will require maintenance, consideration shall be given to:
 - a. The availability and cost of replacement materials and parts.
 - b. The need for equipment manufacturer's technical services.

Assumptions

None.



.

'89

009

Rev. 1

1.2.6.7 UNDERGROUND UTILITY SYSTEMS

Subparts are:

1.2.6.7.1 Power Distribution System

CSCR

- 1.2.6.7.2 Communications System
- 1.2.6.7.3 Lighting System
- 1.2.6.7.4 Ventilation System
- 1.2.6.7.5 Water Distribution System
- 1.2.6.7.6 Mine Wastewater Collection System
- 1.2.6.7.7 Compressed Air Distribution System
- 1.2.6.7.8 Fire Protection System
- 1.2.6.7.9 Muck Handling Systems
- 1.2.6.7.10 Sanitary Facilities
- 1.2.6.7.11 Monitoring and Warning Systems

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The underground utility systems, subsystems, and components include provisions for power, communications, lighting, ventilation, water, mine wastewater, compressed air, fire protection, excavation and muck handling, sanitary, and monitoring and warning systems required to meet the needs of the underground site characterization testing program during construction and operation.

Applicable Codes, Regulations, and Specifications

General

- 1. 30 CFR Part 57
- 2. Nevada Mining Law
- 3. California Mine and Tunnel Safety Orders

Electrical

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VI
- 2. ANSI/NFPA-70
- 3. ANSI C-2

Lighting

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VIII, Lighting Design Standards

Stand-by power

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VIII

Rev. 1

009

Uninterruptible power

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter VI
- 2. IEEE-485
- 3. IEEE-650

Water systems

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapters V, X, XII
- 2. NRS Chapter 445, paragraphs .121 through .139

Mine wastewater system

1. DOE 6430.1, Chapter XII

Ventilation system and dust control

1. American Institute of Government Hygienists, <u>Industrial Ventilation</u>, <u>Manual of</u> <u>Recommended Practice</u>

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Codes, Regulations, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide utilities for underground ESF operations. in situ site characterization, and monitoring activities.
- 2. Provide facilities and equipment for the installation and maintenance of the underground utilities.
- 3. Provide for the distribution of utilities around the operations area of the Main Test Level in such a manner to allow for flexibility in the siting and construction of the final testing locations.

Performance Criteria

- 1. The underground utility systems and service facilities shall have suitable utilities, including power, lights, water and compressed air, as required for construction, operations, and in situ site characterization, and shall be capable of supporting the uncertainty allowances as defined in Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.
- 2. The utility services shall include minimal backup units for primary power lines, primary pumps, shaft conveyances, primary ventilation fans, and primary communications and testing equipment to allow testing continuity based upon NNWSI Project analysis.
- 3. Cranes, lifting equipment, and shop machinery shall be consistent with maintenance needs.

CSCR ____'89 009 EXISTING

Rev. 1

Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. Utility systems (i.e., electric power, air, water, etc.), when installed, shall not restrict foot, vehicular, or shaft conveyance traffic; obstruct ventilation; or cause safety hazards.
- 2. In the selection of equipment that will require maintenance, consideration shall be given to:
 - a. The availability and cost of replacement materials and parts.

b. The need for equipment manufacturer's technical services.

Assumptions

None.

1		NNWSI F COST/SCHEDULE CHA	ROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87					
	Change No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:					
	89 _. ′010	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88					
	Title: Revise the Exp Requirements D with the Appro	oloratory Shaft Facility (Occument (SDRD) NYO-309 in oved ESF Engineering Chang	ESF) Subsystem Desig Accordance with the e Request (ECR) 018	n					
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:							
1	WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T							
	CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR 018.							
	REASON: See t	he "Basic for Change" on 1	ESF ECR 018.						
	COST IMPACT: None								
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None							
	ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988 Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.								
		2. ESF ECR 018.							
6	Responsible Organiza CCB Secretary <u>P. C</u>	tion <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> Merkley <i>Planar be</i>	Alfred the	Date 1/22/55 Date 12/13/88					
· • • •	Approval: Project Ma	anager, WMPOCrC. P. Gert:	Mail Mart	Date 12/13/58					

	ſ <u></u>			<u> </u>			··			
		•			••					
	YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY									
•	Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 018.						C/SCR No: 89/010			
	Summary of Recommended Actic	ons:								;
		Project Office					TEMSS			
		RESE	E&D	940C Q)a m	IES	S&EI	Seec	ADMIN	
	Concurrence		\bowtie		Z I	X	X	X	Ĭ X	
	Concurrence with Conditions									
	Non Concurrence									
	No Recommendation	لكا								
	Comment Summary Evaluation:									
Ŭ										
				· .						
	Tenact Analyses:									
	inder indrided.									
_	Alyin Lil	leg			,		Page			
	CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley	. :/		Date <u>/</u>	2/12/8	5	<u> </u>	of <u>1</u>		
i				,						,
							L			



CSCR <u>'89</u> 010

Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

6000-1. Second The

for il i JUL 21 1988 Route Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Management Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Ranagement Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JUI 22 1988

CCF RECEIVED

JUL 20 1988

1 . .

Hultiple Addressees

-2- ··

٠

•

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV
						ESF11.	FMB-1	2/2
CR NO. 018					PAGE	1	OF_	1
ECTION 1. TO BE C A LEVEL OURCE /BS DESIGNATION	COMPLETED BY	PARTICIPANT F	EQUESTING	CHANGE PARTICIPANT DATE DRIGINATOR	SAIC 	88		
TLE DESCRIPTION OF CH	ANGE	lSite	F	REV. NO	_DATE_1	2/18/8		
In the ESF SDRD. (page 1-1), chan dated 12/25/87,	l.2.6.1 Site ge "DOE 6430. Division 1 Ger	Application 1, Chapters, neral Require	Regulations, I, II, XI, X ments except	Codes, and III to "Dra for the se	d Specif aft DOE eismic r	icatio 6430.1 equire	ns A ment	5
in Olll.2.7, Ear Concrete and Div	thquake Loads, ision 5, Metal	, Division 2, ls."	Site and Ci	vil Engined	ering, D	ivisio	n 3,	<u></u>
		<u> </u>	<u></u>		SEE CO		ION P	
BASIS FOR CHANGE		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						<u>~</u>
Lester P. Skouse	n, letter date	ed 3/23/88.	WMPO:MBB-201	6, dtd. 5/9	9/88 and			
				- <u></u>				
				$\mathcal{T}_{\mathcal{N}\mathcal{N}}$				
	DATE	6/21/88	ESF ICWG RE	DALSENTATI	ZEE CO VE OR P/ DATE 6		KON PI VANT BB	
PARTICIPANT DA REP.	HAJRMAN ACTIO	<u>6/21/88</u> DN NO	ESF ICMG RE TPO	DESENTATI	VE OR P		ION PL ANT 8-8	
PARTICIPANE DA REP SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	HAJRMAN ACTIO		ESF ICATG BE TPO	PRESENTATI PRESENTATI PRE CHANGE ISTRUCTION	VE OR P DATE 6 YE: MPACT	NTINUAT ARTICIE Z./Z SYE	NO NO NO NO	
PARTICIPANT DA REP SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de	HAIRMAN ACTIC ECR EVALUATION WORK		ESF ICATS RE TPO		VE OR P DATE 6 WEACT	NTINUATI ARTICIE SYE	NO SS	
PARTICIPANT DA REP. SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de NOT APPLIC	HAIRMAN ACTIC ECR EVALUATION WORK	<u>C/2/88</u> ON NO ON YES YES KGINEERING MSTRUCTION	ESF ICOG BE TPO		YEE CON YE OR P DATE 6 YEE MPACT _	NTINUATI ARTICIE SYE	NO S	
PARTICIPANT DA REP SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de NOT APPLIC 4. SCHEDULING IN	HAIRMAN ACTIO ECR EVALUATH WORK CTREE ABLE TOTAL PACTNO	C/2/88 DN NO ON YES YES MGINEERING MSTRUCTION S DT APPLICABLE	ESF ICATS RE TPO	PRESENTATION PE CHANGE STRUCTION BUDG ENGINEER CONSTRUCT	VE OR P DATE TDATE YES MIPACT BET	NTINUATI ARTICIE SYE	NO S	
PARTICIPANT DA REP. SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de NOT APPLIC 4. SCHEDULING IN 5. PROCEED WIT	HAIRMAN ACTIO ECR EVALUATH WORK CREE TOTAL ABLE TOTAL PACTNO H DETAIL ENGIN	C/2//88 DN NO ON YES YES KGINEERING MSTRUCTION S DT APPLICABLE VEERING MATE	ESF ICATS RE TPO	PRESENTATION PRESENTATION PE CHANGE STRUCTION BUDG ENGINEER CONSTRUCTION	VE OR P DATE TDATE WIPACT	NTTINUATI ARTICIE SYE	NO S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	
PARTICIPANT OA REP. SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de NOT APPLIC 4. SCHEDULING IN 5. PROCEED WIT PROCEED WIT 6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICA	HAIRMAN ACTIC ECR EVALUATH WORK CORE ABLE TOTAL PACTNC H DETAIL ENGIN H DETAIL ENGIN	C/21/88 DN NOT ON YES YES WGINEERING NSTRUCTION S DT APPLICABLE VEERING VEERING VATE	ESF ICATS BE TPO T APPLICABLE NO SCO NO CON ROM E YESN	PRESENTATION PE CHANGE STRUCTION BUOG ENGINEER CONSTRUCT	YEE CON YE OR P DATE 6 WAPACT	NTTINUATI ARTICIS 27/2 SYE		
PARTICIANT DA REP DA REP SECTION 2-ICWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH 3. TOTAL COSTS (INCIDENTIAL) 4. SCHEDULING IN 5. PROCEED WIT PROCEED WIT 6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICA CHANGE ORD	HAJRMAN ACTIO ECR EVALUATION WORK CREVALUATION WORK CREVALUATION WORK CREVALUATION WORK CREVALUATION WORK CREVALUATION CONTRACT MORK	C/2/88 DN NOT ON YES YES KINEERING MATE DT APPLICABLE VEERING MATE	ESF ICATS RETPO		VE OR P DATE 6 WE OR P DATE 6	NTINUATI ARTICIE SYE		

____ _

---- ---

• --

- - - - --

_ __ __ . __ . _ _

_..............

CSCR _____'89 010 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6

1.2.6.1 SITE

Subparts are:

1.2.0.1.1	Main Pad
1.2.6.1.2	Auxiliary Pads
1.2.6.1.3	Access Roads
1.2.6.1.4	Site Drainage

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The ESF site is defined as the systems, subsystems and components located on Government-owned land necessary for the development of the surface and underground facilities and supporting systems required to support site characterization testing at depth. The site is comprised of the main pad, auxiliary pads, access roads, and drainage system contained within the boundaries of the ESF.

The ESF will be located in Coyote Wash on the eastern side of Yucca Mountain at an elevation of about 4.130 feet and placed on a cut-and-fill rock shelf located on the side of the hill that bounds the wash on the northeast.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The design shall be in accordance with:

- 1. Draft DOE 6430.1A dated 12'25 87. Division 1 General Requirements except for the seismic requirements in 0111 2.7. Earthquake Loads, Division 2. Site and Civil Engineering, Division 3. Concrete and Division 5. Metals.
- 2. Nevada Revised Statues Chapter 445, para. 705, item 8.
- 3. State of Nevada Department of Highways Section 201 through 212.

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements.

- 1. Site systems, subsystems, and components are composed of general civil improvements. This includes but is not limited to clearing, grading, excavations, filling, parking areas, flood protection, drainage systems, temporary roads, laydown areas, and top soil storage areas adequate to support construction and operation of the shafts, underground workings, and testing program.
- 2. Roads, building pads, utility corridors, and rock-storage areas shall be cleared. graded. and stabilized.

CSCR _____'89 010

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

3. The surface layout (site plan) must accommodate future expansion as determined by the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item =2).

Rev. 5

Performance Criteria

- 1. The site systems, subsystems, and components shall provide a safe, healthful, and productive working environment.
- 2. Site systems, subsystems, and features related to drainage ponds and rock storage areas shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life.
- 3. Site preparation for shaft collars shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year life.
- 4. Dust control shall be provided at potential dust-generation areas such as roads and earth moving sites in order to minimize airborne particulates, as required by federal, state, and local codes.
- 5. The shafts and shaft collar areas shall be located and, or graded to protect them from the probable maximum flood as defined in the RIB.

Interface Control Requirements

The ESF designers shall coordinate with repository designers on ESF site location and layout and on permanent ESF structures, systems, and components, and shall make available all design information pertaining to the permanent ESF components during formal program design reviews.

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0. Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. The design and construction of the site (civil improvements) for the permanent ESF structures, systems, and components shall not significantly increase the preferential pathways for groundwater or radioactive waste migration to the accessible environment.
- The site systems, subsystems, and components shall incorporate environmental impact considerations with respect to ground disturbance, dust control, etc. (See Section 1.2.6.0, Constraints item #1.)
- 3. All storm-water runoff shall be controlled in an environmentally acceptable manner.
- 4. The design life for all ESF systems, components, and structures shall be as follows:

CSCR ____'89 010 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 5

- a. Permanent ESF structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a 100-year maintainable life.
- b. Drainage ponds and rock storage (muck pile) liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life.
- c. The design life for all other ESF systems, components, and structures shall be maintainable for 5 years unless otherwise specified.
- 5. The first shaft, ES-1, shall be located at the intersection of the following coordinates: E563,630 and N766,255, as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 6. The second shaft, ES-2, shall be located at the intersection of the following coordinates: E563,918 and N766,337, as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 7. Access to the ESF site pad from the east shall be controlled by a chain-link fence and gates.
- 8. Existing roads, utilities, and structures shall be incorporated into the ESF if this incorporation can be shown to be cost effective.
- 9. The area within the site boundaries shall be cleared of unusable roads, utilities, and structures that interfere with the ESF.
- 10. The designs for site preparation shall ensure that construction activities disturb only the minimum amount of land necessary to accomplish the project.
- 11. Topsoil shall be stored in an environmentally acceptable manner.
- 12. The ESF shall be designed to operate on a 3-shift-per-day, 7-days-per- week schedule throughout both the ESF construction and operation phases.
- 13. Lighting in operations areas shall support security requirements.
- 14. The design shall include considerations for site restoration.

Assumptions

- 1. Surface characteristics such as topography, meteorological conditions, and flood potential are important factors in the process of designing surface facilities. It is incumbent upon the designers to include these factors during the design process.
- 2. All necessary civil work to support the site systems, subsystems, and components will be completed in order to meet the schedule of approved in situ site characterization activities.
- 3. The natural terrain will provide a barrier to vehicle access from elsewhere on the site.

CSCR ____'89 010 Existing

Rev. 1

1.2.6.1 SITE

Subparts are:

1.2.6.1.1 Main Pad 1.2.6.1.2 Auxiliary Pads 1.2.6.1.3 Access Roads 1.2.6.1.4 Site Drainage

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The ESF site is defined as the systems, subsystems and components located on Government-owned land necessary for the development of the surface and underground facilities and supporting systems required to support site characterization testing at depth. The site is comprised of the main pad, auxiliary pads, access roads, and drainage system contained within the boundaries of the ESF.

The ESF will be located in Coyote Wash on the eastern side of Yucca Mountain at an elevation of about 4,130 feet and placed on a cut-and-fill rock shelf located on the side of the hill that bounds the wash on the northeast.

Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The design shall be in accordance with:

- 1. DOE 6430.1, Chapters I, II, XI, XII.
- 2. Nevada Revised Statues Chapter 445, para. 705, item 8.
- 3. State of Nevada Department of Highways Section 201 through 212.

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

Functional Requirements

- 1. Site systems, subsystems, and components are composed of general civil improvements. This includes but is not limited to clearing, grading, excavations, filling, parking areas, flood protection, drainage systems, temporary roads, laydown areas, and top soil storage areas adequate to support construction and operation of the shafts, underground workings, and testing program.
- 2. Roads, building pads, utility corridors, and rock-storage areas shall be cleared, graded, and stabilized.
- 3. The surface layout (site plan) must accommodate future expansion as determined by the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2).

1-1



Performance Criteria

- 1. The site systems, subsystems, and components shall provide a safe, healthful, and productive working environment.
- 2. Site systems, subsystems, and features related to drainage ponds and rock storage areas shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life.
- 3. Site preparation for shaft collars shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year life.
- 4. Dust control shall be provided at potential dust-generation areas such as roads and earth moving sites in order to minimize airborne particulates, as required by federal, state, and local codes.
- 5. The shafts and shaft collar areas shall be located and/or graded to protect them from the probable maximum flood as defined in the RIB.

Interface Control Requirements

The ESF designers shall coordinate with repository designers on ESF site location and layout and on permanent ESF structures, systems, and components, and shall make available all design information pertaining to the permanent ESF components during formal program design reviews.

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

Constraints

- 1. The design and construction of the site (civil improvements) for the permanent ESF structures, systems, and components shall not significantly increase the preferential pathways for groundwater or radioactive waste migration to the access' e environment.
- 2. The site systems, subsystems, and components shall incorporate environmental impact considerations with respect to ground disturbance, dust control, etc. (See Section 1.2.6.0, Constraints item #1.)
- 3. All storm-water runoff shall be controlled in an environmentally acceptable manner.
- 4. The design life for all ESF systems, components, and structures shall be as follows:
 - a. Permanent ESF structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a 100-year maintainable life.
 - b. Drainage ponds and rock storage (muck pile) liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life.

CSCR _____'89 010 EXISTING

Rev. 1

- c. The design life for all other ESF systems, components, and structures shall be maintainable for 5 years unless otherwise specified.
- 5. The first shaft, ES-1, shall be located at the intersection of the following coordinates: E563,630 and N766.255, as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 6. The second shaft, ES-2, shall be located at the intersection of the following coordinates: E563,918 and N766,337, as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 7. Access to the ESF site pad from the east shall be controlled by a chain-link fence and gates.
- 8. Existing roads, utilities, and structures shall be incorporated into the ESF if this incorporation can be shown to be cost effective.
- 9. The area within the site boundaries shall be cleared of unusable roads, utilities, and structures that interfere with the ESF.
- 10. The designs for site preparation shall ensure that construction activities disturb only the minimum amount of land necessary to accomplish the project.
- 11. Topsoil shall be stored in an environmentally acceptable manner.
- 12. The ESF shall be designed to operate on a 3-shift-per-day, 7-days-per- week schedule throughout both the ESF construction and operation phases.
- 13. Lighting in operations areas shall support security requirements.

14. The design shall include considerations for site restoration.

Assumptions

- 1. Surface characteristics such as topography, meteorological conditions, and flood potential are important factors in the process of designing surface facilities. It is incumbent upon the designers to include these factors during the design process.
- 2. All necessary civil work to support the site systems, subsystems, and components will be completed in order to meet the schedule of approved in situ site characterization activities.
- 3. The natural terrain will provide a barrier to vehicle access from elsewhere on the site.

			• · ·	
		NNWSI P COST/SCHEDULE CHAI	ROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/SC	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87
	Change Ho:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
	89/011	SAIC	W. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
	Herise the Exp Document (SDRI) Change Request	bloratury Shaft Facility () NVD-309 in Accordance w : (ECR) 019	ESF) Subsystem Desig ith the Approved ESF	n Requirements Engineering
	Explanation & Reasor	o for Change:		
	WBS: 1.2.6.1	.1.T		
	CHANGE: See t	the attached ESF ECR 019.	· · ·	
	REASON: See 1	the "Basis for Change" on 1	ESF ECR 019.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	CT: None		
9	ATTACHMENTS:	 Letter, L. P. Skousen Proposed Changes to the Subsystem Design Required Engineering Change Reduined 	to M. E. Spaeth, Ju he Exploratory Shaft irements Document (Si quests (ECRs) 010 th	ly 20, 1988, Facility DRD) rough 027.
		2. ESF ECR 019.		
			,	
		~~~~~	R	
	Responsible Organiza	tion <u>W. E. Spaeth</u>	1 life to	Date 11/22/58
	CCB Secretary P. C	. Kerkley Augusta	un the	Date 12/13/89
	Approval: Project M	anager, WMPC. P. Gerts	Josef Charles	Date 12/13/08

, ·

		7
0	YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY	
•	Baseline Change: Revise ESD SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 019. 89/011	
	Summary of Recommended Actions: Project Office TAMSS	
	RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN	
	Concurrence IXXXX	
	No Recommendation	
	Comment Summary Evaluation:	
	Impact Analyses:	
	CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley Date 1/12/88 1 of 1	



## Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office

P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

011

<u>'89</u>

4700° ...............

for 1/ ' JUL 21 1988 Route Mrs Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO:DEI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Ranagement Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 



•

÷

.

. .

· .

JUL 20 1993

Multiple Addressees

cc w/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrows, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV



	.CSC?	R'89	011			
	ESF ENGINEERING (	CHANGE RE	QUEST		ESF11.FM	B-12/
ECR NO. 019				PAGE .	<u> </u>	r_1
SECTION 1. TO BE OA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF (	COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT I N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.3 Surface F CHANGE		CHANGE PARTICIPANT DATE ORIGINATOR REV. NO. 1	SAIC 671078 SAIC DATE	8 12/18/87	
In the ESF SDRI Specifications except for sets	) 1.2.6.3, Surface Faciliti (page 3-1) change "DOE 643 smic requirements 0111-2.7	es Applicabl 0.1" to "Dra Earthquake 1	le Regulation aft DOE 6430. Loads."	s, Code 1A date	s, and d 12/25/	87
······································			·	<u></u>		
BASIS FOR CHAN	GE Lester P. Skousen lett	er dated Mar	ch 23, 1988.	<u>SEE</u> _CO	NTINUATION	N PAG
₩MPO:MBB-2051,	dtd. 5/12/88 and WMPO:MBB-	2016, dtd. 5	5/9/88			
				······		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
		<u> </u>		· · · · · · · · ·		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			$\Delta \Delta \Delta$			
	·				NTINUATION	PAG
CARTICIPANA	make: DATE 6/2/50	ESF ICHE R	EFTESENTATA	DATE OR	ATTICIPAL	NT
SECTION 2 ICWG	CHAIRMAN ACTION NC	T APPLICARI	F			
1. PROCEED WT 2. PROCEED WT	TH ECR EVALUATION VES	NO SC	OPE CHANGE NSTRUCTION I	YE	SNC YES_	)
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/r	i Secresse) ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION ICABLE TOTALS	ROM	BUOG	ET	PROJECT	ED
4. SCHEDUUNG	MPACTNOT APPLICABL	E		·	·····	
			ENGINEERI	NG		WEE
5. PROCEED W PROCEED W	TTH DETAIL ENGINEERING	YESN	ю Ю			
6. FUNDING:	CABLE V NOT FUNDED, PR		<b>v</b>	<u></u>		
CHANGE OF			ICWG	CHAIPN		
7. APPROVED			1			
			ICWG	CHAIRM	My "A	

i de la constante de la consta



Subparts are.

1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System
1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities
1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces
1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas
1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities
1.2.6.3.6 Shop
1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse
1.2.6.3.8 Trailers
1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25)
1.2.6.3.10 Communications, Data Building

### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

# Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1A dated 12/25/87 except for seismic requirements 0111-2.7 Earthquake loads.

In addition, see Section 1.2 6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

### **Functional Requirements**

1 Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:

3-1

- a. Ventilation system
- b. Test support facilities
  - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
- c. Trailer spaces
- d. Parking areas
  - 1) Surface mobile equipment

Rev 6

#### CSCR -011

### PPOPOSED MODIFICATION

27

Rev. 6

- 2) Personnel parking
- 3) Visitor parking
- e. Materials storage facilities
- f. Shop
- g. Warehouse
- h. Trailers
  - 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (PIs)
  - 2) Offices for site security
  - 3) Offices for site operations staff
  - 4) Offices for site administration and training
  - 5) Offices for Quality Assurance
  - 6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction
  - 7) Laboratories, etc.
  - 8) Change trailers
  - 9) First and trailer
  - 10) Test support trailer
  - 11) NRC and State offices
- 1. A&E building (Area 25) . •
  - 1) Administration
    - 2) Visitors
    - 3) Training
    - 4) Engineering staff
    - 5) Security
    - 6) Labs (as required)
    - 7) Sleeping quarters (as required)
    - 8) Offices for Pls
    - 9) NRC and State offices
- j. Communications and data building
  - 1) Computer control system
  - 2) Data acquisition (IDS)
  - 2) Data acquisition
     3) Communications equipment
- 2 Provide air quality monitoring
- 3 Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4 Provide dust control and or collection facilities.
- 5 Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions
- 6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2 The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life. unless otherwise noted.

Rev. 6

# PROPOSED MODIFICATION

'89 011

- 3 The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security. including controlled access and emergency response.
- 4. The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC). compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.
- 5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.
- 6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

### **Interface Control Requirements**

CSCR

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### Constraints

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3 To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4 Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

### Assumptions

None.

89 011

Rev. 1

## **1.2.6.3 SURFACE FACILITIES**

Subparts are:

1.2.6.3.1 Ventilation System 1.2.6.3.2 Test Support Facilities 1.2.6.3.3 Trailer Spaces 1.2.6.3.4 Parking Areas 1.2.6.3.5 Materials Storage Facilities 1.2.6.3.6 Shop 1.2.6.3.7 Warehouse 1.2.6.3.8 Trailers 1.2.6.3.9 A&E Building (Area 25) 1.2.6.3.10 Communications/Data Building

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The surface facilities system and subsystem includes all the facilities, systems, and services for the surface buildings and trailers that are required for the support of ESF operations and in situ site characterization.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The designs shall be in accordance with:

1. DOE 6430.1

In addition, see Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

### **Functional Requirements**

- 1. Provide buildings and supporting equipment for the following functions:
  - a. Ventilation system
  - b. Test support facilities
    - 1) Test apparatus assembly pad
  - c. Trailer spaces
  - d. Parking areas
    - 1) Surface mobile equipment
    - 2) Personnel parking
    - 3) Visitor parking
  - e. Materials storage facilities
  - f. Shop
  - g. Warehouse
  - h. Trailers

011

'89

Rev. 1

- 1) Offices for Principal Investigators (Pls)
- 2) Offices for site security
- 3) Offices for site operations staff
- 4) Offices for site administration and training
- 5) Offices for Quality Assurance
- 6) Offices for support of shaft and facility construction

EXISTING ____

- 7) Laboratories, etc.
- 8) Change trailers
- 9) First aid trailer
- 10) Test support trailer
- 11) NRC and State offices
- i. A&E building (Area 25)
  - 1) Administration
    - 2) Visitors
    - 3) Training
    - 4) Engineering staff
    - 5) Security
    - 6) Labs (as required)
    - 7) Sleeping quarters (as required)
    - 8) Offices for Pls
    - 9) NRC and State offices
- j. Communications and data building
  - 1) Computer/control system -
  - 2) Data acquisition (IDS)
  - 3) Communications equipment
- 2. Provide air quality monitoring.
- 3. Provide water quality monitoring (including the physical, chemical, and biological characteristics of ESF wastewater, the receiving water body, and any other water bodies that could be affected by ESF operations).
- 4. Provide dust control and/or collection facilities.
- 5. Provide for the detection of and protection from fires and explosions.
- 6. Provide onsite transportation facilities for equipment, materials, and rock.

### **Performance Criteria**

- 1. The surface facilities shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. The surface facilities shall be designed and constructed for a nominal 5-year life. unless otherwise noted.
- 3. The surface facilities and their locations shall (a) facilitate the flow of material and personnel within the ESF site and (b) provide adequate ESF site security, including controlled access and emergency response.
- 4. The facilities shall be complete with Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC), compressed air, plumbing and sanitary facilities, lighting, communications, and fire protection systems, as appropriate for the intended use.

EXISTINGER _____'89 011

Rev. 1

- 5. Surface facilities shall combine functions when the combinations are cost effective.
- 6. The surface facilities shall be located away from potential dust generating areas to the extent practicable.

### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### **Constraints**

- 1. The general layout of the surface facilities shall be designed to minimize disturbance to the existing area.
- 2. To the extent practicable and economical, modular, relocatable, or portable structures shall be considered for surface facilities.
- 3. To the extent practicable and consistent with procurement regulations, consideration of surplus government equipment shall be given to fulfill the requirements for the surface facilities and equipment.
- 4. Each inhabited structure shall have rest rooms, water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, as required for the intended use.

### Assumptions

None.

<u> </u>		NNWSI PROJECT	Page 1 of 1 N-AD-
	COST/SCHE	EDULE CHANGE REQUES	Г (C/SCR) 9/87
Change No.:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
89/012	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
Title: Revise the Document ( Change Req	Exploratory Shaft SDRD) NVO-309 in A juest (ECR) 020	t Facility (ESF) Subsystem Accordance with the Approv	n Design Requirements ved ESF Engineering
Explanation & Re	ason for Change:		
WBS: 1.2.	6.1.1.T		
CHANGE: S	ee the attached ES	SF ECR 020.	
	the lDesis for	Channell on ESE ECP 000	
REASUN: S	ee the basis for	change on LSF Lok 020.	
COST IMPAC	T: None		
SCHEDULE I	MPACT: None		
ATTACHMENT.	S: 1. Letter, L. Proposed C Subsystem Engi cerin	P. Skousen to M. E. Spae Changes to the Exploratory Design Requirements Docum ng Change Requests (ECRs)	th, July 20, 1988, Shaft Facility ent (SDRD) 010 through 027.
	2. ESF ECR 02	20.	
		· •	
	······································		
		Mall Di	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Responsible Orga	nization <u>N. L. Spa</u>	actin	Date//22/83
200 C	. C. Merkley	Alken in Int	n

	BASELIN	rucca M Te Chan	GUNTA GE EVI	IN FROJECT ALUATICN SUM	MARY			
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 020.	SDRD 1	n acco	ordance with		C/SCF 89/0	8 No: 012	
	Summary of Recommended Actic	ons:			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
		Pr Rese	<u>ciect</u> E£D	Office PSOC QA	MIES	SEEI	SEEC	Admin
	Concurrence		X				ম	N
	Concurrence with Conditions					) []		
1	Non Concurrence							
	NO Recommendation	LXJ						
	Comment Summary Evaluation: Impact". (2) "This request for an a	(1) " iddicio	This w nal sa	vill have a ( ifety ground	lost Imp system	act bu to be	t no S design re is r	chedule ed by no
	H&N for the main ESF Substa data/analysis to substantia must be provided".	ition i ite the	added	l cost and so	a result chedule	impact	s. Th	is
	H&N for the main ESF Substa data/analysis to substantia must be provided". Impact Analyses: Data was cost.	not pr	added	l cost and so	e impact	relat	s. Th	is the
	H&N for the main ESF Substa data/analysis to substantia must be provided". Impact Analyses: Data was cost.	not pr	added	i to indicate	e impact	relat	s. Th	is the

CSCR _____'89 012 Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518 RECEIVED JUL 20 1988 M. E. SPAETH four 11 ' JUL 21 1988 Hichael E. Spaeth Route My Technical Project Officer Copies for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO:DBI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

101 Convention Center Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89109

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 5 5 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 

# CS_R _____'89 012

IUL 20 1993

Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

...

•

FSECR-003 Page

ECR NO. 020	
	PAGE
	OF
SECTION 1. TO BE COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUEST	
OA LEVEL	
SOURCE Fenix & Scisson, Inc.	PARTICIPANT Fenix & Scisson
WBS DESIGNATION 1.2.0.2.1	
DESCRIPTION	REV. NO. DATE
	REV. NODATE
A safety ground system will be designed and specif	ied by Holmes and Narver at
the main substation for the ESF. The 4,160 volt s	ystem will have the neutral
grounded through a 25 amp resistor and connected t	o a safety ground bed separated .
by a minimum of 50 ft. The SDRD Sections 1.2.6.2.	1, 1.2.6.4 and 1.2.6.5 need
to be revised	
BASIS FOR CHANGE	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
1 Drauida biobast danna of parsonal safety and	
1. Provide nignest degree of personnel safety USI	ng mobile equipment.
2. Agrees with the current trend at the NIS for a	sately ground system for
subsurface activities.	
	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
SCOPE CHANGE <u>XYES</u> NO CO	NSTRUCTION IMPACT X YES NO
PARTICIPANTS A // ESF KW	G REPRESENTATIVE OR PARTICIPANT
OA REP FAIL BALLY DATE 42788 TPO 7	22110 DATE 6/27/84
SECTION 2. ACTION	
2. PROCEED WITH WORK	-NO Den il Ortal
	ESE ICWG CHAIPMAN
3. TOTAL COSTS ROM	BUDGET PROJECTED
(Increase/decrease) ENGINEERING	
TOTALS	
A, SCHEDUCING IMPACT ENGINEERING	WEEVO
	WEFKS
CONSTRUCTION	
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YESYES	NO
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES     PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. J. J
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. H. D. H. ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. H. D. H. ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. J. J. D. J. ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. H. D. Ly ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO Duri H. Outr
S. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES	NO NO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWG STUDIES J. H. Q.Ly ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO ESF CHAIRMAN ICWO

ECR NO. 020

Page 2 of 2

#### ATTACHMENT TO FSECR-003

012

• • •

A. Revisions to the subsystems Design Requirements Document:

1. Section 1.2.6.2.1, power systems - refer to the last sentence of paragraph 2 under performance criteria.

CSCR _____'89

5.5.5

Present wording = "Adequate surge protection and a wellengineered grounding system shall be provided in order to maximize personnel and equipment safety."

Revision: "Adequate <u>primary</u> surge protection and a wellengineered, <u>separate "safety</u>" grounding system shall be provided in order to maximize personnel and equipment safety."

2. Section 1.2.6.4, First Shaft - Constraint No. 11.

Present Wording: "Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the integrity of the underground electrical grounding system is electrically isolated from the surface electrical grounding system."

Revision: "Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the underground electrical grounding system is electrically <u>bonded to</u> the surface electrical <u>"safety"</u> grounding system."

3. Section 1.2.6.5, Second Shaft'- Constraint No. 13.

Present wording and the revisions are exactly the same as stated in number A2 above for 1.2.6.4.

# 1.2.6.2.1 POWER SYSTEMS

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The power systems are defined as those systems, subsystems, components, and structures that supply electrical power to the ESF site. These systems include, but are not limited to, the ESF site substation, extension of the existing 69-kV overhead power line, a secondary power line (to the booster pump station), surface lighting, a stand-by power generation system, and an uninterruptable power system (UPS).

### Functional Requirements

Electrical power systems shall provide all of the necessary power, during both normal and peak demands, for the construction and operation of the ESF.

Standby power systems shall provide all of the necessary power to systems and subsystems that have been identified as required to operate in the event of a power outage based on safety, operational, or security requirements, for the construction and operation of the ESF.

The UPS shall provide all of the necessary power to systems and subsystems that cannot tolerate a loss of power incident.

### **Performance Criteria**

- 1. The UPS, consisting of standby batteries and inverter, shall ensure continuity of power to the Integrated Data System (IDS), safety instruments and controls, and communications that cannot tolerate a power interruption.
- 2. Power distribution for the ESF, including the primary and secondary substations, transmission lines, and feeder cables, shall be adequately designed, with sufficient redundancy to meet load requirements at points of usage throughout the operations areas. Suitable switching and protective devices shall be provided in the electrical system to prevent damage to the equipment in case of power failure or faults. Sufficient metering shall be provided to establish the demand and consumption of power Adequate primary surge protection and a well-engineered separate "safety" grounding system shall be provided in order to maximize personnel and equipment safety.
- 3. A 69-kV overhead power line shall be designed to be routed from the existing 69-kV line (at the NTS boundary) to a main substation at the ESF site to accommodate all of the anticipated electrical loads during the construction and operation of the ESF. In addition, the main substation at the ESF site shall be designed to accommodate all of the anticipated electrical loads during the construction and operations of the ESF.

2.1-1

Rev. o

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

# 4. The power distribution system shall provide adequate services from the main ESF substation to the surface and subsurface facilities.

- 5. The surface facilities power distribution system shall include the appropriate services to surface-mounted equipment. Surface-mounted equipment (permanent and temporary) includes, but is not limited to:
  - a. Hoists and controls
  - b. Air compressor(s)
  - c. Ventilation fans
  - d. Communication equipment, as required
  - e. Main water supply pump(s)
  - f. Shaft-work-deck winches and miscellaneous motors
  - g. Trailers
  - h. Shops
  - i. Lights
- 6. The electrical system shall be designed to withstand windblown dust and other natural phenomena.
- 7. The subsurface facilities power distribution system shall be defined in Section 1.2.6.7 1
- 8. The standby power system shall provide standby power for safety and security lighting.
- 9. The standby power system shall include generators, fuel tanks, transfer switches, necessary fuel piping, conduit and wire, cutouts, concrete work, and weatherproof enclosures. The generators shall have sufficient output to provide power for the hoists (to allow for evacuation of all underground personnel within the time allowed), ventilation, area lighting, and surface computer equipment that would be damaged by a power failure. The allowable delay time between the loss of primary power and the availability of standby power will be dictated by safety considerations of the mining operation.
- 10. Standby generators shall be installed and have the capability to support the hoisting systems when the hoist(s) become operational.

### Constraints

- 1. The normal supply of electrical power shall be provided by a substation to be constructed at the ESF site. Power for this substation shall be supplied from an existing 69-kV overhead power line extending from Canyon Substation in Jackass Flats to the NTS boundary 6.2 miles away.
- 2. The design of the electrical system shall include the modifications that are required to accommodate the tie-in of the proposed 69-kV transmission line between the Canyon Substation and the main substation to be located at the ESF site.
- 3. The design shall incorporate existing NNWSI Project transformers and switch gear as much as practicable.
- 4. A power supply shall be available as soon as possible but no later than the start of shaft construction.

Rev. n

# Assumptions

### None.

· · ·

•

.

.

2 1-3

Rev. 6

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. o

### 1.2.6.4 FIRST SHAFT

Subparts are:

1.2.6.4.1 Collar 1.2.6.4.2 Lining 1.2.6.4.3 Stations 1.2.6.4.4 Furnishings 1.2.6.4.5 Hoist System 1.2.6.4.6 Sump

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The first shaft system is defined by the vertical engineered openings, within an 11-foot radius of the shaft centerline, that connect the surface with the targeted horizons, provide safe and controlled access to the targeted horizons for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and includes the materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0. Applicable Regulations. Codes. and Specifications.

### **Functional Requirements**

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the underground portion of the ESF to meet the needs of underground site characterization testing (at two levels). The flexibility to sink shafts in Calico Hills will be maintained.
- 2. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.
- 3. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 4. Provide means for emergency egress.

## Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the requirements of personnel, equipment, materials, utilities, excavated rock, and ventilation.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures. systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year design life.

# OSCR _____'89 012 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. "

- 3. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control.
- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for operation and in-situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.
- 5. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The size and depth of the shart shall be sufficient for in situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements, Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item =2.
- 11. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 12. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 13. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 14. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 15. Shaft instrumentation will be protected from physical damage.
- 16. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.
- 17. Functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. -

I

# Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### **Constraints**

- 1. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.
- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives, and water shall be controlled so that in situsite characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6 Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be designed to withstand the anticipated effects.
- 9. The centerline coordinate location of ES-1 (science shaft) shall be N766.255. E563.630 as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 10. The shaft shall be connected with ES-2 (second shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020 level).
- 11. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the underground electrical grounding system is electrically bonded to the surface electrical "safety" grounding system.
- 12. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished inside diameter is 12 feet.
- 13. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to withstand the effects of the seismic events as defined in the RIB.

### Assumptions

None.

_'89 012

Rev. o

# 1.2.6.5 SECOND SHAFT

Subparts are:

1.2.6.5.1 Collar 1.2.6.5.2 Lining 1.2.6.5.3 Station 1.2.6.5.4 Furnishings 1.2.6.5.5 Hoist System 1.2.6.5.6 Sump

**PROPOSED MODIFICATION** 

## **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The second shaft system is defined by those systems, subsystems, and components that are comprised of vertical engineered openings, within 11 feet of the shaft centerline, that connects the surface with the targeted repository horizon. The system provides safe and controlled access to the targeted repository horizon for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations. The second shaft will serve as the primary muck hoisting shaft for test area development.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0. Applicable Regulations. Codes. and Specifications.

### **Functional Requirements**

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the candidate repository horizon to meet the needs of site characterization testing, emergency egress, ventilation intake and exhaust, major muck handling, and primary transport of heavy equipment.
- 2. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 3. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the emergency egress, ventilation, mining and testing requirements.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintinable 100-year design life.

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 5

- 3 The shaft shall serve as the primary rock hoisting and construction support shaft
- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for ESF operations and in situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.

CSCR .

_'89

012

- 5. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.
- 10. The size and depth of the shaft shall be sufficient for in-situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- 11. The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements Section 1.2.6.0. Performance Criteria 2.
- 12. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 13. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 14. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 15. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 16. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 17. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.

2ev. 0

CSCR

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

## Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### Constraints

- 1. The functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.
- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives and water shall be controlled so that in situ site characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6. Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be considered in the ESF design as defined in the RIB. Phased construction techniques shall be employed to accommodate postconstruction thermal stresses.
- 9. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished diameter is 12 feet.
- 10. The centerline coordinate location of the ES-2 (second shaft), in the Nevada Coordinate System, shall be N766,337; E 563,918.
- 11. The shaft shall be connected with ES-1 (science shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020-level).
- 12. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 13. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the the underground electrical grounding system is electrically bonded to the surface electrical "safety" grounding system."
- 14. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to accommadate seismic events as defined in the RIB.

### Assumptions

None.

#### ____'89 012

CSCR _

Rev. 1

### 1.2.6.2.1 POWER SYSTEMS

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The power systems are defined as those systems, subsystems, components, and structures that supply electrical power to the ESF site. These systems include, but are not limited to, the ESF site substation, extension of the existing 69-kV overhead power line, a secondary power line (to the booster pump station), surface lighting, a stand-by power generation system, and an uninterruptable power system (UPS).

### Functional Requirements

Electrical power systems shall provide all of the necessary power, during both normal and peak demands, for the construction and operation of the ESF.

Standby power systems shall provide all of the necessary power to systems and subsystems that have been identified as required to operate in the event of a power outage based on safety, operational, or security requirements, for the construction and operation of the ESF.

The UPS shall provide all of the necessary power to systems and subsystems that cannot tolerate a loss of power incident.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The UPS, consisting of standby batteries and inverter, shall ensure continuity of power to the Integrated Data System (IDS), safety instruments and controls, and communications that cannot tolerate a power interruption.
- 2. Power distribution for the ESF, including the primary and secondary substations. transmission lines, and feeder cables, shall be adequately designed, with sufficient redundancy to meet load requirements at points of usage throughout the operations areas. Suitable switching and protective devices shall be provided in the electrical system to prevent damage to the equipment in case of power failure or faults. Sufficient metering shall be provided to establish the demand and consumption of power. Adequate surge protection and a well-engineered grounding system shall be provided in order to maximize personnel and equipment safety.
- 3. A 69-kV overhead power line shall be designed to be routed from the existing 69-kV line (at the NTS boundary) to a main substation at the ESF site to accommodate all of the anticipated electrical loads during the construction and operation of the ESF. In addition, the main substation at the ESF site shall be designed to accommodate all of the anticipated electrical loads during the construction and operations of the ESF.

CSCR _____'89 012

EXISTING

Rev. 1

- 4. The power distribution system shall provide adequate services from the main ESF substation to the surface and subsurface facilities.
- 5. The surface facilities power distribution system shall include the appropriate services to surface-mounted equipment. Surface-mounted equipment (permanent and temporary) includes, but is not limited to:
  - a. Hoists and controls
  - b. Air compressor(s)
  - c. Ventilation fans
  - d. Communication equipment, as required
  - e. Main water supply pump(s)
  - f. Shaft-work-deck winches and miscellaneous motors
  - g. Trailers
  - h. Shops
  - i. Lights
- 6. The electrical system shall be designed to withstand windblown dust and other natural phenomena.
- 7. The subsurface facilities power distribution system shall be defined in Section 1.2.6.7.1.
- 8. The standby power system shall provide standby power for safety and security lighting.
- 9. The standby power system shall include generators, fuel tanks, transfer switches, necessary fuel piping, conduit and wire, cutouts, concrete work, and weatherproof enclosures. The generators shall have sufficient output to provide power for the hoists (to allow for evacuation of all underground personnel within the time allowed), ventilation, area lighting, and surface computer equipment that would be damaged by a power failure. The allowable delay time between the loss of primary power and the availability of standby power will be dictated by safety considerations of the mining operation.
- 10. Standby generators shall be installed and have the capability to support the hoisting systems when the hoist(s) become operational.

### **Constraints**

- 1. The normal supply of electrical power shall be provided by a substation to be constructed at the ESF site. Power for this substation shall be supplied from an existing 69-kV overhead power line extending from Canyon Substation in Jackass Flats to the NTS boundary 6.2 miles away.
- 2. The design of the electrical system shall include the modifications that are required to accommodate the tie-in of the proposed 69-kV transmission line between the Canyon Substation and the main substation to be located at the ESF site.
- 3. The design shall incorporate existing NNWSI Project transformers and switch gear as much as practicable.
- 4. A power supply shall be available as soon as possible but no later than the start of shaft construction.

# Assumptions

# None.

8

· .

.

.

EXISTING

. .

Rev. 1

CSCR ____'89 012
__'89 012

Rev. 1

### 1.2.6.4 FIRST SHAFT

**EXISTING** 

CSCR .

Subparts are:

1.5

1.2.0.4.1	Collar
1.2.6.4.3	Stations
1.2.6.4.4	Furnishings
1.2.6.4.5	Hoist System
1.2.6.4.6	Sump

. . . . .

### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The first shaft system is defined by the vertical engineered openings, within an 11-foot radius of the shaft centerline, that connect the surface with the targeted horizons, provide safe and controlled access to the targeted horizons for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and includes the materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

### **Functional Requirements**

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the underground portion of the ESF to meet the needs of underground site characterization testing (at three levels).
- 2. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.
- 3. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 4. Provide means for emergency egress.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the requirements of personnel, equipment, materials, utilities, excavated rock, and ventilation.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year design life.

CSCR _____'89 012

Rev. 1

3. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control.

EXISTING

- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for operation and in-situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.
- 5. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air/water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The size and depth of the shaft shall be sufficient for in situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements, Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.
- 11. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 12. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 13. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 14. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 15. Shaft instrumentation will be protected from physical damage.
- 16. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.
- 17. Functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.

CSCa . _____'89 012



### **Interface Control Requirements**

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### Constraints

1. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.

EXISTING

- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives, and water shall be controlled so that in situ site characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6. Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be designed to withstand the anticipated effects.
- 9. The centerline coordinate location of ES-1 (science shaft) shall be N766.255. E563,630 as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 10. The shaft shall be connected with ES-2 (second shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020 level).
- 11. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the integrity of the underground electrical grounding system is electrically isolated from the surface electrical grounding system.
- 12. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished inside diameter is 12 feet.
- 13. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to withstand the effects of the seismic events as defined in the RIB.

### Assumptions

None.

CSCR ____'89 012

Rev. 1

### 1.2.6.5 SECOND SHAFT

Subparts are:

1.2.6.5.1	Collar Lining
1.2.6.5.3	Station Furnishings
1.2.6.5.5	Hoist System
1.2.0.5.0	annh -

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The second shaft system is defined by those systems, subsystems, and components that are comprised of vertical engineered openings, within 11 feet of the shaft centerline, that connects the surface with the targeted repository horizon. The system provides safe and controlled access to the targeted repository horizon for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations. The second shaft will serve as the primary muck hoisting shaft for test area development.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

### Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the candidate repository horizon to meet the needs of site characterization testing, emergency egress, ventilation intake and exhaust, major muck handling, and primary transport of heavy equipment.
- 2. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 3. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the emergency egress, ventilation, mining and testing requirements.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintinable 100-year design life.

289 012

CSCR

Rev. 1

3. The shaft shall serve as the primary rock hoisting and construction support shaft.

EXISTING

- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for ESF operations and in situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.
- 5. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air/water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.
- 10. The size and depth of the shaft shall be sufficient for in-situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- 11. The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria 2.
- 12. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 13. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 14. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 15. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 16. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 17. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.

EXISTING CSCR _____'89 012

Rev. 1

### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### Constraints

- 1. The functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.
- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives and water shall be controlled 30 that in situsite characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6. Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be considered in the ESF design as defined in the RIB. Phased construction techniques shall be employed to accommodate postconstruction thermal stresses.
- 9. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished diameter is 12 feet.
- 10. The centerline coordinate location of the ES-2 (second shaft), in the Nevada Coordinate System, shall be N766,337; E 563,918.
- 11. The shaft shall be connected with ES-1 (science shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020-level).
- 12. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 13. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the integrity of the underground electrical grounding system is electrically isolated from the surface electrical grounding system.
- 14. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to accommadate seismic events as defined in the RIB.

### Assumptions

None.

х Х		NNWSI COST/SCHEDULE CHA	PROJECT Fage NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-0 SCR) 9/87
Chang	ie No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
89/0	013	SAIC	¥. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
Title:	Revise the Exp Document (SDRD Change Request	loratory Shaft Facility ) NVO-309 in Accordance (ECR) 021	(ESF) Subsystem Desig with the Approved ES	gn Requirements F Engineering
Expla	nation & Reason	for Change:		<u></u>
	WBS: 1.2.6.1	.1.T	•	
	CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR 021.		
	REASON: See t	he "Basis for Change" on	ESF ECR 021.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE INPAC	T: None		
	ATTICUENTS.	1. Lotton I. B. Chauser	- to W. F. Soooth J	.1. 00 1000
	ATTACINE ATS :	Proposed Changes to Subsystem Design Req Engineering Change Ro through 027.	the Exploratory Shaft uirements Document (S equests (ECRs) 010	L Facility SDRD)
		2. ESF ECR 021.		
Respo	onsible Organizat	ion <u>W. E. Spaeth</u>	Spuelt	Date 11/22/88

					· .						
					•••••	· ·					
	YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY										
	Baseline Change: Revise ES approved ESF-ECR 021	F-SDRD	in ac	cordan	ce wit	h	C/SC7 89/0	No: 013			
	Summary of Recommended Actio	ns:					L				
		?r	ciect	Office	<u>.                                    </u>			SEMSS			
		RESE	E&D	2039	QA	MIES	S&EI	SECC	ADMIN		
	Concurrence		X	$\square$	X	X	X	$\mathbf{X}$	X		
	Concurrence with Conditions										
l	Non Concurrence								$\Box$		
	No Recommendation	Z									
	Comment Summary Evaluation:					<u></u>					
	Impact Analyses:										
· ·		•									
	+Din	6.					Page				
Ц	CC2 Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u>	J.		Date	<u>, i2/i</u>	2/87	_1	of <u>1</u>			



0303 _____'89 013

Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

for 11' JUL 21 1988 Route Copies _

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Management Project Office

**WHPO: DHI-2970** 

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JUI 22 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 



•

11. ..



Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WMPO, NV

CSOR '89 013	
ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQU	JEST
ECR NO. 021	PAGE OF
SECTION 1. TO BE COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTING COMPLETED BY PARTI	HANGE ATCIPANT SAIC ATE 6710788 AIGINATOR SAIC V. NO. 1 DATE 12718787
In the ESF SDRD, 1.2.6.4 First Shaft Functional Require read, "Provide safe access between the ESF surface and ESF to meet the needs of underground site characterizat The flexibility to sink shafts in the Calico Hills will	ments (page 4-1) change 1 to the underground portion of the ion testing (at two levels). be maintained."
BASIS FOR CHANGE Agreement from DOE ESF Issues Meeting 4/21/88. "Project changes to the SDRD removing any requirements to penetr the requirement for flexibility to sink shafts and drift	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE it will initiate the appropriate ate the Calico Hills. However, it in the Calico Hills will be
PARTICIPANT CA RER LICE DATE 6/23/655 TPO 7, 3/2 SECTION 2! ICWG CHAIRMAN ACTION NOT APPLICABLE 1. PROCEED WITH ECR EVALUATIONYESNO SCOP 2. PROCEED WITH WORKYESNO CONS	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE RESENTATIVE OR PARTICIPANT DATE <u>C/3/75</u> E CHANGE YES NO TRUCTION IMPACT YES NO
3. TOTAL COSTS (increase/decrease) ENGINEERING NOT APPLICABLE TOTALSNOT APPLICABLE	BUDGET PROJECTED
- SUILDULING MICAUTIUT AFFLICABLE	ENGINEERING WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES NO PROCEED WITH DETAIL ESTIMATE YES NO	
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICABLENOT FUNDED, PROJECTED ONLY CHANGE ORDERSPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG CHAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED	ICWG CHAIRMANDATE

Rev. 5

### 1.2.6.4 FIRST SHAFT

Subparts are:

1.2.6.4.1	Collar
1.2.6.4.2	Lining
1.2.6.4.3	Stations
1.2.6.4.4	Furnishings
1.2.6.4.5	Hoist System
1.2.6.4.6	Sump

CSCR _____'89 013

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The first shaft system is defined by the vertical engineered openings, within an 11-foot radius of the shaft centerline, that connect the surface with the targeted horizons, provide safe and controlled access to the targeted horizons for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and includes the materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

### Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the underground portion of the LSF to meet the needs of underground site characterization testing (at two levels). The flexibility to sink shafts in Calico Hills will be maintained.
- 2. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.
- 3. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 4. Provide means for emergency egress.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the requirements of personnel, equipment, materials, utilities, excavated rock, and ventilation.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year design life.

## CSCR ____'8; 013 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 7

- 3. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control.
- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for operation and in-situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.
- 5. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collec-. tion point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The size and depth of the shaft shall be sufficient for in situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- 10. The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements, Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item **≈2**.
- 11. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 12. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 13. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 14. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 15. Shaft instrumentation will be protected from physical damage.
- 16. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.
- 17. Functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.

CSCR _____'89 013 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. o

### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### Constraints

1. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.

- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives, and water shall be controlled so that in situ site characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6. Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be designed to withstand the anticipated effects.
- 9. The centerline coordinate location of ES-1 (science shaft) shall be N766.255. E563,630 as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 10. The shaft shall be connected with ES-2 (second shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020 level).
- 11. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the underground electrical grounding system is electrically bonded to the surface electrical "safety" grounding system.
- 12. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished inside diameter is 12 feet.
- 13. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to withstand the effects of the seismic events as defined in the RIB.

### Assumptions

None.

4-3

.



#### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The first shaft system is defined by the vertical engineered openings, within an 11-foot radius of the shaft centerline, that connect the surface with the targeted horizons, provide safe and controlled access to the targeted horizons for personnel, equipment, underground service systems, and includes the materials required for development of the underground drifts and excavations, as well as underground testing operations.

### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

See Section 1.2.6.0, Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

# Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide safe access between the ESF surface and the underground portion of the ESF to meet the needs of underground site characterization testing (at three levels).
- 2. Provide for testing in the shaft as required.
- 3. Provide for water drainage and/or control in the shaft.
- 4. Provide means for emergency egress.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that it meets the requirements of personnel, equipment, materials, utilities, excavated rock, and ventilation.
- 2. Permanent shaft structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year design life.

. ₁99**4-1** 

### CSCA _____.'89 013

Rev. 1

3. Structures, systems, and components shall be provided for effective water and ground control.

EXISTING

- 4. Muck handling systems shall be sized and designed for operation and in-situ site characterization needs and shall minimize the spillage of rock during rock handling. This system shall provide capabilities for gathering and cleaning out rock spillage from the shaft bottom.
- 5. The location of openings for rock handling shall be selected to minimize effects on the integrity of any other openings.
- 6. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated into the shaft for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 7. The shaft and its drainage systems shall control standing water and air/water contact surfaces where ventilation air will be flowing through in order to control the humidity in the air and to maintain the quality of the ventilation air being supplied.
- 8. The size and shape of the shaft shall be adequate to supply and exhaust the required volumes of air for underground construction, operation, and in situ site characterization.
- 9. The size and depth of the shaft shall be sufficient for in situ site characterization needs in terms of testing, personnel, materials, equipment, utilities, and schedule.
- The size and layout of the shaft shall be adequate for in-situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting the excavation allowances determined under General Exploratory Shaft Facility requirements, Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.
- 11. Shaft design and construction shall provide for ESF design and construction testing, performance confirmation, and in situ site characterization testing to the extent necessary.
- 12. Necessary shaft facilities and equipment required for handling excavated rock, materials, equipment, and supplies shall support construction, operations, and in situ site characterization testing.
- 13. Water handling and control in the shaft shall be sized for credible water inflows.
- 14. Support facilities, utilities, and equipment shall be designed and constructed to accommodate conventional shaft sinking techniques (i.e., drill and blast).
- 15. Shaft instrumentation will be protected from physical damage.
- 16. The shaft shall be excavated and structurally lined using methods and materials based upon conventional shaft construction technology for the shaft diameter and depth under consideration.
- 17. Functional requirements of the shafts may be assigned to either of the shafts.

**4-2** 

<u>'89</u> 013

Rev. 1

### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

### **Constraints**

1. The shaft and its furnishings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.

**EXISTING** 

CSCR

- 2. Techniques used for shaft excavation shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 3. The shaft will be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. The use of blasting agents, explosives, and water shall be controlled so that in situ site characterization is not adversely affected.
- 5. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials shall be compatible with waste isolation and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.
- 6. Ventilation air velocities in the shaft shall not exceed 2,000 feet per minute.
- 7. Ventilation capacity, shaft design, and air velocities in the shaft shall be optimized with respect to the NNWSI Project objectives.
- 8. The predicted thermal and thermomechanical response of the host rock and surrounding strata and groundwater system shall be designed to withstand the anticipated effects.
- 9. The centerline coordinate location of ES-1 (science shaft) shall be N766.255. E563,630 as defined by the Nevada Coordinate System.
- 10. The shaft shall be connected with ES-2 (second shaft) prior to full-scale in situ testing on the Main Test Level (1020 level).
- 11. Utility lines, shaft steel, etc., shall be designed such that the integrity of the underground electrical grounding system is electrically isolated from the surface electrical grounding system.
- 12. The shaft shall be designed and constructed such that its nominal finished inside diameter is 12 feet.
- 13. Shaft permanent structures shall be designed and constructed to withstand the effects of the seismic events as defined in the RIB.

#### Assumptions

None.

		n andre yn regel yn de ferner yn regel yn de ferner yn regel yn de ferner yn regel yn regel yn de ferner yn reg New yn regel yn regel New yn regel													
	NNY COST/SCHEDULE	VSI PROJECT Page CHANGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87												
Change No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:												
89/014	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88												
Title: Revise the Exp Document (SDRD Change Request	loratory Shaft Facili ) NVO-309 in Accordan (ECR) 022	ty (ESF) Subsystem Designce with the Approved ESF	n Requirements Engineering												
		1987.ge													
Explanation & Reason	tor Change:														
WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANGE: See the attached ESF ECR 022. REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 022.															
												COST IMPACT:	None		
												SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None		
ATTACHMENTS:	<ol> <li>Letter, L. P. Sko Proposed Changes Subsystem Design Change Requests (</li> </ol>	usen to ['] N. E. Spaeth, Ju to the Exploratory Shaft Requirements Document (S ECRs) 010 through 027.	ly 20, 1988, Facility DRD) Engineering												
	2. ESF ECR 022.														
		. •													
		÷													
	·····	117													
Responsible Organizat	ion <u>H. E. Spaeth</u>	11 loube	Date _1/2 2/83												
CCB Secretary P. C.	Merkley Miller	klay -	Date 12/13/88												
Approval: Project Ma	inager, WMPOd <u>C. P.</u>	Gertz /	Date												
	Change No: 89/014 Title: Revise the Exp Document (SDRD Change Request Explanation & Reason WBS: 1.2.6.1. CHANGE: See t REASON: See t COST IMPACT: SCHEDULE IMPAC ATTACHMENTS: Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u> Approval: Project Ma	NNW COST/SCHEDULE ( Change No: 89/014 SAIC Title: Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facili Document (SDRD) NV0-309 in Accordar Change Request (ECR) 022 Explanation & Reason for Change: WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANGE: See the attached ESF ECR C REASON: See the "Basis for Change" COST IMPACT: None SCHEDULE IMPACT: None ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Sko Proposed Changes Subsystem Design Change Requests ( 2. ESF ECR 022. Responsible Organization <u>W. E. Spaeth</u> CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Werkley</u> Approval: Project Manager, WMPO-C. P.	NNWSI PROJECT         Page COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/S           Change No:         Organization:         Originator:           89/014         SAIC         W.E. Spaeth           Title:         Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Desig Document (SDRD) NV0-309 in Accordance with the Approved ESF Change Request (ECR) 022           Explanation & Reason for Change:         WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T           CHANGE:         See the attached ESF ECR 022.           REASON:         See the "Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 022.           COST IMPACT:         None           ATTACHMENTS:         1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to N. E. Spaeth, Ju Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Subsystem Design Requirements Document Subsystem Design Requirements Document Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.           2.         ESF ECR 022.												

YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY								
Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 022	SDRD	in acc	ordanc	e with		C/SCF 89/0	L NO: 14	
Summary of Recommended Actic	ns:	· • • •	<u>.</u>					<u> </u>
	Pr	cject	<u>Office</u>	<u> </u>	<b>6</b>	1	SWSS	<u> </u>
	R4SE	E4D	Pfoc	QA	MIES	SÆEI	SE&C	ADMIN
Concurrence		$\boxtimes$	N	X	X		X	
Concurrence with Conditions								
Non Concurrence								
No Recommendation	$\boxtimes$							
Comment Summary Evaluation:	· · · · ·							
Impact Analyses:								
ijM(2 CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merklev</u>	n fil	ley	Date	<u>i2/12</u>	2 /83	Page	of	<u> </u>
	approved ESF-ECR 022 Summary of Recommended Actic Concurrence Concurrence with Conditions Non Concurrence No Recommendation Comment Summary Evaluation: Impact Analyses: Markiev CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merklev</u>	approved ESF-ECR 022          Summary of Recommended Actions:	Approved ESF-ECR 022  Summary cf Recommended Actions:  Project RMSE E&D Concurrence Soncurrence No Recommendation  Comment Summary Evaluation:  Impact Analyses:  CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley	Approved ESF-ECR 022  Summary of Recommended Actions:  Project Office RISE EAD PAOC Concurrence Non Concurrence No Recommendation Comment Summary Evaluation:  Impact Analyses:  CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley Date	approved ESF-ECR 022  Summary of Recommended Actions:	approved ESF-ECR 022  Summary of Recommended Actions:	approved ESF-ECR 022     89/0       Summary of Recommended Actions:	approved ESF-ECR 022     B9/014       Summary of Recommended Actions:



CSCR _____'89 014 Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

M. E. SPAETH for 11 ? JUL 21 1988 Route Mur Copies -

RECEIVED

Michael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Management Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Ranagement Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 

JUI 22 1988

Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WMPO, NV ٠,

-2-

_'89

014

JUL 20 1988

CSCR

	CSCR'89 014 ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE R	EQUEST
ECR NO. <u>022</u>		PAGE 1 0F 1
SECTION 1. TO BE OA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF C	COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTING N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.6 Underground CHANGE Excavations	G CHANGE PARTICIPANT SAIC DATE <u>6/10/88</u> ORIGINATOR <u>SAIC</u> REV. NO. <u>1</u> DATE <u>12/18/87</u>
In the ESF SDR 6-2) make the Topopah Spring Spring welded. Calico Hills u 7, change "(DB Hills will be	D 1.2.6.6 Underground Excavations Per following changes: 1) In 2, change " and Calico Hills welded" to "Undergr " 2) In 3, change "Underground opening nits" to "Underground openings within R), and the Main Test Level. The fle maintained."	formance Criteria, (pages 6-1 and Underground openings within the ound openings within the Topopah ngs within the Topopah Spring and the Topopah Spring unit." 3) In xibility to drift in the Calico
BASIS FOR CHANC Agreement from changes to the the requirement	GE DOE ESF Issues Meeting 4/21/88. "Pr SDRD removing any requirements to pe of for flexibility to sink shafts and	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE oject will initiate the appropriat netrate the Calico Hills. However drift in the Calico Hills will be
PARTICICANE OA REP. C.	Linke DATE 7/7/80 ESF ICWAY	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE REPRESENTATIVE OR PARTICIPANT
SECTION 2. ICWG 1. PROCEED WI 2. PROCEED WI	CHAIRMAN ACTION NOT APPLICAE TH ECR EVALUATIONYESNO SO TH WORKYESNO CO	COPE CHANGE YES NO ONSTRUCTION IMPACT YES NO
3. TOTAL COSTE (Increase/c	BOCTBASE) ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION	BUDGET PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING	IMPACTNOT APPLICABLE	ENGINEERING WEEKS
5. PROCEED W PROCEED W	TTH DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	NO NO
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC CHANGE OR	CABLENOT FUNDED, PROJECTED ON DERSPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG CHAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED		ICWG CHAIRMAN/DATE

Þ

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

### 1.2.6.6 UNDERGROUND EXCAVATIONS

Subparts are:

1.2.6.6.1 Operations Support Areas 1.2.6.6.2 Test Areas Rev. n

### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The underground excavations are defined as those underground openings 5 feet beyond the shaft liner that extend away from the shaft stations and which comprise the excavations at the proposed test levels and the preferred repository horizon, based on the needs for underground site characterization.

### Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide underground openings in welded and nonwelded tuff for in situ site characterization construction, operations, and maintenance.
- 2. Provide compatibility with the repository conceptual design so that the test level development does not adversely impact future repository development.
- 3. Provide the specific excavation required for shaft stations, muck storage, refuge chambers, power centers, shop and storage areas, fueling, sanitation, ventilation, utilities, drifts, test levels, test rooms and alcoves, communications, IDS, service, special function, and other areas as determined by the in situ site characterization program.
- 4. Provide a system for removing excavated rock to the shaft.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. Underground openings shall be designed and constructed to minimize impacts on underground site characterization.
- 2. Underground openings within the Topopah Spring welded and non-welded tuff shall be designed and constructed to meet testing, personnel, equipment, utility, and ventilation requirements.
- 3. Underground openings within the Topopah Spring unit shall be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials used in rock support systems shall be compatible with waste isolation operations and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.

#### CSCR _____'89 014

#### PROPOSED MODIFICATION

5. The design of underground openings and their supports shall utilize pillar and opening geometries that limit stress concentration to acceptable levels.

التراري المساجرة وليرتد والمعي

Sev. 6

- 6. The size, shape, excavation and support of underground openings shall be adequate to meet transfer requirements for excavated rock, personnel, equipment, ventilation, utilities and the underground test plan.
- 7. A station landing and test drifts will be constructed as part of the ES-1 shaft at the Upper Demonstration Breakout Room. The flexibility to drift in the Calico Hills will be maintained.
- 8. Underground openings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.
- 9. Underground excavated areas shall be designed for safe and maintainable ground support and control where required.
- 10. The test level development will be accomplished by conventional mining (drill. blast. muck).
- 11. Full face, blast hole drilling will be accomplished by using a multi-boom drill jumbo.
- 12. The testing requirements outlined in Appendix B will serve as the basis for the test level development.
- 13. Dry air coring will be required for some tests.
- 14. Permanent (as defined in Section 1.2.6.0, Functional Requirements item = 2.) ESF structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed with a 100-year maintainable life.
- 15. Nonpermanent underground facilities shall be designed and constructed with a maintainable 5-year life.
- 16. Instrument cables shall be separated from power cables in drifts to minimize electrical interference. Instrument and IDS cables shall be contained in overhead runs to protect them from damage.
- The size and layout of the openings excavated on the test levels shall be adequate for in situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting additional excavation beyond the initially planned test areas (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.).
- 18. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated in underground openings for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 19. During in situ site characterization testing, facilities shall be provided for at least 10 visitors underground at any one time.
- 20. The maintenance, refueling, and equipment storage areas shall be designed and located to minimize the fire and safety risks.
- 21. A refuge chamber(s) shall be provided with sufficient capacity and facilities to accommodate personnel underground.

- CSCR _____'89 014 PROPOSED MODIFICATION
- 22. The equipment and facilities required for excavating and handling rock shall meet the needs of construction and testing activities and shall be capable of supporting the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item  $\pm 2$ .).

Rev. o

- 23. Excavation techniques shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 24. The chemical content of the blasting agents and explosives shall be controlled to preclude adverse effects on in situ site characterization.

#### Constraints

- 1. The underground test and operations support areas shall be parallel to the dip of the tuff stratigraphy to the extent practicable and safe.
- 2. The proposed Main Test Level floor within the Topopah Spring Member at the first shaft will be defined as the 1020 level.
- 3. The ventilation system shall be designed to provide an air cooling power greater than or equal to 400 watts per square meter.
- 4. Targets to be utilized in the design and construction of the underground drifts can be found on Sketch Number 5. Appendix A.

### Assumptions

- 1. Mucking will be accomplished by using rubber-tired, diesel-powered equipment.
- 2. Groundwater inflow will not be an adverse factor during mining operations.
- 3. The use of water in the development of underground openings shall be minimized to the extent practicable.



Rev. 1

### 1.2.6.6 UNDERGROUND EXCAVATIONS

Subparts are:

1.2.6.6.1 Operations Support Areas 1.2.6.6.2 Test Areas

### **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The underground excavations are defined as those underground openings 5 feet beyond the shaft liner that extend away from the shaft stations and which comprise the excavations at the proposed test levels and the preferred repository horizon, based on the needs for underground site characterization.

### Functional Requirements

- 1. Provide underground openings in welded and nonwelded tuff for in situ site characterization construction, operations, and maintenance.
- 2. Provide compatibility with the repository conceptual design so that the test level development does not adversely impact future repository development.
- 3. Provide the specific excavation required for shaft stations, muck storage, refuge chambers, power centers, shop and storage areas, fueling, sanitation, ventilation, utilities, drifts, test levels, test rooms and alcoves, communications, IDS, service, special function, and other areas as determined by the in situ site characterization program. والمحرفة المحدود
- 4. Provide a system for removing excavated rock to the shaft.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. Underground openings shall be designed and constructed to minimize impacts on underground site characterization.
- 2. Underground openings within the Topopah Spring and Calico Hills welded and nonwelded tuff shall be designed and constructed to meet testing, personnel, equipment, utility, and ventilation requirements.
- 3. Underground openings within the Topopah Spring and Calico Hills units shall be designed to provide stability and to minimize the potential for deleterious rock movement or fracturing that may create a pathway for radionuclide migration.
- 4. Rock support and other structural anchoring materials used in rock support systems shall be compatible with waste isolation operations and shall neither interfere with radionuclide containment nor enhance radionuclide migration.

Rev. 1

5. The design of underground openings and their supports shall utilize pillar and opening geometries that limit stress concentration to acceptable levels.

CSCR _____'89 014

EXISTING

- 6. The size, shape, excavation and support of underground openings shall be adequate to meet transfer requirements for excavated rock, personnel, equipment, ventilation, utilities and the underground test plan.
- 7. A station landing and test drifts will be constructed as part of the ES-1 shaft at the Upper Demonstration Breakout Room (DBR), the Main Test Level, and the Calico Hills drill room.
- 8. Underground openings shall be designed to minimize air resistance to the extent practicable.
- 9. Underground excavated areas shall be designed for safe and maintainable ground support and control where required.
- 10. The test level development will be accomplished by conventional mining (drill, blast, muck).
- 11. Full face, blast hole drilling will be accomplished by using a multi-boom drill jumbo.
- 12. The testing requirements outlined in Appendix B will serve as the basis for the test level development.
- 13. Dry air coring will be required for some tests.
- 14. Permanent (as defined in Section 1.2.6.0, Functional Requirements item #2.) ESF structures, systems, and components shall be designed and constructed with a 100-year maintainable life.
- 15. Nonpermanent underground facilities shall be designed and constructed with a maintainable 5-year life.
- 16. Instrument cables shall be separated from power cables in drifts to minimize electrical interference. Instrument and IDS cables shall be contained in overhead runs to protect them from damage.
- 17. The size and layout of the openings excavated on the test levels shall be adequate for in situ site characterization needs and capable of supporting additional excavation beyond the initially planned test areas (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.).
- 18. Appropriate gravity drainage and/or pumping systems shall be incorporated in underground openings for draining water away from testing and other working areas to suitable collection point(s) for further treatment and/or disposal.
- 19. During in situ site characterization testing, facilities shall be provided for at least 10 visitors underground at any one time.
- 20. The maintenance, refueling, and equipment storage areas shall be designed and located to minimize the fire and safety risks.
- 21. A refuge chamber(s) shall be provided with sufficient capacity and facilities to accommodate personnel underground.



22. The equipment and facilities required for excavating and handling rock shall meet the needs of construction and testing activities and shall be capable of supporting the uncertainty allowance (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.).

Rev. 1

- 23. Excavation techniques shall control overbreak of rock and minimize disturbance to the integrity of the adjoining rock mass.
- 24. The chemical content of the blasting agents and explosives shall be controlled to preclude adverse effects on in situ site characterization.

### Constraints

- 1. The underground test and operations support areas shall be parallel to the dip of the tuff stratigraphy to the extent practicable and safe.
- 2. The proposed Main Test Level floor within the Topopah Spring Member at the first shaft will be defined as the 1020 level.
- 3. The ventilation system shall be designed to provide an air cooling power greater than or equal to 400 watts per square meter.
- 4. Targets to be utilized in the design and construction of the underground drifts can be found on Sketch Number 5, Appendix A.

### Assumptions

- 1. Mucking will be accomplished by using rubber-tired, diesel-powered equipment.
- 2. Groundwater inflow will not be an adverse factor during mining operations.
- 3. The use of water in the development of underground openings shall be minimized to the extent practicable.

		NNWSI F COST/SCHEDULE CHA	PROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-C36 CR) 9/87
	Change No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:
	89-015	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
	Title: Revise the Exp Document (SDRD Change Request	loratory Shaft Facility ( ) NVO-309 in Accordance w . (ECR) 023	ESF) Subsystem Desig ith the Approved ESF	n Requirements Engineering
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:		
	WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T		
	CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR 023.		
	REASON: See t	he "Basis for Change" on	ESF ECR 023.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None		
	ATTACHMENTS:	<ol> <li>Letter, L. P. Skousen Proposed Changes to t Subsystem Design Requ Change Requests (ECRs</li> </ol>	ly 20, 1988, Facility DRD) Engineering	
		2. ESF ECR 023.		
0	Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u> Approval: Project Ma	Merkley Markley Anager, WMPOrrC. P. Gert	Lauth Marth	Date $\frac{11/22/85}{22/13/88}$ Date $\frac{12/13/88}{12/13/88}$

	YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY									
	Baseline Change: Revise E approved ESF-ECR 023	SF SDR	D in a	ccorda	nce wi	.th	C/SCI 89/0	R No: 15		
	Summary of Recommended Actio	ons:			<u></u>					
		<u></u> ?r	ciect.	Office	<u>}</u>			SMSS		
		rese	ELD	940C	QA	MIES	S&EI	SELC	admin	
	Concurrence Concurrence with Conditions			$\square$	$\mathbf{X}$		$\square$			
	Non Concurrence									
	No Recommendation	$\mathbf{X}$								
)	Comment Summary Evaluation:									
			,							
	Impact Analyses:			<u></u>		·····			<u>.                                    </u>	
	Allije	chile	4			10 0	Page			
	CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u>	<u>y</u>	/ 	Date	12/12	<u>188</u>		of <u>1</u>		



CSCR	'89 015	
Departmont of Energ Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518	<b>y</b>	
JUL 20 1988	RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH	
Officer	flu 1/ , JUL 21 1988 Route <u>Markley - X</u> T/LA Copies	1

Michael E. Spaeth " Technical Project for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAPT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> · Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JUI 22 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 

#### Multiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV CSCR _____'89 015

•••

 $f_{1,2}$ 

....

JUL 20 1988

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	CSCR	'89 015 REQUEST
ECR NO. 023		PAGE OF
SECTION 1. TO BE QA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF C	COMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTINNA ESF SDRD 1.2.6 HANGE	ING CHANGE PARTICIPANT SAIC DATE 6/10/88 ORIGINATOR SAIC REV. NO. 1 DATE 12/18/87
In the ESF SDRD "The test areas the Upper Demons site characteriz horizons."	1.2.6.6.2 Test Areas Definition of are defined as those openings excav tration Breakout Room and the Main ation tests at the potential repost	Subsystem Elements, change to rea vated in ES-1 (science shaft) at Test Level for conducting undergr itory horizon and the other geolog
		SEE CONTINUATION PA
Agreement for DO changes to the S the requirement maintained."	E ESF Issues Heeting 4/21/88. "Pro DRD removing any requirements to po for flexibility to sink shafts and	oject will initiate the appropriat enetrate the Calico Hills. Howeve drift in the Calico Hills will be
PARTICIPANT OA REP SECTION 2. HEWG C 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	ESF ICWO TPO THAIRMAN ACTION NOT APPLIC HECR EVALUATIONYESNO WORKYESNO	SEE CONTINUATION PAGE G REPRESENTATIVE OR PARTICIPANT DATE 7/4/44 COMMENTE VES NO CONSTRUCTION IMPACT YES
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/de NOT APPLIC	CROMERING CONSTRUCTION	M BUDGET PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING	MPACTNOT APPLICABLE	ENGINEERING WE
5. PROCEED WI PROCEED WI	H DETAIL ENGINEERING YES	NO
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLIC. CHANGE ORD	ABLENOT FUNDED, PROJECTED	ONLY
7. APPROVED		ICWG CHAIRMAN/DATE

### CSCR _____'89 015 PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 5

## 1.2.6.6.2 TEST AREAS

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The test areas are defined as those openings excavated in ES-1 (science shaft) at the Upper Demonstration Breakout Room and the Main Test Level for conducting underground site characterization tests at the potential repository horizon and other geologic horizons.

#### **Functional Requirements**

The test areas shall provide excavated space of adequate size and appropriate opening geometry to conduct the necessary underground site characterization test activities.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The number and the size of openings shall satisfy underground testing needs in terms of personnel, materials, equipment, and utilities as found in the Underground Test Requirements in Appendix B.
- 2. ESF structures, systems, components, and operations must accommodate additional tests and monitoring if required (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item = 2.)
- 3. Underground test areas shall have a minimum excavation width of 14 feet and a minimum height of 12 feet.

### Constraints

1. Test areas shall be separated so they are not affected by the excavation disturbed zone, geotechnical edge effects, thermal, mechanical, chemical, and hydrological interactions.

### Assumptions

None.

Rev. 1

## 1.2.6.6.2 **TEST AREAS**

CSCR

EXISTING

**'**89

015

11.32

### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The test areas are defined as those openings excavated in ES-1 (science shaft) at the Upper DBR (520 level), the Main Test Level (1020 level), and the Calico Hills drill room (1400 level) for conducting underground site characterization tests at the potential repository horizon and two other geologic horizons.

#### **Functional Requirements**

The test areas shall provide excavated space of adequate size and appropriate opening geometry to conduct the necessary underground site characterization test activities.

### Performance Criteria

- 1. The number and the size of openings shall satisfy underground testing needs in terms of personnel, materials, equipment, and utilities as found in the Underground Test Requirements in Appendix B.
- 2. ESF structures, systems, components, and operations must accommodate additional tests and monitoring if required (see Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item  $\pm 2$ .).
- 3. Underground test areas shall have a minimum excavation width of 14 feet and a minimum height of 12 feet.

### Constraints

1. Test areas shall be separated so they are not affected by the excavation disturbed zone, geotechnical edge effects, thermal, mechanical, chemical, and hydrological interactions.

### Assumptions

None.

. .

NNWSI PROJECT Page 1 of 1 N-AD-036 COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/SCR) 9/87										
Chang	e No:	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:						
89/0	016	SAIC	M. E. Spaeth	11/15/88						
Title: Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) NVO-309 in Accordance with the Approved ESF Engineering Change Request (ECR) 024										
Expla	nation & Reason	for Change:								
WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANGE: See the attached ESF ECR 024. REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on ESF ECR 024. COST IMPACT: None										
							SCHEDULE IMPAC	CT: None		
						ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, July 20, 1988, Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Facility Subsystem Design Requirements Document (SDRD) Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.				
						·		2. ESF ECR 024.		
Respo CCB	onsible Organiza Secretary <u>P. C</u> oval: Project Ma	tion <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> . Merkley <u>Music</u> anager, WMPO <u>C. P. Gert</u>	liferett au	Date <u>1/22/57</u> Date <u>12/13/88</u> Date <u>12/13/88</u>						
	Chang 89/0 Title: Expla	Change No: 89/016 Title: Revise the Exp Document (SDRE Change Request Explanation & Reason WBS: 1.2.6.1. CHANGE: See t REASON: See t COST IMPACT: SCHEDULE IMPAC ATTACHMENTS: Responsible Organiza CCB Secretary <u>P. C</u> Approval: Project Ma	NNWSI I COST/SCHEDULE CHA Change No: 89/016 Organization: 89/016 SAIC Title: Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility ( Document (SDRD) NV0-309 in Accordance w Change Request (ECR) 024 Explanation & Reason for Change: WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T CHANCE: See the attached ESF ECR 024. REASON: See the "Basis for Change" on COST IMPACT: None SCHEDULE IMPACT: None ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter, L. P. Skousen Proposed Changes to t Subsystem Design Requests (ECRs 2. ESF ECR 024. Responsible Organization <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u> Approval: Project Manager, WMPO <u>C. P. Gert</u>	NNWSI PROJECT         Page COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/S Change No:           0rganization:         Originator:           89/016         SAIC         U. E. Spaeth           Title:         Revise the Exploratory Shaft Facility (ESF) Subsystem Desig Document (SDRD) NV0-309 in Accordance with the Approved ESI Change Request (ECR) 024           Explanation & Reason for Change:         WBS: 1.2.6.1.1.T           CHANCE:         See the attached ESF ECR 024.           COST IMPACT:         None           SCHEDULE IMPACT:         None           ATTACHMENTS:         1. Letter, L. P. Skousen to M. E. Spaeth, JL Proposed Changes to the Exploratory Shaft Subsystem Design Requirements Document (S Change Requests (ECRs) 010 through 027.           2.         ESF ECR 024.           Responsible Organization         M. E. Spaeth           McCB         Secretary P. C. Merkley           Approvat:         Project Manager, WMPO						

•
	and a manager the second s							
	YUCCA MOUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY							
	Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 024 89/016							
ŀ	Summary of Recommended Actions:							
	Project OfficeTSMSS							
	RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN							
	Concurrence							
	Concurrence with Conditions							
0	Comment Summary Evaluation:							
ſ	Impact Analyses:							
	·							
	1. Clephiling Page							
	CCB Secretary <u>P. C. Merkley</u> <u>Date /2/12/88</u> of <u>1</u> of <u>1</u>							



ET OF DA	CSCR	<u> </u>	21
	Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518	,	11 - 11 - 11 - 0
	JUL 20 1988	RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH	017
Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications		flu Il / JUL 21 1988 Route <u>markley - X</u> TH Copies	LA-

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

International Corporation

101 Convention Center Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89109

Suite 407

· Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

JUI 22 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 

#### Multiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WMPO, NV CSCR ____'89 016

JUL 20 1993

. -

.

-2-

	CSCR	'89	016
ESF ENGINEERING	CHANGE	REQUEST	

)

•

	ESF ENGINEERING CHA	NGE REQUES	T	ESF11 FM8-12/28
ECR NO. 014		والمنجر بيمين فيموه ومحمد	PAGE	10F1
SECTION 1. TO BE CON OA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CHAN	APLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQU N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.8 Undergroun.	JESTING CHAN PARTIC DATE ORIGIN ests REV. N	GE IPANT SAIC ATOR <u>6/10/</u> ATOR <u>SAIC</u> O. <u>1</u> DATE	/88 12718757
In the ESF SDRD, 1. follows: "Planned shaft, the Upper De to drift in the Cal	2.6.8 Underground Tests As: testing and monitoring will monstration Breakout Room : ico Hills will be maintain	sumptions (pag be conducted and the Main T ed."	e 8-3) rewrite in the ES-1 ( est Level. Th	e l as (science) ne flexibility
BASIS FOR CHANGE	ESF Issues Meeting 4/21/88	"Project vi	SEE CO	NTINUATION PAGE
changes to the SDRD the requirement for maintained."	removing any requirements flexibility to sink shaft:	to penetrate and drift in	the Calico Hil the Calico Hi	ls. However. 11s will be
PARTICIPALIE QA REP	DATE 7/7/66 TPO	ICWG REPRESE	SEE CON ENTATIVE OR PA	ARTICIPANT
2. PROCEED WITH W	ORK YES	NO SCOPE CH NO CONSTRUC	TION IMPACT	5NO YESNr
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/decrea	ESE) ENGINEERING	ROM	BUDGET	PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING IMPA	CTNOT APPLICABLE	ENC	BINEERING	WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH I PROCEED WITH I	DETAIL ENGINEERINGYE	s		
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICABL CHANGE ORDER	ENOT FUNDED, PROJEC	TED ONLY	ICWG CHAIRM	AN:DATE
7. APPROVED			ICWO CHAIRMA	entry 7/0/01

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

_'89 016 Rev. n

#### 1.2.6.8 UNDERGROUND TESTS

Subparts are:

1.2.6.8.1 Integrated Data Acquisition System (IDS)

CSCR .

- 1.2.6.8.2 Geological Tests
- 12.6.8.3 Geomechanics Tests
- 1.2.6.8.4 Near-Field and Thermally Perturbed Tests
- 1 2.6.8.5 Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena Tests 1.2.6.8.6 Prototype Tests

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The underground test systems are defined by those activities associated with test equipment. installation, test execution, test data recording, and test analysis for in situ site characterization to be performed within the Yucca Mountain ESF.

#### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The design requirements and criteria for the Integrated Data System (IDS) can be found in the Technical Requirements for the Integrated Data System of the NNWSI Project Exploratory Shaft Facility. See SDRD Volume II, Appendix D, Reference Project Documentation.

See Section 1 2.6.0, for additional Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

#### **Functional Requirements**

The underground tests shall provide the means for the implementation of site characterization testing plans and provide data to support performance confirmation testing.

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. In situ site characterization shall meet applicable requirements of 10 CFR part 60 and 10 CFR part 960.
- 2. In situ site characterization shall meet the applicable requirements of the Site Characterization Plan (SCP).
- 3 Testing plans must provide for feedback and modification as a result of initial and ongoing tests and monitored results.



PROPOSED MODIFICATION

4 Testing instrumentation hardware, cables computer equipment, and data acquisition and monitoring systems, shall be designed to withstand the expected underground environment.

CSC3 _____ '89

016

£ev.

- Reports shall contain adequate visual and diagrammatic information to make the conduct, setup, and objectives of all the tests clear to readers outside the NNWSI Project.
- 6. In situ site characterization shall provide reliable information with specified accuracy and uncertainty as determined by the NNWS1 Project.
- 7. Measurements, tests, and analyses shall be sufficient to determine the performance of the ESF and the effects of ESF construction on in situ site characterization.
- 8. An uninterruptable power supply system shall be available to ensure continuous operation of equipment and instrumentation related to critical testing as determined by the NNWSI Project through analysis.
- 9. Written procedures shall be developed for the procurement, construction, installation, maintenance, and operation of testing instruments, and data collection facilities
- 10. Performance confirmation testing shall be carried out to meet the requirements of 10 CFR 60, Subpart F.

#### Constraints

- 1. Tests shall be designed and located within the facility to ensure that thermal, mechanical, chemical, and hydrological interactions will not endanger the structural stability of the ESF or adversely affect tests conducted in adjacent areas.
- 2 Testing shall not affect overall site integrity of the Mined Geologic Disposal System as required by 10 CFR 60.112.
- 3 Testing equipment requirements, including design life, shall be based on the performance goals of the tests.
- 4. Tests shall be classified according to primary information needs (i.e., site characterization, ESF site characterization, ESF design confirmation, repository design, or performance confirmation) and defined with respect to duration, scale, and space requirements. This classification and definition shall be the basis for equipment design, underground layout, ventilation, personnel, and utility requirements.
- 5 The ESF shafts shall be connected prior to initiation of full-scale in situ testing

#### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0. Interface Control Requirements.

CSCR _____'89 016

## PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. -

#### Assumptions

- 1. Planned testing and monitoring will be conducted in the ES-1 (science) shaft, the Upper Demonstration Breakout Room and the Main Test Level. The flexibility to drift in the Calico Hills will be maintained.
- 2. The development of the underground testing program at the ESF has been based upon the qualitative derivation of information needs to satisfactorily address key issues in the Issues Hierarchy. The number of tests may change as site characterization proceeds and more variable or unexpected conditions are encountered. See Section 1 2.6.0, Performance Criteria item =2.
- 3. The underground utility system at the Main Test Level shall be sufficient to accommodate drifting and testing at any point surrounding the immediate operations area See Section 1.2.6.7, Underground Utility Systems.

# CSCR _____'89 016

Rev 1

## **1.2.6.8 UNDERGROUND TESTS**

EXISTING

Subparts are:

- 1.2.6.8.1 Integrated Data Acquisition System (IDS)
- 1.2.6.8.2 Geological Tests
- 1.2.6.8.3 Geomechanics Tests
- 1.2.6.8.4 Near-Field and Thermally Perturbed Tests
- 1.2.6.8.5 Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena Tests
- 1.2.6.8.6 Prototype Tests

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The underground test systems are defined by those activities associated with test equipment installation, test execution, test data recording, and test analysis for in situ site characterization to be performed within the Yucca Mountain ESF.

#### Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications

The design requirements and criteria for the Integrated Data System (IDS) can be found in the Technical Requirements for the Integrated Data System of the NNWSI Project Exploratory Shaft Facility. See SDRD Volume II, Appendix D, Reference Project Documentation

See Section 1.2.6.0, for additional Applicable Regulations, Codes, and Specifications.

#### **Functional Requirements**

The underground tests shall provide the means for the implementation of site characterization testing plans and provide data to support performance confirmation testing.

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. In situ site characterization shall meet applicable requirements of 10 CFR part 60 and 10 CFR part 960.
- 2. In situ site characterization shall meet the applicable requirements of the Site Characterization Plan (SCP).
- 3. Testing plans must provide for feedback and modification as a result of initial and ongoing tests and monitored results.

EXISTING CSCR ____'89 016

Rev 1

4. Testing instrumentation/hardware, cables, computer equipment, and data acquisition and monitoring systems, shall be designed to withstand the expected underground environment.

۰. .

- 5. Reports shall contain adequate visual and diagrammatic information to make the conduct, setup, and objectives of all the tests clear to readers outside the NNWSI Project.
- 6. In situ site characterization shall provide reliable information with specified accuracy and uncertainty as determined by the NNWSI Project.
- 7. Measurements, tests, and analyses shall be sufficient to determine the performance of the ESF and the effects of ESF construction on in situ site characterization.
- 8. An uninterruptable power supply system shall be available to ensure continuous operation of equipment and instrumentation related to critical testing as determined by the NNWSI Project through analysis.
- 9. Written procedures shall be developed for the procurement, construction, installation, maintenance, and operation of testing instruments, and data collection facilities.
- 10. Performance confirmation testing shall be carried out to meet the requirements of 10 CFR 60, Subpart F.

#### Constraints

- 1. Tests shall be designed and located within the facility to ensure that thermal, mechanical, chemical, and hydrological interactions will not endanger the structural stability of the ESF or adversely affect tests conducted in adjacent areas.
- 2. Testing shall not affect overall site integrity of the Mined Geologic Disposal System as required by 10 CFR 60.112.
- 3 Testing equipment requirements, including design life, shall be based on the performance goals of the tests.
- 4. Tests shall be classified according to primary information needs (i.e., site characterization, ESF site characterization, ESF design confirmation, repository design, or performance confirmation) and defined with respect to duration, scale, and space requirements. This classification and definition shall be the basis for equipment design, underground layout, ventilation, personnel, and utility requirements.
- 5. The ESF shafts shall be connected prior to initiation of full-scale in situ visting.

#### Interface Control Requirements

See Section 1.2.6.0, Interface Control Requirements.

#### 016

'89

Rev 1

# Assumptions

1. Planned testing and monitoring will be conducted in the ES-1 (science) shaft. the Upper Demonstration Breakout Room (520 level), the Main Test Level (1020 level), and the Calico Hills drill room (1400 level) breakout levels.

EXISTING

2. The development of the underground testing program at the ESF has been based upon the qualitative derivation of information needs to satisfactorily address key issues in the Issues Hierarchy. The number of tests may change as site characterization proceeds and more variable or unexpected conditions are encountered. See Section 1.2.6.0, Performance Criteria item #2.

3. The underground utility system at the Main Test Level shall be sufficient to accommodate drifting and testing at any point surrounding the immediate operations area. See Section 1.2.6.7. Underground Utility Systems.

8.3

			• ••
	COST/SCHE	NNWSI PROJECT Page 1 DULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/SCR	of 1 N-AD-C ) 9/87
Change 1:0:	Organization:	Originator: Or	rigination Date:
59/017	SAIC	<b>H.</b> L. Spaetn	11/15/88
Title: Revise the Exp Document (SDRD Change Request	loratory Shaft ) NVO-309 in A (ECR) 025	Facility (ESF) Subsystem Design I ccordance with the Approved ESF En	Requirements ngineering
Explanation & Reason	for Change:		
WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T		
CHANGE: See t	he attached ECI	R ESF 025.	
REASON: See t	he "Basis for (	Change [*] on ESF ECR 025.	
COST IMPACT:	None		
SCHEDULE INPAC	T: None		
ATTICINESTS .		P Chause A V P Careth Tulu	00 1088
	Proposed Cl	hanges to the Fuelenstery Chaft Fe	
	Subsystem I Change Requ	Design Requirements Document (SDRD uests (ECRs) 010 through 027.	Cility ) Engineering
:	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 02	Design Requirements Document (SDRD uests (ECRs) 010 through 027.	Cility ) Engineering
	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 02	Design Requirements Document (SDRD uests (ECRs) 010 through 027.	) Engineering
	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 02:	Design Requirements Document (SDRD uests (ECRs) 010 through 027. 5.	) Engineering
Responsible Organizat	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 02 Son <u>W. E. Space</u>	eth MMMMM	te 11/2 z/Sy
Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u>	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 023 Son <u>W. E. Space</u> Merkley	eth MMMarkense Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Dat	the $\frac{1122/34}{12713/88}$
Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u> Approval: Project Ma	Subsystem I Change Requ 2. ESF ECR 023 Ion <u>M. E. Space</u> <u>Merkley</u> nager, WMPO	eth Market C. P. Gertz	$\frac{112}{13}/88$

a sector and the sector and	
YUCCA MCUNTAIN FROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY	
Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with C/SCR No: approved ESF-ECR 025	
Summary of Recommended Actions: Project Office TEMSS	_
RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN	
Concurrence Concurrence Concurrence	
Concurrence with Conditions	
Non Concurrence	
No Recommendation	
Comment Summary Evaluation:	
Impact Analyses:	
CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley Date 2/12/88 1 of 1	
	Discrimination       Discrimination         Baseline Change: Revise ESF SDRD in accordance with approved ESF-ECR 025       C/SCR NO: 89/017         Summary of Recommended Actions:       Project Office       THMSS         Rissi StD PROC QA MISS SWELL SEGC ACMIN       Concurrence       Q Q Q MISS SWELL SEGC ACMIN         Concurrence       Q Q Q MISS SWELL SEGC ACMIN       Q Q Q Q MISS SWELL SEGC ACMIN         Concurrence       Q Q Q Q Q Q MISS SWELL SEGC ACMIN       Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q

----

ł



CSCR [ ...] Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518 - 1101.1.1 RECEIVED JUL 20 1988 M. E. SPAETH JUL 21 1988 mark Route Copies -

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT PACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

· Received In Configuration Management Division

JIII 22 1988

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

**CCF** RECEIVED

Hultiple Addressees

CSCR _____'89 017 JUL 20 1998

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) PORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV

	CSCR'89 01	7	
H.	ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE	REQUEST	ESF11.FMB-12/28
ECR NO. 025		and the second	PAGE CF1
SECTION 1. TO BE C QA LEVEL SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CH	CMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUESTINN N/A ESF SDRD 1.2.6 1.2.6.8.5 Hydrologic and Transport Phenomena	NG CHANGE PARTICIPANT DATE ORIGINATOR REV. NO	SAIC 6/10/88 SAIC DATE
In the ESF SDRD	1.2.6.8.5 Rydrologic and Transport	Phenomena Test	Performance
Criteria, make th	he following changes: 1) Delete 7	in its entirety	r. 2) In II.
on nonsorbing tra	acers in the Topopah Spring welded	unit."	
	· · · ·		
		<u></u>	
	·····································		
			SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
BASIS FOR CHANGE	an a tha the state of the state		
Agreement from D	OE ESF Issues Meeting 4/21/88. "Pr	roject will init	liate the appropriate
changes to the S.	for flexibility to sink shafts and	drift in the Ca	lico Hills will be
maintained."			······
		······································	
~		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
PARTICIPANT	DATE 7/7/00 TPO	BEPRESENTATIV	E OR PARTICIPANT DATE 7/4/44
SECTION 2 JEWG CI	HAIRMAN ACTION NOT APPLIC	ABLE	
1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH		SCOPE CHANGE CONSTRUCTION IN	YESNO IPACTYESN
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/dec NOT APPLIC	ABLE TOTALS		
4. SCHEDULING IM	PACTNOT APPLICABLE	ENGINEERIN CONSTRUCT	IGWEEKS
5. PROCEED WIT PROCEED WIT	H DETAIL ENGINEERING YESYESYESYESYESYES	NO	
6. FUNDING: NOT APPLICA	BLENOT FUNDED, PROJECTED (	DNLY	
CHANGE ORDE	ERSPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG (	CHAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED		J	4. lity 7/8/08 CHAIRMAN 10 ATF

I

# PPOPOSED MODIFICATION

<u>'89 017</u>

Rev 6

# 1.2.6.8.5 HYDROLOGIC AND TRANSPORT PHENOMENA TESTS

## Definition of Subsystem Elements

The hydrologic and transport phenomena tests are defined as those tests that are required to characterize the hydrologic and transport phenomena of the welded and nonwelded tuff. These properties are an integral part of the information needed to:

- 1 supplement and complement the surface-based hydrologic information needed to characterize the Yucca Mountain site and
- 2 provide information for analyzing fluid flow and the potential for radionuclide transport through unsaturated tuff.

#### **Functional Requirements**

Provide the test plans, test data, equipment, and instrumentation to access and record the detailed hydrologic and transport phenomena characteristics of the potential repository site

#### **Performance Criteria**

- 1 Field and laboratory methods shall be used to measure the rock-matrix hydrologic properties on large-rock samples collected from selected horizons during excavation of the Exploratory Shaft (ES-1)
- 2 Fluid flow and chemical transport measurements shall be conducted in the laboratory on variably saturated single fractures. Samples will be obtained from the main test level and the breakout levels by bolting perpendicular to a fracture and then overcoring.
- 3. In situ fluid flow and chemical transport measurements shall be made through fracture networks in variably saturated welded tuff. This test will be an infiltration test performed by trickling tracer-tagged water onto the floor of a specially designed drift
- 4 In situ bulk (rockmass) permeability measurements shall be made within bounded rock mass blocks of the Topopah Spring welded unit at the main test level. This test will utilize a test chamber and parallel boreholes.



PROPOSED MODIFICATION 5 In situ rockmass hydrologic properties measurements shall be made at 12 depth lo-

cations in ES-1 using two radial boreholes at each depth drilled perpendicular to the shaft and perpendicular to each other.

- 6 Measurements shall be made to determine the effect excavating and lining ES-1 will have on the hydrologic properties of the unsaturated welded tuff. The tests will be conducted in vertical boreholes drilled in radial arrangements in the floors of the two breakout rooms and will consist of air-permeability, deformation, and moisture content measurements.
- 7. DELETED
- 8. If perched-water zones are encountered during construction of ES-1, then borehole hydrological measurements and geologic characterization shall be conducted to detect the occurrence and estimate the properties of the perched-water zones.
- 9 Hydrochemistry analysis of the unsaturated zone water shall be made on pore-water samples obtained from bulk rock samples taken from the walls of ES-1 at various horizons and from fracture water samples taken directly from the shaft where inflow is observed.
- 10 The rate of water movement downward through the unsaturated zone to the water table beneath Yucca Mountain shall be determined by conducting Chlorine-36 tracer measurements of pore or fracture water from blast rubble rock obtained at various depths within ES-1.
- 11. In situ diffusion test measurements shall be made on nonsorbing tracers in the Topopah Spring welded unit. Tracers will be introduced into boreholes and later overcoring will be conducted to obtain tracer concentrations as a function of distance from the borehole.

#### Constraints

See Section 1.2.6.8, Constraints.

#### Assumptions

None.

5.2

Rev. 6

#### EXISTING CSCR '89.017

Rev. 1

#### HYDROLOGIC AND TRANSPORT PHENOMENA TESTS 1.2.6.8.5

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The hydrologic and transport phenomena tests are defined as those tests that are required to characterize the hydrologic and transport phenomena of the welded and nonwelded tuff. These properties are an integral part of the information needed to:

- 1. supplement and complement the surface-based hydrologic information needed to characterize the Yucca Mountain site; and

2. provide information for analyzing fluid flow and the potential for radionuclide transport through unsaturated tuff.

Functional Requirements Provide the test plans, test data, equipment, and instrumentation to access and record the detailed hydrologic and transport phenomena characteristics of the potential repository site.

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. Field and laboratory methods shall be used to measure the rock-matrix hydrologic properties on large-rock samples collected from selected horizons during excavation of the Exploratory Shaft (ES-1).
- 2. Fluid flow and chemical transport measurements shall be conducted in the laboratory on variably saturated single fractures. Samples will be obtained from the main test level and the breakout levels by bolting perpendicular to a fracture and then overcoring.
- 3. In situ fluid flow and chemical transport measurements shall be made through fracture networks in variably saturated welded tuff. This test will be an infiltration test performed by trickling tracer-tagged water onto the floor of a specially designed drift. ، بالأنتونية أتشاري من أتركي من الم
- 4. In situ bulk (rockmass) permeability measurements shall be made within bounded rock mass blocks of the Topopah Spring welded unit at the main test level. This test will utilize a test chamber and parallel boreholes,
- 5. In situ rockmass hydrologic properties measurements shall be made at 12 depth locations in ES-1 using two radial boreholes at each depth drilled perpendicular to the shaft and perpendicular to each other.
- 6. Measurements shall be made to determine the effect excavating and lining ES-1 will have on the hydrologic properties of the unsaturated welded tuff. The tests will be conducted in vertical boreholes drilled in radial arrangements in the floors of the

8.5-1 

R _____'89 017

Rev. 1

two breakout rooms and will consist of air-permeability, deformation, and moisture content measurements.

EXISTING

7. Borehole hydrological measurements and geologic characterization shall be made to determine the hydrogeologic characteristics of the Calico Hills nonwelded unit.

- 8. If perched-water zones are encountered during construction of ES-1, then borehole hydrological measurements and geologic characterization shall be conducted to detect the occurrence and estimate the properties of the perched-water zones.
- 9. Hydrochemistry analysis of the unsaturated zone water shall be made on pore-water samples obtained from bulk rock samples taken from the walls of ES-1 at various horizons and from fracture water samples taken directly from the shaft where inflow is observed.
- 10. The rate of water movement downward through the unsaturated zone to the water table beneath Yucca Mountain shall be determined by conducting Chlorine-36 tracer measurements of pore or fracture water from blast rubble rock obtained at various depths within ES-1.
- 11. In situ diffusion test measurements shall be made on nonsorbing tracers in the Topopah Spring welded unit and the Calico Hills nonwelded unit. Tracers will be introduced into boreholes and later overcoring will be conducted to obtain tracer concentrations as a function of distance from the borehole.

8.5-2

Constraints

See Section 1.2.6.8, Constraints.

Assumptions

None.

			چې د محمدون د د د د		· · · ·
E E		N COST/SCHEDUL	NWSI F E CHA	PROJECT Page PROJECT Page PROJECT (C	ge 1 of 1 N-AD-030 S/SCR) 9/87
Chan 89/	ge 16.: 018	Organization: SAIC		Originator: N. E. Spaeth	Origination Date: 11/15/88
Title:	Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	ploratory Shaft Fac ements Document (SD oved ESF Engineerin	ility ( RD) NVO g Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) O	e 26
Expl	WBS: 1.2.6.1	n for Change: .1.T	R 026		
	REASON: See	the "Basis for Chan,	ge" on	ESF ECR 026.	
	SCHEDULE IMPA	CT: None			
	ATTACHMENTS:	<ol> <li>Letter, L. P. S July 20, 1988, Exploratory Shi Design Require Engineering Chi through 027.</li> </ol>	Skousen Propos aft Fac ments D ange Re	to M. E. Spaeth, ed Changes to the ility Subsystem ocument (SDRD) quests (ECRs) 010	
		2. ESF ECR 026.	م بر		
					······································

Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 026	SDRD	in acc	ordanc	e with		C/SCI 89/0	No: 18	
	•							
 Summary of Recommended Action	ns: Pr	ciect	Office	· · · ·			SMSS	
	RESE	ELD	D034	QA	MILS	S&EI	SELC	Admin
Concurrence Concurrence with Conditions								
Non Concurrence No Recommendation								
 Comment Summary Evaluation: Impact". (2) "This request for relocat allow space on the main pad f provided. A cost and schedul provided to ascertain the vis	(1) " ing t or a a ana bilit	This c he war larger lysis, y of t	hange ehouse shop if re his pr	will ha site t needs t quested oposal	ave a Co to the f further i for b '	ost an auxila data oth, n	d Sched ry pad input eeds to	dule to to be be
		:						
 Impact Analyses: Data was no	ot pro	vided	to ind	icate :	Impacts	relat	ing to	cost
 and schedule.								
 and schedule.								



Dopart Nevac F Las Ve	CSCR ment of Energ a Operations Office 0 Box 98518 gas, NV 89193-8518	<u>'</u> 89 0: y	1 8	
	JUL 20 1988	• • •	RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH	•
ficer		film 1/ 1 RC	JUL 21 1988 Dute <u>markles</u> -	XTILA
		0		

Hichael E. Spaeth Technica. Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO: DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988



**CCF RECEIVED** 

#### Hultiple Addressees

cc v/o encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV



CSC:

89 018

UL 20 1993

	an the state of th		
	ESE ENGINEERING CHAI	CR 189 018	!
			ESF11.FMB-12/28
ECR NO. 0.16			PAGE _1_ or _2_
SECTION 1. TO BE CO	MPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQU	JESTING CHANGE	
OA LEVEL	REECO	PARTICIPANT - DATE -	<u>REECo</u>
WBS DESIGNATION	1.2.6.2.1.03		W. H. Grams
DESCRIPTION OF CHA	NGE Warehouse		
Requirements Docum	ent (SDRD), specifically Sec	tion 1.2.6.1.1., Mai	n Pad, be changed by
deleting Functiona	1 Requirement No. 9. Warehou	ise (olus Storage Are	a), and further
to the Functional	.2.0.1.2, Auxillary Pads, Di Requirements.	<u>Adding the warehous</u>	<u>e (plus storage area</u>
		<u> </u>	
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		· ·	
PASIS FOR CHANGE	From the CDDD Donformation		SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
with Functional Re	ouirement No. 2 of Section	LTITETIA NO. 2 OF Se	the surface site be
capable of handlin	g a 100 percent increase in	the underground test	ing. As currently
specified, the sho	p, warehouse, and subcontrac	tor areas are locate	d on the same area o
expansion capabili	ty. Moving the warehouse to	<u>space requirements.</u> The auxiliary pad m	akes space available
for a larger shop	on the main pad and places 1	the warehouse on a lo	cation which allows
ease of expansion.	In addition to enhancing in rendinitous attributes prese	the flexibility and each themselves	ase of expansion, a
PARTICEANY OA REP/Vond Of	× DATE /24/98 ESF	Canul REPRESENTATIM	E OR PARTICIPANT
SECTION 2. ICWG CH	AIRMAN ACTION NOT AI	PLICABLE	
1. PROCEED WITH E 2. PROCEED WITH V	HORK	NO SCOPE CHANGE NO CONSTRUCTION IN	YESNO PACTYESN
3. TOTAL COSTS		ROM BUDGE	T PROJECTED
	BLE CONSTRUCTION		
NOT AFFLICA	TOTALS		
4. SCHEDULING MP		ENGINEERIN CONSTRUCT	G WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH PROCEED WITH	DETAIL ENGINEERING YE	sNO sNO	
6. FUNDING:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
NOT APPLICAB	LENOT FUNDED, PROJEC	TED ONLY	X a. 1 - 7/Alor
CHANGE ORDER	SPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG C	HAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED		٩	
1		<u>clumin</u> ICWG C	4. drb. 7/8/11 HAIRMAN DATE

þ

		189 01 8	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
E:	of Engineering Cran	AGE REQUEST	ESF 12 FMB-11/
ECR NO. 026			PAGE
Continuation Page		· · · ·	<u>2</u> of <u>2</u>
TITLE Main Pad			
CONTINUATION DATA For the warehou	se:	•	
1. Future expansion of	the warehouse facilitie	s would have mini	mal impact on the
construction and op	eration of the ESF.		
2. The warehouse could	be located contiguous t	the controlled	(fenced with locked
gates) outdoor stor	age area for efficient c	ontrol and docume	ntation of all materia
especially Quality	Levels I and II.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
3. The warehouse locat	ion could include enough	space for 18-whe	el truck semi-trailer
turn around, plus t	he ramps and loading doc	ks necessary for	a safe and efficient
operation.			
4. Truck traffic to an	d from the warehouse fac	ility would not i	nterfere with the
construction and op	eration of the ESF.		
5. By keeping delivery	trucks off the main pad	, safety and secu	rity are enhanced.
As a result of relocati	ng the warehouse to the	auxiliary pad, th	e following features
in regard to the shop w	ould enhance the design:	· ·	
1. Additional area is	available for parking of	dedlined vehicle	s and laydown of items
in preparation of a	ssembly such as the hois	its, or for disass	embly for lowering
into the undergroun	d facility.		·····
2. Area is now availab	le for a wash down and s	team clean pad.	
3. Outdoor storage of	full and empty compresse	ed gas bottles in	racks in addition to
paints and other fl	ammable liquids.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
4. Area is now unencum	bered for maintenance of	f any large machin	ery which would not
fit inside, includi	ng dump trucks, loaders,	graders, etc.	
·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
		·	
		······	
OTHER INFORMATION			······
	antas i		
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Ð

Rev. 1

# 1.2.6.1.1 MAIN PAD

CSCR _____'89 018

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The main pad consists of the structures, systems, and components defined by the area prepared to accommodate shaft collars, headframes, hoist systems, substations, offices, laboratories, warehouse, contractor's temporary facilities, as well as other normal facilities such as parking space.

#### Functional Requirements

The main pad shall provide an area of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated structures, systems, and components that will be located near the shafts. This includes the following items:

- 1. Roads (muck haulage and access)
- 2. ES-1 (plus standoff distances) and a
- 3. ES-2 (plus standoff distances)
- 4. Permanent hoist house(s) (plus standoff distances)
- 5. Headframes and back legs
- 6. Muck handling facilities
- 7. First aid
- 8. Shop (plus equipment storage)
- -O. Worshouse (plus materiale storage and) & PELETE
- 10. Substation (69 kV)
- 11. Compressor(s)
- 12. Ventilation fans (plus standoff distances)
- 13. Standby generator(s) (plus fuel tanks)
- 14. Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 15. Change house(s)
- 16. Subcontractor facilities (offices, change house, shop)
- 17. Trailers and parking
- 18. Integrated data acquisition system/communications building

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. The main pad shall be designed to handle potential runoff in the existing natural drainage channels from a probable maximum flood.
- Site preparation for the shaft collars shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year life.

÷ 1.1-1

Rev 1

# 1.2.6.1.2 AUXILIARY PADS

° CSCR :≞

89 018

## **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The auxiliary pads consist of the areas prepared to support the ESF construction and operation. These pads include the G-4 laydown pad, explosives magazine pad, muck storage pad, topsoil storage pad, batch plant pad, water tank pad, lower storage pads, and other areas defined as the design progresses.

#### **Functional Requirements**

The auxiliary pads shall provide areas of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated functions. This includes the following:

- 1. Parking
- 2. Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 3. Materials storage
- 4. Storage and equipment (subcontractor and REECo)
- 5. Fuel and lubricants storage/tank
- 6. Explosive storage plus access roads
- 7. Batch plant
- 8. Borrow pit
- 9. Water tank and access
- 10. Muck storage
- 11. Stock pile of topsoil
- 12. Sewage disposal
- 13. Mine wastewater disposal
- 14. Booster pump station
- 15. Warehouse (plus storage area)

#### Performance Criteria

1. All auxiliary pads shall be designed to handle potential runoff of a 100 year storm unless otherwise specified. The following pads shall be designed to the runoff potential shown.

Batch Plant Pad			10 year storm
Lower Storage Pads			10 year storm
G-4 Pad			25 year storm
Booster Pump Bldg.	Pad	۰.	50 year storm
• •		۰.	•

2. Drainage ponds and muck storage pile liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life. All other civil improvements for auxiliary pads shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 5-year life.

## Constraints

1. The auxiliary pads shall facilitate the safe and efficient flow of material and personnel within and around their respective areas.

18

CSCR

- 2. The muck storage pad design shall ensure that the capacity includes allowances for excavation overbreak and swell of broken rock.
- 3. The location and size of the explosives storage area shall be determined by the current California and Mine Health and Safety Administration (MSHA) regulations and the MSHA table of distances.
- 4. The auxiliary pad design and construction shall ensure considerations for expansion (uncertainty allowance).

#### Assumptions

1. The graded areas for the auxiliary pad(s) do not need to be contiguous or even on a single level if such an arrangement is cost effective (considering construction, operation, and maintenance) or provides for efficient operations.

2ev. 7

# 1.2.6.1.1 MAIN PAD

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The main pad consists of the structures, systems, and components defined by the area prepared to accommodate shaft collars, headframes, hoist systems, substations, offices, laboratories, warehouse, contractor's temporary facilities, as well as other normal facilities such as parking space.

#### Functional Requirements

The main pad shall provide an area of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated structures, systems, and components that will be located near the shafts. This includes the following items:  $i^{i}$ 

- 1. Roads (muck haulage and access)
- 2. ES-1 (plus standoff distances)
   3. ES-2 (plus standoff distances)
- 4. Permanent hoist house(s) (plus standoff distances)
- 5. Headframes and back legs
- 6. Muck handling facilities
- 7. First aid
- 8. Shop (plus equipment storage)
- 9. Substation (69 kV)
- 10. Compressor(s)
- 11. Ventilation fans (plus standoff distances)
- Standby generator(s) (plus fuel tanks)
   Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 14. Change house(s)
- 15. Subcontractor facilities (offices, change house, shop)
- 16. Trailers and parking
- 17. Integrated data acquisition system/communications building

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. The main pad shall be designed to handle potential runoff in the existing natural drainage channels from a probable maximum flood.
- 2. Site preparation for the shaft collars shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 100-year life.





013 Rev. 5

.'89

# Constraints

1. The main pad shall facilitate the safe and efficient flow of material and personnel within the ESF site.

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

2. Buildings shall be so spaced as to allow sufficient room for construction and maintenance of the facilities.

# Assumptions

1. The graded area for the ESF site does not need to be contiguous or even on a single level if such an arrangement is cost effective (considering construction, operation, and maintenance) or provides for efficient operations. 1.2.6.1.2 AUXILIARY PADS

#### Definition of Subsystem Elements

The auxiliary pads consist of the areas prepared to support the ESF construction and operation. These pads include the G-4 laydown pad, explosives magazine pad, muck storage pad, topsoil storage pad, batch plant pad, water tank pad, lower storage pads, and other areas defined as the design progresses.

#### Functional Requirements

The auxiliary pads shall provide areas of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated functions. This includes the following:

- 1. Parking
- 2. Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 3. Materials storage
- 4. Storage and equipment (subcontractor and REECo)
- 5. Fuel and lubricants storage/tank
- 6. Explosive storage plus access roads
- 7. Batch plant
- 8. Borrow pit
- 9. Water tank and access
- 10. Muck storage
- 11. Stock pile of topsoil
- 12. Sewage disposal
- 13. Mine wastewater disposal
- 14. Booster pump station

15. Warehouse (plus Storage Area)

#### Performance Criteria

- 1. The pads shall be designed to handle potential runoff in the existing natural drainage channels from a probable maximum flood.
- 2. Drainage ponds and muck storage pile liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life. All other civil improvements for auxiliary pads shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 5-year life.

#### **Constraints**

add

- 1. The auxiliary pads shall facilitate the safe and efficient flow of material and personnel within and around their respective areas.
  - 1.2-1

Rev. 1

				,				
NNWSI PROJECT Page 1 of 1 COST/SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUEST (C/SCR)								
	Change No.	Organization:	Originator:	Origination Date:				
	89/019	SAIC	N. E. Spaeth	11/15/88				
	Title: Revise the Exp Design Require with the Appro	loratory Shaft Facility ( ments Document (SDRD) NVO ved ESF Engineering Chang	ESF) Subsystem -309 in Accordance e Request (ECR) 027					
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:						
	WBS: 1.2.6.1.	1.T						
	CHANGE: See t	he attached ESF ECR 027.						
	REASON: See t	he "Basis for Change" on	ESF ECR 027.					
	COST IMPACT:	None						
	SCHEDULE IMPAC	T: None	ана 1993 г.					
•	ATTACHMENTS:	1. Letter, L. P. Skousen July 20, 1988, Propos Exploratory Shaft Fac Design Requirements D Engineering Change Re through 027.	to M. E. Spaeth, ed Changes to the ility Subsystem ocument (SDRD) quests (ECRs) 010					
		2. ESF ECR 027.						
	Responsible Organizat CCB Secretary <u>P. C.</u> Approval: Project Ma	tion <u>M. E. Spaeth</u> Merkley <u>Merkley</u>	n elfeett	Date 1/22/55 Date 12/13/88				
l				Vaic _ + + / 1.2/2				

YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT BASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY								
 Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 027	SDRD	in acc	ordand	e with		C/SC 89/	No: 019	
 Summary of Recommended Actio	Drojact Office				-L			
	RESE	EED	PEOC	QA	MILS	Siet	SEEC	ADMIN
Concurrence		$\boxtimes$		X		K	X	X
Concurrence with Conditions Non Concurrence								
No Recommendation	Z							
 Comment Summary Evaluation: with this change". (2) "With the reconfiguring analysis of the conceptual s Schedule impact, if any, nee this request unless data as	(1) "A of the ize of ds to stated	cost main facil be pro- l above	and so wareho ity, E vided. is pr	thedule ouse at Inginee Cann covided	dule impact will be realize • at the ESF site, a detail incering/Construction Cost Cannot make fair evaluation ided.			
		•, :	•					
 Impact Analyses: Data was n cost or schedule.	ot pro	vided	to ind	licate	impact	relati	ng to	either
						•		
	.:					Page		



Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518 RECEIVED JUL 20 1988 M. E. SPAETH flu !! JUL 21 1988 Copies -

'89

019

CSCR .

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Merkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECR.) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

Received In Configuration
 Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 5 1988

CCF RECEIVED

#### Hultiple Addressees

cc w/o encli V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, VMPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV

CSCR ____

_'89

019

	CSCR ESF ENGINEERING CHAN	GE REQUEST	ESF11.FMB-12/71
ECR NO. <u>9:1</u>			PAGE _1 or _3
SECTION 1. TO BE CO	OMPLETED BY PARTICIPANT REQUI	ESTING CHANGE	REFCO
SOURCE WBS DESIGNATION TITLE DESCRIPTION OF CH/	REECO 1.2.6.3.1.05 Warehouse	DATE ORIGINATOR REV. NO.	6/24/88 W. H. Grams OATE
Reynolds Electrica Requirements Docum	1 & Engineering Co. (REECo) r ent, specifically Section 1.2	recommends that the 2.6.3.7 Warehouse,	e Subsystem Design be modified such
that Assumption 1 the requirements f	which states. "The existing of the ESF warehouse", be de	leted.	wilding will satisfy
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
BASIS FOR CHANGE	The warehouse located at the	ESF site will be	the main facility
for receipt, docum equipment, mainter	entation, staging, storing, a lance items, and quality assure items.	and issuing of con rance documentatio	struction materials, in and control records.
delays in ESF open	ations, both construction and	testing, facilit	ies must be sized to
warehouse will sug	oport construction, operations	the ability to be (testing), and m	expanded. The aintenance throughout
the life of the Pr	<u>oject. Figure 1. Warehouse S</u>	Support Requiremen	ts, presents an SEE CONTINUATION PAGE
PARTICIPANT OA REP - noul	DATE 4/24/85. TPO	CWG REPRESENTAT	TVE OR PARTICIPANT
SECTION 2. ICWG CH 1. PROCEED WITH 2. PROCEED WITH	AIRMAN ACTION NOT API ECR EVALUATIONYES WORKYES	PLICABLE NO SCOPE CHANGE NO CONSTRUCTION	YESNO MPACTYESN
3. TOTAL COSTS (Increase/deci	BLE TOTALS	ROM BUD	GET PROJECTED
4. SCHEDULING IM	PACTNOT APPLICABLE	ENGINEE CONSTRU	RING WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH PROCEED WITH	DETAL ENGINEERING YES	₩0 ₩0	
G. FUNDING: NOT APPLICAE	ILENOT FUNDED, PROJECT	ED ONLY	- H. enter 7/9/8
CHANGE ORDE	RSPECIAL STUDIES	ICWG	CHAIRMAN/DATE
7. APPROVED		<u>d</u>	- H. erty 7/0/08

···· ···

•
	_'89	019
--	------	-----

- - -

# ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

$\Box$	ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST	ESF 12.FM8-11/2-
EC8 NO. 027		PAGE
Continuation Page		2 or 3
TITLE <u>Ware</u>	house	
CONTINUATION	abbreviated construction schedule through 1991 which del	lipeates the
overall ware	house requirements by quarters. No attempt was made to c	letermine actual
line items.	but to identify major systems or pieces of equipment which	th would impact
on warehousi	ng. Figure 1 is divided into three general areas which a	re: construction
support, mai	ntenance support and testing (operations) support. Init	ally the warehous
will mainly	support the construction effort with requirements to hous	se components and
parts for:		
o ES-1 and	IES-2 hoists installation and hoist house.	
o ES-1 and	ES-2 headframes and sinking equipment.	
o ESF mine	plant including generators, compressors and fans.	~~~
From the tim	me it is fully operational, the warehouse will house equip	oment and
supplies to	support the testing program. In addition to the tests wi	nich would begin
quickly; suc	h as, the rock matrix, radial borehole, shaft convergence	es, and UBOL DBR
tests, the w	varehouse would be responsible for storage and control of	the IDS/DAS
equipment.	Spare parts for critical equipment, mobile, portable, and	fixed, will
also be stor	red in the warehouse. These spares, if Quality Level III,	, may be issued
to the shop	for storage there as a part of their normal maintenance p	program. Quality
Levels I and	ill spares will only be kept in the main warehouse and is	ssued as needed.
Upon complet	tion of the ES-2 shaft, the warehouse would then support t	the construction
of the main	test level plus MTL testing, including the IDS system and	i DAS stations.
Figure 1 lis	its, at the bottom, may of the systems, equipment, and cor	istruction
components t	that will be in the warehouse facility.	
The warehous	se facility must be sized to support the following activity	ties:
1. Receivir	ng//Inspection; each item delivered to the ESF will be red	ceived and
document	ted. For those items to be stored inside, a storage/rece	lving area is
necessar	y. As items arrive, they will be inspected. Critical Qu	uality Level
I and II	items may have extensive inspection procedures prior to	placing them
into tem	nporary or permanent locations.	
2. Overage,	, Shortage, and Damaged Storage; any item or shipment tha	t does not pass
inspecti	onwrong item, too may or few or damagedwill be tagge	d and placed in
a locked	area. These items will be held until the problem is re-	ctified.
OTHER INFORM	ATION	
•		

i attin y

CSCR ______'89 019 ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

$\Box$	ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE R	EQUEST
ECR NO. 027	المحالة المحاربة المعارفة المتاريب والمتعاوي ويتعين ويتعين والمحاد ويرجعه والمحاد	PAGE
Continuation Page		<u>3</u> <b>ar</b> <u>3</u>
TTLE Vareh	ouse	
CONTINUATION		
3. Hazardous	material storage: any item considered	hazardous would be stored in a
special ar	ea such as solvents, cleaners, chemica	ls.
4. Lock and )	ey Storage; any items requiring specia	l custodial procedures will be
stored in	a locked storage area. Such items cou	1d be IDS/DAS computer spare parts
hoist elec	trical components, communications equi	pment, special tools, calibrated
instrument	s, etc.	
5. Restroom	acilities	
6. Offices;	he office space would house the files,	record keeping micro computers
and desks	and tables for processing, receiving,	inspection, storage, and
issuing de	cumentation.	
Additional fea	tures which would be a part of the war	ehouse facility to assure safe
and efficient	operation are a contiguous loading doc	k and ramp.
The numbers of	line items which will be stored are e	stimated to be between 2,000 and
3,000 items.	In addition, the warehouse staff will	control all of the items stored
in the control	led yard(s). Figure 2, Conceptual War	ehouse, which contains all of the
above listed t	eatures is presented with this ECR.	
Information de	veloped herein on warehouse requiremen	ts is based upon the tasks
derived from 1	he work breakdown structure and furthe	r defined by the work order
outline at the	sixth level.	
····		
·		
·		······································
<u>- · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</u>		······································
OTHER INFORMAT	ON	
•		
		······

D





PROPOSED MODIFICATION

019 '89 CSCR ____

. Rev. r

# 1.2.6.3.7 WAREHOUSE

# **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The warehouse shall include all the facilities, systems, and services for the safe storage and dispensing of materials within the ESF.

# **Functional Requirements**

Provide facilities for general warehousing in support of the ESF construction and operations

# Performance Criteria

- 1. The warehouse shall meet the operational requirements of the users.
- 2. Space and equipment shall support the functions of purchasing, storing, and dispensing equipment and materials, and shall be sized to accommodate the inventory needed for ESF operations and in situ site characterization.
- 3. Storage of critical components shall be under controlled access.
- 4 The warehouse shall provide a chemical storage area.

# Constraints

- 1. The warehouse will be designed and constructed as a prefabricated metal building
- 2. The warehouse shall contain a rest room and offices.
- 3. The warehouse shall be insulated and heated. In addition, the office areas and rest rooms shall be air conditioned.

# Assumptions

(deleted)

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
in the second	ij	NNWS COST/SCHÉDULE C	SI PROJECT Pag HANGE REQUEST (C/	e 1 of 1 N-AD 03 (SCR) 9/87
Star	ge 140.	Organ zation:	Originator:	Origination Date.
₩Q.,	020	SAIC	W. E. Spaeth	11/15/88
Titlo.	Revise the Ex Design Require with Approved	ploratory Shaft Facilit ements Document (SDRD) ESF Engineering Change	y (ESF) Subsystem NVD-309 in Accordance Request (ECR) 028	
Expla	ination & Reason	n for Change:		
	WBS: 1.2.6.1	.1.T		
	CHANGE: See	the attached ESF ECR 02	8.	
	REASON: See	"Basis for Change" on E	SF ECR 028.	
	COST IMPACT:	None		
	SCHEDULE INPA			
	ATTACHMENTS:	<ol> <li>Letter, L. P. Skou July 21, 1988, Pro the Exploratory Sh Design Requirement Engineering Change</li> </ol>	sen to M. E. Spaeth, posed Changes to aft Facility Subsyste s Document (SDRD) Request 028.	
		2. ESF ECR 028.	· •	
		•		
			M NICA	
Resp	onsible Organiza	tion <u>W. E. Spaeth</u>	La friest of	_ Date
CCB	Secretary 1. C	ACC D C	CASHING /KI	Date 12/13/85

 Baselin	E CHAN	GE EVA	LUATI	N SURA	iary			
Baseline Change: Revise ESF approved ESF-ECR 028	SDRD	in acc	ordanc	e with		C/SC7 89/0	No: 20	
 Summary of Recommended Actio	ns:					<u> </u>		
	<u> </u>	stect	Öffice	)			SMSS	
	R4SE	ELD	Pfoc	QÀ	MIES	S&EI	Seac	ADMIN
Concurrence		$\mathbf{X}$	X	X	X			× .
Concurrence with Conditions						Ü		
Son Concurrence							$\overline{X}_{1}$	→ □
No Pecommendation	X							
Comment Summary Evaluation: pads and booster pump buildin pad. G-4 borehole represents is sealed. Because of poten it is more appropriate to des that we've take a conservation	(1) " ng is s a po tial i sign t ve "al	Assess probab ssible mpacts o p.m. ternat	ment f ly oka pathw on re f. Th e" to	or bat y, but ay to posito is can 60.21	ch plan I'm co reposit ry perf also b require	t pad, ncerne ory ho ormanc e used ments"	lower d abou rizon e and as an	storag t the ( until testing argum
 Impact Analyses: (1) Recomme flood (p.m.f.)".	endati	on - "	Design	G-4 p	ad for	probab	le max	imum
 je Did vijen kil			Date		0 18 8	Page		

CSCR _____'89 020



### **Department of Energy**

Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

JUL 20 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH

jan " JUL 21 1988 Route Copies _

Hichael E. Spaeth Technical Project Officer for NNVSI ATTN: Phil Herkley Science Applications International Corporation Suite 407 101 Convention Center Drive Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUESTS (ECRs) 010 through 027

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group approved the subject ECRs on July 8, 1988. The contents of these ECRs change the information contained in various sections of the SDRD under the formal Project Baseline Process. Send all holders of the SDRD controlled copies of this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Lester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development and Engineering Branch Waste Hanagement Project Office

WHPO:DHI-2970

Enclosure: Approved ECRs 010 through 027

> Received In Computation Received In Computation

SAIC/T&MSS

JUL 21 1988

1111 2 2 1988

**CCF RECEIVED** 

Multiple Addressees

#### cc w/o encl:

V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV M. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV W. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, WHPO, NV CSCR _____'89 020

1000

10



### Department of Energy Nevada Operations Office P. O. Box 98518 Las Vegas, NV 89193-8518

CSCR _____'89

JUL 21 1988

RECEIVED M. E. SPAETH JUL 21 1988 merkler - XTEA Route Copies -

020

Hichael E. Spaeth
Technical Project Officer
for NNVSI
ATTN: Phil Merkley
Science Applications
International Corporation
Suite 407
101 Convention Center Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXPLORATORY SHAFT FACILITY SUBSYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT (SDRD) ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST (ECR) 028

The Chairman of the Interface Control Working Group has approved the subject ECR on July 11, 1988. The content of this ECR changes the information contained in section 1.2.6.1.2 of the SDRD under the formal Project baseline process. All holders of the SDRD are to receive this information. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Dennis H. Irby at 794-7932.

Dester P. Skousen, Chief Technology Development & Engineering Branch Vaste Management Project Office

WMPO:DHI-2967

Enclosure: Approved ECR 028

cc v/encl: V. J. Cassella, HQ (RV-123) FORS Dean Stucker, HQ (RV-223) FORS G. K. Beall, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV H. C. Brake, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV R. R. Reust, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV John Nimmo, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV S. H. Klein, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV V. E. Narrovs, SAIC, Las Vegas, NV James Blaylock, WHPO, NV E. L. Wilmot, VMPO, NV

Received In Configuration Management Division

SAIC/T&MSS

111 2 2 1988

JUL 21 1988

CCF RECEIVED

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST 020

DII SUR INDE

أتنصاحه والأليان المستعين فواعد فسيعجبني وواكو ويهوي	والمراجع المتباد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد				
ECR NO. 028	•				PAGE
					OF
SECTION 1. TO BE COMPLET	ED BY PARTICIPAN	T REQUEST	ING CH	ANGE	
QA LEVEL					
SOURCE SDRD	-NVO-309 Rev. 1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	PAF	TTCIPANTH8	<u>N</u>
WBS DESIGNATION	6.2.1.H	DANG			/11/88
DESCRIPTION		<u>raus</u>	RE	NO. 1 DATE	07/08/88
			RE	. NO. DATE	
SDRD 1.2.6.1.2, Pg. 1.2-1	, Performance Cr	<u>iteria, l</u>	<u>: Curr</u>	ently reads: "	The pads shall
be designed to handle pot	encial runott ir	the exis	ting na	tural grainage	channels from
a probable maximum flood.	······································	aba]] ba		d to brodle of	tootis] sussifi
Suggest changing to: All	JUX1: Tary pads	Shall be o		a to nanule pu	lential runort
of a 100 year storm unles	s <u>conerwise</u> spec		<u>ne_toli</u>	owing pags sha	II De designed
to the runoff potential s	<u>nown.</u>				
		ar storm		<u>SEE</u>	CONTINUATION PAGE -
The costs to design and a	anctruct there a	ade ic co	ncidara	hly higher for	probable
maximum flood orchostics	10 26 60 an 10		Ann min	off protoction	
these changes based on re	<u>lu, co, ou or ll</u> placement costs	of the name	ds and	equipment dama	ie <u>me suggest</u> lae from runoff
taking into consideration	the life of the	FSF			
SCOPE CHANGE X VES		<u> </u>	ONCTO! M	TION HIPACT	X VEC NO
DA REP	DATE 7/8/84	TPO	Lata	MESENTATIVE (	- 7 7 C
SECTION 2 ACTION			et u		
		<u></u>		•	
2. PROCEED WITH ECH EV		YES		In the	liter
				ESF ICWG	CHAIRMAN
	<u></u>				
3. TOTAL COSTS	ENGINEERING	RO	M	BUDGET	PROJECTED
(1100 0430) 0000 0430)	CONSTRUCTIO	N			<u></u>
	TOTALS				
4. SCHEDULING IMPACT					
	CONSTRUCTIO	N		<u> </u>	WEEKS
5. PROCEED WITH DETAIL	ENGINEERING	YES	NO		
PROCEED WITH DETAIL	ESTIMATE _	TES	NO	ESE OUNDAN	
				COF CHAIRMA	
6. FUNDING:					
		0000		~~	
CH	WIGE UHUEH _	SPECIA	~ 5100l	23	
NO	r funded, projec	TED ONLY		) U	On here
•			•	ESE CHLIDUAL	ICWO
	100	<u> </u>			
I. APPROVED FOR BASELIN	and the second			•	
			•		101
			~	ESE CHAIDINA	NICWO
					in iuna U
	ابتوال بزرمني الاكر الشميديي منصب				

CSCR _____'89 020 H&N-ECR-001

ESF ENGINEERING CHANGE REQUEST

ESTP12 FM8-112

ECR NO. 028 Continuation Page		· · ·	PAGE OF
TITLE 1.2.6.1.2	AUXILIARY PADS		
CONTINUATION	Lower Storage Pads	10 year storm	
	G-4 Pad	<u>25 year storm</u>	
	Booster Pump Bldg. Pad	50 year storm	
		······································	
<u></u>			
······································			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
		<u></u>	
	·		
	·····		
OTHER INFORMATION			
		<u></u>	<u> </u>

# PROPOSED MODIFICATION

1307 <u>– 189</u> 020

Rev. 6

# 1.2.6.1.2 AUXILIARY PADS

Definition of Subsystem Elements

The auxiliary pads consist of the areas prepared to support the ESF construction and operation. These pads include the G-4 laydown pad, explosives magazine pad, muck storage pad, topsoil storage pad, batch plant pad, water tank pad, lower storage pads, and other areas defined as the design progresses.

## Functional Requirements

The auxiliary pads shall provide areas of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated functions. This includes the following:

- 1. Parking
- 2. Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 3. Materials storage
- 4. Storage and equipment (subcontractor and REECo)
- 5. Fuel and lubricants storage/tank
- 6. Explosive storage plus access roads
- 7. Batch plant
- 8. Borrow pit
- 9. Water tank and access
- 10. Muck storage
- 11. Stock pile of topsoil
- 12. Sewage disposal
- 13. Mine wastewater disposal
- 14. Booster pump station
- 15. Warehouse (plus storage area)

# Performance Criteria

1. All auxiliary pads shall be designed to handle potential runoff of a 100 year storm unless otherwise specified. The following pads shall be designed to the runoff potential shown.

Batch Plant Pad	10 year storm
Lower Storage Pads	10 year storm
G-4 Pad	25 year storm
Booster Pump Bldg. Pad	50 year storm

2. Drainage ponds and muck storage pile liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life. All other civil improvements for auxiliary pads shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 5-year life.





1.5CH ______89 020

PROPOSED MODIFICATION

Rev. 6 .

# **Constraints**

- 1. The auxiliary pads shall facilitate the safe and efficient flow of material and personnel within and around their respective areas.
- 2. The muck storage pad design shall ensure that the capacity includes allowances for excavation overbreak and swell of broken rock.
- 3. The location and size of the explosives storage area shall be determined by the current California and Mine Health and Safety Administration (MSHA) regulations and the MSHA table of distances.
- 4. The auxiliary pad design and construction shall ensure considerations for expansion (uncertainty allowance).

## Assumptions

1. The graded areas for the auxiliary pad(s) do not need to be contiguous or even on a single level if such an arrangement is cost effective (considering construction, operation, and maintenance) or provides for efficient operations.

## CSCR ..... '89 020

### EXISTING

Rev. 1

# 1.2.6.1.2 AUXILIARY PADS

# **Definition of Subsystem Elements**

The auxiliary pads consist of the areas prepared to support the ESF construction and operation. These pads include the G-4 laydown pad, explosives magazine pad, muck storage pad, topsoil storage pad, batch plant pad, water tank pad, lower storage pads, and other areas defined as the design progresses.

## **Functional Requirements**

The auxiliary pads shall provide areas of adequate size and shape to support all anticipated functions. This includes the following:

- 1. Parking
- 2. Utilities (power, water, sewage, communications)
- 3. Materials storage
- 4. Storage and equipment (subcontractor and REECo)
- 5. Fuel and lubricants storage/tank
- 6. Explosive storage plus access roads
- 7. Batch plant
- 8. Borrow pit
- 9. Water tank and access
- 10. Muck storage
- 11. Stock pile of topsoil
- 12. Sewage disposal
- 13. Mine wastewater disposal
- 14. Booster pump station

## Performance Criteria

- 1. The pads shall be designed to handle potential runoff in the existing natural drainage channels from a probable maximum flood.
- 2. Drainage ponds and muck storage pile liners shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 25-year life. All other civil improvements for auxiliary pads shall be designed and constructed for a maintainable 5-year life.

## **Constraints**

1. The auxiliary pads shall facilitate the safe and efficient flow of material and personnel within and around their respective areas.



EXISTING

2. The muck storage pad design shall ensure that the capacity includes allowances for excavation overbreak and swell of broken rock.

Rev. 1

- 3. The location and size of the explosives storage area shall be determined by the current California and Mine Health and Safety Administration (MSHA) regulations and the MSHA table of distances.
- 4. The auxiliary pad design and construction shall ensure considerations for expansion (uncertainty allowance).

# Assumptions

1. The graded areas for the auxiliary pad(s) do not need to be contiguous or even on a single level if such an arrangement is cost effective (considering construction, operation, and maintenance) or provides for efficient operations.

- ,·

				a na se state de la companya de la c	المحمد المحد المان التي بيانية بالحديثة عن العن المانية العربي الي بيانية عن العن المانية العربي العربي العربي		
		R COST/SCHEDU	NWSI F	PROJECT Page NGE REQUEST (C/S	1 of 1 N-AD-036 CR) 9/87		
	Change No:	Organization:		Originator:	Origination Date:		
9	89/021	Project Office	Ta and	W. R. Dixon	11/17/88		
	Title: Remove from th (1) NNWSI/88-8 Structure (2) NNWSI/88-7	e Project Baselin , NNWSI Baselined and , NNWSI Project W	e the fo Documen ork Brea	llowing documents: ts-Project Work Brea kdown Structure Dict	kdown ionary		
	Explanation & Reason	for Change:		• • • •			
	The Yucca Moun Structure (WBS WBS. (Enclosur	tain Project has ) which differs f e No. 1).	been dir rom the	ected to report to a current Program and	Work Breakdown Project Baseline		
	The Programmatic procedure, OGR/B-1, requires modifications to the Program WBS, OGR/B-4, by the OCRWM Change Control Board (CCB). An OGR Baseline Change Proposal (BCP-154) (Enclosure 2), was submitted by OGR to align the Program WBS with the guidance provided in enclosure 1. Inaction by the OCRWM CCB to approve BCP-154 inhibits effective planning and timely implementation of the Project Management Control System and associated reporting requirements. It is therefore recommended to remove the WBS from the Project Baseline to allow the Project flexibility to fulfill it's reporting obligation to DOE/BQ. Removing the WBS from the Project Baseline will not remove it from Project						
	Changes In Che	e technical baseli	ne.				
9	Responsible Organiza CCB Secretary <u>P. C</u> Approval: Project M	tion <u>W. R. Dixon</u> . <u>Verkley</u> anager, WMPO <u>E</u> .	L. Wilm	klug	Date <u>11/27133</u> Date <u>12/13/88</u> Date <u>12/13/88</u>		

1

and a State parties

0	YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT PASELINE CHANGE EVALUATION SUMMARY
	Baseline Change: Remove from the Project Baseline The following documents: (1) NNWSI/88-8, NNWSI Baselined Documents - Project Work Breakdown Structure and (2) NNWSI/88-7, NNWSI Project Work Breakdown Structure Dictionary
	Summary of Recommended Actions: Project Office TEMSS RESE EED PEOC QA MIES SEEL SEEC ADMIN
	Concurrence X X X X Concurrence with Conditions
	Non Concurrence
	Comment Summary Evaluation: "The YM Project Procedures AP-3.1 and AP-3.3 are implemented to provide a management control mechanism to assure planning and scheduling documents are revised in accordance with a standard set of review and approval steps. They provide for maintenance of a change log to ensure an auditable record of cost and schedule changes. Also included is the control and maintenance of the WBS and WBS Dictionary." The YM Project Change Control Board is specifically charged with maintenance of cost and schedule matters in AP-3.3. This change request states that the WBS will continue to be controlled, but the implication is that some undefined set of procedures will be implemented for this purpose. The cost and time associated with new or modified procedures should be weighed against the facility of whatever new process is anticipated".
	Recommendation: "Do not approve this change. Request the modification of the Project WBS and WBS Dictionary to reflect the Project direction provided in reference 1 of the change. This will ensure a Project baseline element which is consistent with the OCRWM guidance and a uniform reporting structure which participants can utilize to develop lower tier structures".
	CCB Secretary P. C. Merkley Date 12/12/88 1 of 1

C/SCR 89/021

# Enclosure No. 1

DDE Memorandum Dated: October 15, 1987 Subject: SCP Consultative Draft Schedule Guidance and Baseline Change Proposal for the OGR WBS (OBR/B-4)

Re: HQ0.871015.0070



inited States Government

Received In Configuration Department of Energy

Temorandum Management Division

OCT 2 0 1987

HQ0.871015.0070

DATE: OCT 1 5 1987

2011133

SUBJECT. SCP Consultative Draft Schedule Guidance and Baseline 340 Training Change Proposal for the OGR WBS (OGR/B-4)

TO: John Anttonen, BWIP Carl Gertz, NNWSI Jeff Neff, SRPO Sally Mann, RTTD

CCT 211387

On October 6, 1987, OGR met with the first repository Project Office representatives to help develop guidance on the schedule information that is to be included in the consultative draft of the SCP's. Prior to the meeting, OGR proposed an approach that would make the Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) and the structure of investigations in the SCP Annotated Outline consistent. The intent of this proposed approach was to permit the Project Offices to plan their activities one way and one way only, according to an OGR WBS, without losing the current structure of investigations in the SCP Annotated Outline. With the cooperation of the Project Office representatives, the meeting enabled OGR to prepare the two attachments that, when taken together and implemented, will achieve the objective of the meeting. The cooperation that was received at the meeting is appreciated.

Attachment 1 is a copy of schedule guidance to be implemented by each Project Office for the consultative draft SCP. Revisions to SCP Section 8.3 and 8.5 (and any other SCP sections containing schedule information) should be completed prior to submittal to Headquarters of the concurrence draft. Although dates and durations for site characterization activities will not be specified in the consultative draft, the Project Offices should continue with bottoms-up development of an integrated Project Master Schedule that incorporates the scope of work described in the consultative draft SCP.

Attachment 2 is the Baseline Change Proposal to modify the OGR WBS (OGR/B-4) so that it is better aligned with the structure of the site characterization program. The WBS structure changes are the same as those discussed by the participants at the October 6 meeting. Expeditious review of this change proposal is requested. Please return your evaluation within two (2) weeks. It is intended that the WBS changes will be reflected in the FY 1990 budget submittal, which is due in March 1988, and implemented in monthly progress reports submitted by the Project Offices in FY 1989. A primary objective for the Baseline Change Proposal is to allow SCP investigations to better map to the OGR

		C/SCR	89/021	(Enclosure	e No. 1)	
18-89-87	15:14	FORSTL		NO. 829	1 003	<b></b>
					15	•
					3	
			-2-			

. .....

W38 so that the Level 1 and Level 2 networks maintained by the projects for project management purposes can also be used for presentation of schedule information in the SCP and in SCP progress reports.

Your support in implementing the attachments is requested and appreciated. If there are any questions on these matters, please call Don Alexander or Dick Blaney.

> Stephen H. Kale Associate Director for Geologic Repositories

Attachments (2)

...

JBresse, XH-22 COI RStein, RH-23 JKnight, RH-24 DAlexander, RM-232 GAppel, SRPO MBlanchard, NNWSI JHOCCE, BWIP Army/hayard Attir of toperation the dist provides if ____ FVan Loan, SRPOHENEL LILL MARK INT INT STRUCT HALL AND AND THE STRUCT GRiggins, BWIP were the WDixon, NNWEI JHorris, RW-222 VCassella, RW-222 ' 🛲 JDaly, RM-222 DSiefken, Meston JNelson, Weston

Office of Geologic Repositories Program Baseline Change Proposal Number B-154

Re: HQ0.871015.0072



 C/SCR 89/021 (Enclosure No. 2) ATTACHMENT 2

.

2014 t 1.2 m

_

OME CONTROL NO: 1910-0900

· Of	FICE OF GEOL PRO BASELINE CH	OGIC REPOSITORIES DGRAM ANGE PROPOSAL	HQO.871015.0072
DATE: October 18, 1987		•	SHEET OF
BCP NUMBER B. 154 BCP TITLE Alignment of WBS wit DOCUMENT NUMBEROGR/B-4 DOCUMENT TITLEOGR_Work_Br	th_SCP_work	REVISION -	
	GE BASELINED D	CUMENT D BASELINE	
DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION Description - S	FOR PROPOSED iee attachmen	CHANGE:	
Justification -	See page 2		EARCHT & MASS
			CC7 2 0 1987
			0079777992
(DOE/RW-0043), Project Office and contrac DETAILS OF IMPACT ACTIVITY/ITEM AFFECTED	tor WBS	COST IMPACT	SCHEDULE IMPACT
When the WBS is modified, al uments based on the WBS will modification, e.g., MSA repo project management plans, pr networks, etc.	l doc- Ther require pac rts, <u>Pos</u> oject eff mar SCP ŝin rar <u>Neg</u>	e will be a cost im t (To be determined <u>itive</u> - Reduction i ort to produce sum- y schedules for the and progress repor ce a special SCP su y will not be requi ative - Data struc- es will require mod	- Negligible. n ts, m- red ification.
ORIGINATOR NAME R. BITH AR ORGANIZATION OGR PHONE 586-9896		SUBMITTED BY SIGNATURE PROJECT DATE	EVE 2542/1 . Kale GR DI16/87
DISTRIBUTE FOR REVIEW TO: CCB MEMBERS ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, OGR PROJECT MANAGER, SRPO BOLIECT MANAGER, BWIED	CCS AD HOC ME DIRECTOR, EGD. DIRECTOR, SLO. DIRECTOR, RCD	INBERS DISTR OGR ASS ND. OGR DIRE OGR ASS	IEUTE FOR INFORMATION TO: DCIATE DIRECTOR, OSTS ICTOR, OPO DCIATE DIRECTOR, ORM

_____

-

1

BCP-B-154

## JUSTIFICATION FOR PROPOSED CHANGES

BCP PAGE	CHANGE/REVISION	JUSTIFICATION	
3, 4, 5 6, 8, 9	<ol> <li>For selected waste package, and repository elements; added references in dictionary to planning and conduct of tests, studies, and investigations.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Will allow investigations and studies visibility (where appropriate) on project WBS- based Level 1 and 2 summary networks so that networks can be used for both project man- agement and SCP reporting.</li> </ol>	
3, 4, 5,	<ol> <li>For selected waste package, site and repository elements; added references in diction- ary to laboratory, surface- based, and exploratory shaft testing.</li> </ol>	2. The ES testing element is deleted and ESF testing will be included in appropriate waste, package, site, and repository elements.	
7	3. Added new climatology and meteorology, and resource potential Level 4 elements to site. See also change 5.	3. These two new elements are specific programs in the site characterization pro- gram. SCP investigations in these programs can be de- scribed in the two new WBS elements.	
9, 11, 12	4. Sealing is elevated from a level 5 to a level 4 element. Other repository level 4 ele- ments are renumbered.	4. Sealing systems is a generic SCP program (at the same level as site, waste pack- age, and repository). Greater visibility is re- quired to properly show sealing investigations and studies on project networks and in project management systems.	
13, 4	5. Environment and socio- economic elements are moved from site to re- gulatory and institutional. References to meteorology are removed from the en- vironment element and in- cluded in the new climatology and meteorology elements. Other regulatory and institutional Level 4 elements are renumbered.	5. Environmental and socio- economic activities are not part of site charac- terization and the work scope better fits in the regulatory and institu- tional element.	

·

•

BCP-B-154

.

.

•

Page 2	;	
BCP PAGE	CHANGE/REVISION JUSTIFICATION	TION
14	6. Changed name of ES to ESF. 6. Appropriate is removed.	since testing
16	<ol> <li>Added reference to design</li> <li>To provide e validation testing to first</li> <li>shaft, second shaft, and sub-</li> <li>testing.</li> <li>surface excavation elements.</li> </ol>	lements for non- erization ESF
16	8. Included common data ac- quisition system elements under operations. 8. Shared testions tems would be allocate acr functions.	ng support sys- e difficult to oss user end . (See 9)
16	<ul> <li>9. Eliminated ES testing as</li> <li>9. Eliminates as</li> <li>1. Level 4 element. ES insitu- testing will be included in appropriate waste package, site, and repository elements.</li> <li>9. Eliminates as</li> <li>9. Eliminates</li> <li>9.</li></ul>	mbiguity in ori- ure. Projects intain internal logistics assure inte-

.

.

Geologic Repository Work Breakdown Structure Dictionary Development and Evaluation Phase

#### Systems

図

HQO.871015.0075

- 1. Hanagement and Integration
  - Provide overall management of the systems activities, including planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting.
  - Provide for interaction with other OCRHM participants in the systems area (e.g., participation in the Performance Assessment Coordinating Group).
  - Prepare and implement QA program procedures for systems activities.

### 2. Systems Engineering

- Perform special studies of technical issues that affect the overall waste isolation system, including transportation interface considerations.
- Perform risk assessments, system optimization studies and analyses of cost/schedule consequences of alternative approaches.
- Develop estimates of total system life-cycle costs. [Note: Cost estimates related solely to the waste package, exploratory shaft, and repository are included in their respective end functions.]
- Baseline the major requirements for the overall waste isolation system, e.g., development of the Generic Requirements document.
- Develop, operate, and maintain a configuration management system that identifies, controls, and records all changes to the technical baseline documents. The technical baseline documents will include a description of the waste isolation system configuration indicating the interrelationships among the system components, their functions, and their performance requirements.

### 3. Technical data Base Management

- Establish and maintain a base of significant technical data that will be used in evaluating the performance of the waste isolation system. Includes activities to ensure that data can be documented, traced, and controlled.
- To support licensing activities, establish and maintain an administrative record that documents the development of the data base.
- Provide access to the technical data base and historical records to outside agencies.

SAIC/T & WES

# OCT 2 0 1987

C C F RECTIVED 10/7/87

GRD98

-2-

- 4. Total System Performance Assessment
  - Develop, verify validate, benchmark, and document codes for assessing the performance of the overall waste isolation system.
  - Allocate the total system performance objectives among the waste package, repository, and site subsystems.
  - Identify and prioritize data requirements for the total system performance assessment.
    - Analyze the performance of the overall waste isolation system, utilizing input from waste package, site, and repository performance assessment activities.
    - Hanage preclosure safety analyses c'overall waste isolation system. [Note: Safety analyses related solely to the waste package, exploratory shaft, and repository are included in their respective end functions.]
    - Provide for peer review of the systems performance assessment activity.

### Haste Package

- 1. Management and Integration
  - Provide overall management of waste package activities including planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting.
  - Provide for interaction with other OCRHM program participants on waste package activities (e.g., participation in the Haste Package Coordinating Group).
  - Prepare and implement QA program procedures for waste package activities.
- 2. Waste Package Environment
  - Characterize the near-field environment in which the waste packages would reside, including the physical, hydrologic, geochemical, and geomechanical conditions in the vicinity of the waste package. This characterization is based on data obtained from the site and repository test programs and through additional tests required to characterize the near-field environment. The waste package end function includes the development and confirmation of testing methods for the required additional tests; planning and conduct of the laboratory and exploratory shaft tests, studies and investigations; and performance of mathematical modeling and analyses.
  - Determine how the near-field environment might change in response to repository construction and closure as well as waste emplacement.

• Based on experimental and modeling activities to characterize the waste package environment, provide input to the waste package and repository design and performance assessment tasks.

### 3. Waste Form and Materials Testing

- A. <u>Haste Form</u>
  - Characterize the behavior and determine radionuclide release rates and mechanisms for spent fuel, commercial high-level waste, and other waste forms under both expected and unexpected repository conditions. Includes the development and confirmation of testing methods, and the planning and conduct of tests, studies, and investigations. Includes interaction tests between the waste form and the barrier material.
  - Develop conceptual models to describe radionuclide release rates from the waste forms for use in evaluating waste package performance.
  - Develop waste form acceptance requirements and specifications.
  - Provide input to waste package and repository design and performance assessment tasks.
- B. Metal Barriers
  - Characterize the behavior and determine corrosion rates and corrosion mechanisms, including the interaction between the metal barrier and its surrounding environment. Plan and conduct metal degradation tests to determine corrosion modes of candidate materials for the waste package canister and overpack under both expected and unexpected repository conditions. Includes the development and confirmation of testing methods, and the planning and conduct of tests, studies, and investigations.
  - Develop conceptual models of corrosion for use in evaluating waste package performance.
  - Provide input to canister and overpack design, and to waste package and repository design and performance assessment tasks.

### C. Other Materials

- Characterize the behavior of candidate packing materials under both expected and unexpected repository conditions. Includes the development and confirmation of testing methods, and the planning and conduct of tests, studies, and investigations.
- Develop conceptual models to describe the behavior of packing materials.

- Provide input to packing material design, and waste package and repository design and performance assessment tasks.
- D. Integrated Testing

- Plan and conduct waste package laboratory and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations to characterize the integrated behavior of the waste form, barrier materials, and surrounding environment.
- Develop conceptual models to describe the integrated behavior of the waste form, barrier materials, and surrounding environment.
- Provide input to the waste package and repository design and performance assessment tasks.
- 4. Design, Fabrication, and Prototype Testing
  - Establish waste package design requirements.
  - Provide engineering design and analysis to develop and evaluate alternative waste package concepts, including thermal, structural, criticality, economic, and other analyses.
  - Develop waste package design, including drawings and specifications.
  - Plan and conduct tests to qualify the waste package design. Includes the fabrication of test components as well as the development and confirmation of testing methods.
  - Provide input to waste package performance assessment task and to repository design and performance assessment tasks.
- 5. Haste Package Performance Assessment
  - Develop, verify, validate, benchmark, and document codes for assessing the performance of the waste package.
  - Identify data requirements for the waste package performance assessment.
  - Utilize codes in assessing waste package performance.
  - Conduct preclosure safety analyses of the waste package under both expected and unexpected conditions.
  - Provide for peer review of the waste package performance assessment activity.

### Site

- 1. Management and Integration
  - Provide for the overall management of site characterization activities, including planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting.
  - Provide for interaction with other OCRWM program participants on site activities (e.g., participation in the Site Characterization Coordinating Group).
  - Prepare and implement QA program procedures for site activities.

#### 2. Geology

- Plan and conduct laboratory, surface-based, and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the geological characteristics of the site under both expected and unexpected conditions. Includes stratigraphy, geomorphology, structural geology, geomechanics, geophysics, and tectonics. [Note: The development of rock mechanics data required for repository design is included in the repository end function.]
- Analyze geologic data and develop conceptual models to describe the geologic characteristics of the site.
- 3. Hydrology
  - Plan and conduct laboratory, surface-based, and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the hydrologic characteristics of the site under both expected and unexpected conditions. Includes water level, water flowpath and travel times, hydraulics, recharge rates, and water age and origin.
  - Analyze hydrologic data and develop conceptual models to describe the hydrologic characteristics of the site.
- 4. <u>Geochemistry</u>
  - Plan and conduct laboratory, surface-based, and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the geochemical characteristics of the site under both expected and unexpected conditions. Includes the composition and chemistry of the groundwater, the composition and chemistry of the host rock, and the sorption, precipitation, and diffusion of radionuclides. Includes salt dissolution studies.
  - Analyze geochemistry data and develop conceptual models to describe the geochemical characteristics of the site.

### 5. Drilling

- Provide the drilling expertise to support the planning of site characterization.
- Perform surface drilling activities, including engineering design boreholes, and related construction work in support of site characterization. [Note: Drilling of the exploratory shaft is included in the exploratory shaft end function.]
- Establish and maintain a library of core samples.

### 6. Climatology and Meteorology

- Plan and conduct tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the past, present, and future climate of the site and region.
- Analyze climatology data and predict future climate variations at the site.
- Plan and conduct tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the meteorology of the site and the region, including extreme weather phenomena. Meteorology data for repository design as well as for environmental compliance will be obtained under this element.
- Analyze meteorology data for use in repository design and environmental analysis.

### 7. Resource Potential

- Plan and conduct laboratory, surface-based, and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations needed to evaluate the existence of energy, mineral, land, and ground-water resources at and near the site.
- Analyze resource data and evaluate the present and future values of resources at and near the site.

#### 8. <u>Performance Assessment</u>

- Develop, verify, validate, benchmark, and document codes for assessing the performance of the site.
- Identify data requirements for the site performance assessment.
- Utilize codes in assessing the site performance.
- Provide for peer review of the site performance assessment activity.
- 9. Deferred Site Close-Out
  - Perform those activities required to return the site to satisfactory condition if the site is eliminated from further consideration.

#### Repository

#### 1. Management and Integration

- Provide for the overall management of repository design and testing and development activities, mincluding planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting. Includes project management and support activities of the architect-engineer and the construction-manager, such as development of cost estimates and preparation of schedules. Includes the preparation of the integrated repository design report.
- Prepare and implement QA program procedures for repository activities.
- Develop and baseline the functional criteria, standards, analytical methods, assumptions, and interface requirements required to design the repository surface facilities, shafts, subsurface excavations and underground service systems.
- Assemble thermal, mechanical, hydrologic, and other data to support the design of the repository.
- Evaluate repository subsystem design options, including the cost and schedule consequences of alternative approaches.
- Provide for interaction with other OCRWH program participants on repository activities (e.g., participation in the Repository Coordinating Group).

#### 2. Development and Testing

- A. Rock Mechanics
  - Plan and conduct laboratory, surface-based, and exploratory shaft tests, studies, and investigations, including subsurface drilling to determine the properties of host rock required for repository design. Includes the development and confirmation of testing methods and the validation and optimization of mathematical models and codes.
  - Perform thermomechanical analyses of the host rock, using the results of field and laboratory tests.
  - Provide input to repository design and performance assessment tasks.
- 3. Equipment and Instrumentation Development
  - Evaluate equipment needs and develop equipment as required, including the design, fabrication, and testing of prototypes. Includes excavation/transport equipment, waste handling equipment and backfill equipment.
  - Evaluate monitoring and instrumentation needs. Adapt existing and develop new instruments as required.

- 3. Sealing
  - Establish sealing requirements, including requirements due to both expected and unexpected conditions, and develop concepts for the repository.
  - Evaluate preclosure and postclosure concepts and designs for sealing shafts, underground excavations, and boreholes. [Note: Development of backfill equipment is under equipment development.]
  - Evaluation potential materials for sealing shafts, underground excavations, and boreholes.
  - Plan and conduct laboratory and exploratory shaft tests, studies and investigations to evaluate the performance of selected sealing materials and design. Includes the development and confirmation of testing methods.
  - Develop designs for sealing shafts, underground excavations, and boreholes.
  - Provide input to repository design and performance assessment tasks.

### 4. Facilities

- A. Site Preparation
  - Perform all surface general arrangement activity.
  - Define and design off-site improvements required for the repository, including roads, rails, utilities, communications, etc., to the boundary of the site.
  - Identify and plan for removal of existing on-site structures not required for the repository.
  - Define and design on-site improvements (inside fenced boundaries, excluding areas with 5 feet of all buildings, structures, and components) including:
    - clearing, grading, excavation, and filling;
    - landscaping'
    - roads, rails, walks, bridges, culverts, curbing, guard rails and traffic barriers;
    - utilities
    - sewers, drains and catch basins outside building lines; and
    - surface installations for on-site haulage, storage and disposal of surplus mined material.

Perform engineering studies and evaluate design options.

### B. Surface Facilities

- Design the waste handling facility for the receipt and handling of waste packages.
- Design the exhaust shaft filtration facility, including structure, utilities, and equipment and structures related to the shafts/ramps.) Included are the following facilities:
  - Health/Medical
  - Fire Protection
  - Security, including fences, gates, guardhouse and tower.
  - Maintenance
  - Administrative and Personnel
  - Laboratory and Testing
  - Harehousing and Receiving
  - Visitors Center
  - Backup Power Generation
  - Change Room
  - Compressed Air and Steam
  - Cooling Tower and Chilled Hater
  - Excavated Material/Storage/Backfill
  - Fuel Storage
  - Chemical Storage
  - Control
  - Potable Water/Sewage
  - Others
- Perform engineering studies and evaluate design options.

### C. Shafts/Ramos

- Design repository shafts, including holst, headframes, shaft collars, and other shaft-connected but surface-located equipment and structures, and shaft liners.
- Design all shaft stations (out to only 5' beyond liner for repository horizon stations).
- Perform engineering studies and evaluate design options.

### D. Subsurface Excavations

- Design repository subsurface excavations.
- Perform engineering studies and evaluate design options.
- E. Underground Service Systems
  - Design repository underground service systems. Included are the following:
    - Material handling system
    - Support systems, e.g. fire protection, dewatering, ventilation, medical, and maintenance
    - Utilities
    - Honitoring and control systems, including facilities and equipment required for confirmation testing.
  - Perform engineering studies and evaluate design options

#### 5. Operations/Maintenance

- Develop repository operating concepts and perform tradeoff and. optimization studies.
- Determing operating modes for all systems and equipment. Included are the following:
  - Haste receipt, interim storage, packaging and handling.
  - Waste package fabrication, preparation, repair, handling, emplacement and retrieval.
  - Seal and backfill emplacement.
  - Hauling, storage and disposal of mined material.
  - Haste control and safeguards.
  - Site security.

- Acceptance testing and readiness feviews.
- Maintenance and logistics support.
- Personnel staffing.
- Provide input to the design and safety analyses of the, repository Through definition of (1) modes of operation of all systems and Equipment; (2) procedures for assembly, emplacement, monitoring, and retrieval of taste package; and (3) maintenance requirements of the operational facility.
- 6. Decommissioning

Ð

- Analyze repository decommissioning concepts and requirement, and provide input to respository design and safety analyses as required. Include es analysis of closure concepts and requirements. Includes site restoration, decontamination, dismantiement, operation of postclosure monitoring instruments. and site security.
- 7. Repository Performance Assessment
  - Develop, verify, validate, benchmark, and document codes for assessing the performance of the repository, including perclosure (e.g., impacts of facility construction and operation, radiological releases from both expected and unexpected conditions) and postclosure phases.
  - Utilize codes in assessing the preclosure and postclosure performance of the repository.
  - Conduct preclosure safety analyses of repository under both expected and unexpected conditions.
  - Provide for peer review of the repository performance assessment activity.

### Regulatory and Institutional

- 1. Hanagement and Integration
  - Provide for the overall management of regulatory and institutional activities, including planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting.
  - Provide for interaction with other OCRWM program participants on regulatory and institutional activities (e.g., participation in Licensing and Institutional Coordinating Groups).
  - Prepare and Implement QA program procedures fur regulatory and institutional activities.

### 2. Licensing

- Review, analyze, and interpret regulatory are requirements to provide licensing guidance to project activities that integrate licensing concerns and the needs of the project.
- Participate in defining licensing strategies.
- Prepare licensing documents, including site characterization plans, safety analysis reports, and construction authorization application.
- Provide for peer review of licensing activities.
- 3. Environmental Compliance
  - Review, analyze and interpret NEPA requirements to provide guidance to project activities that integrate NEPA concerns and the needs of the project.
  - Review, analyze, and interpret State and local environmental regulations.
  - Identify all permitting requirements, including those required for the exploratory shaft and the repository.
  - Prepare documents required to comply with NHPA and NEPA, including environmental assessments and environmental impact statements.
  - Provide for peer review of environmental compliance activities.
- 4. Environment
  - Identify data requirements, plan and conduct tests to obtain site environmental data. Includes ecological, noise. archaeological, and soil data. Also includes development of data on human health and safety and the physical environment.
  - Analyze environmental data and develop conceptual models to describe the environmental characteristics of the site.
  - Develop strategies to mitigate significant environmental impacts.

#### 5. Socioeconomic

۰.

- Identify data requirements, obtain the data needed to establish the social and economic conditions in the area likely to be affected by the construction and operation of a repository. Includes field activities required to obtain data.
- Develop or adapt models to determine the socioeconomic impact that might result from the construction and operation of a repository.
- Develop strategies to mitigate significant socioeconomic impacts.
C/SCR 89/021 (Enclosure No. 2)

## 6. Communication and Liaison

- Collect and disseminate relevant information and coordinate activities with affected States, local governments, affected Indian tribes and the general public.
- Coordinate information meetings, public presentations, exhibits, films and other public information activities. Includes support of such activities with preparation, reproduction, and collection of audio-visual materials.
- Conduct workshops to enhance communications with the public that may be affected by the program.
- Prepare and negotiate consultation and cooperation agreements with affected States and Indian tribes.
- Consult and cooperate with, and provide support to, affected States is and Indian tribes.
- Provide media skills training to project participants.
- Conduct public hearings.
- Select and operate public information offices.
- 7. Financial/Technical Assistance
  - Provide grants in accordance with NWPA for document review/monitoring, information transfer, and commenting on statutory documents.
  - Provide grants-in-lieu-of-taxes of in accordance with NHPA.
  - Provide impact mitigation grants in accordance with NHPA.

#### Exploratory Shaft Facility

- 1. Management and Integration
  - Provide for the overall management of exploratory shaft activities including planning, scheduling, budgeting, controlling, and reporting. Includes project management and support activities performed by the architect-engineer and the construction manager; the preparation of the integrated exploratory shaft facility design; and the conduct of safety analyses associated with the exploratory shaft facility. Also includes obtaining the permits for exploratory shaft construction.
  - Provide for interaction with other OCRHM program participants on exploratory shaft activities (e.g., participation in the Underground Testing Coordinating Group).
  - Prepare and implement QA program procedures for exploratory shaft activities.

## 2. Site Preparation

- Provide for surveys and maps, and the demolition and removal of structures that are unusable.
- Provide general civil improvements, including clearing, grading, excavating, filling, parking, installation of drainage systems, and muck storage pads as required.
- Construct new and relocate or refurbish existing roads, power systems, water supply, communications, and sewage treatment for the site. Includes provision for road and rail access to the site, as required.

### 3. Surface Facilities

- Provide all storage buildings or fenced storage areas as required.
- Provide all shop facilities, both fabrication and maintenance.
- Provide buildings designed to house engineering and administrative services, training and qualification services, personal health and hygiene services, plant safety, emergency equipment and personnel, environmental monitoring systems, etc.
- Provide all security buildings, guard houses, etc.
- Provide drilling pads, mud ponds, and starter holes.

#### 4. First Shaft

- Design shaft, including hoist, headframe, and supports required for service systems.
- Perform engineering studies in support of design.
- Excavate the shaft.
- Line the shaft, including installation of supports for service systems.
- Seal the shaft liner.
- Plan and conduct tests required for design validation.
- 5. Second Shaft
  - Design shaft, including hoist, headframe, and supports required for service systems.
  - Perform engineering studies in support of design.
  - Excavate the shaft.

# C/SCR 89/021 (Enclosure No. 2)

- Line the shaft, including installation of supports for service systems.
- Seal the shaft liner.
- Plan and conduct tests required for design validation.
- 6. Subsurface Excavations
  - Design subsurface excavations, including required rock boilting and grading.
  - Excavate the subsurface working areas, including grading and installation of rock bolting, wire mesh, shotcrete, and fire wall as required.
  - Plan and conduct tests required for design validation.
- 7. Underground service Systems
  - Design, procure, and install underground service systems, including material and personnel transport systems (other than hoist and headframe), ventilation system, communications and instrumentation networks, utilities, emergency systems, etc.
- 8. Operations
  - Operate, maintain, and inspect (1) the systems necessary to transport personnel and material onto the site, into the shaft, and into the underground workings; and (2) the systems necessary to remove excavated material from the underground workings to its storage pad. Includes the hoist, headframe, cage and other related equipment. Also includes the preparation of operating and maintenance manuals.
  - Operate, maintain, and inspect system components for shaft and subsurface ventilation, communications, instrumentation, plant utilities, and emergency systems. Includes the preparation of operating and maintenance manuals. Includes design, procurement, and installation of common data acquisition system elements. Test operations are contained in the waste package, site, and repository end functions.
  - Provide for security, health and safety, environmental protection, and related safeguards.
- 9. Decommissioning
  - Prepare plans to decommission the exploratory shafts.
  - Decommission and seal exploratory shafts after a determination is made that the shafts are no longer needed.

l